North Planning

Committee
Date: THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011
Time: 7.00 PM
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5
CIVIC CENTRE,
HIGH STREET,
UXBRIDGE
uUuB8 1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Membership to be confirmed following
Annual Council Meeting (12 May 2011)

Eddie Lavery (Proposed Chairman)
Alan Kauffman (Proposed Vice-
Chairman)

David Allam

Jazz Dhillon

Michael Markham

Carol Melvin

John Morgan

David Payne

Published: Wednesday, 11 May 2011

Contact: Charles Francis
Tel: 01895 556454

Fax: 01895 277373
cfrancis@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=752&Ver=4




Useful information

4
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at w F e
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, \‘3‘* A
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a @n j
short walk away. Limited parking is available at v(ﬂ
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and

how to book a parking space, please contact
Democratic Services

13

Please enter from the Council’s main reception .”*?% Shopoi

where you will be directed to the Committee ‘(“}% e
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for ] e park
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact . . ..# M, :

us for further information. — ot

Muzraring
rar park

Please switch off any mobile telephones and
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Recording of meetings - This is not allowed,
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-
1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant

followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such as the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

1 Apologies for Absence

a A W N

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or

land concerned.

Major Applications with a Petition

To sign and receive the minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2011 (to follow)

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in public

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | South Ruislip Library, | South Erection of a part three and a half, part | 1-38
Plot B, Ruislip; | four storey block and a three storey
Victoria Road, block comprising a total of 19 one-
Ruislip bedroom and 12 two-bedroom flats,
together with associated parking and
67080/APP/2010/1420 amenity space
Recommendation : Approval
subject to a Statement of Intent
Non Major Applications with a Petition
Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
7 | Land forming part of Eastcote & 1, one-bedroom, single 39 - 52
104 Abbotsbury Gardens, | East Ruislip; | storey detached dwelling with
Eastcote new crossover to front and
associated parking and
67398/APP/2011/481 amenity space (Outline

Application with some
matters reserved)

Recommendation : Refusal




Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
8 | Land forming part of Northwood; | Use of land as dog day care and | 53 -74
Carlton Place, kennels to include 8 kennels, 4
Rickmansworth Road, stables, 1 office block, 1 toilet
Northwood block and 1 store room.
67584/APP/2011/232 Recommendation : Refusal
Non Major Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
9 | 186 Field End Road, Cavendish; | Change of use from 75 -84
Eastcote photographic studio to
accountancy office (Use Class
2294/APP/2011/415 A2)
Recommendation : Approval
10| 89-91 Joel Street, Northwood; | Change of use from Class A1 85 - 98
Northwood (Shops) to part Class A3
(Restaurants and Cafes), part Class
45536/APP/2010/2946 A4 (Drinking Establishments), part
Class A5 (Hot Food Takeaways)
and part Class B1 (Office.)
Recommendation : Approval
11| 157 - 161 High Street, | West Two and half storey linked 99 - 128
Ruislip Ruislip; building comprising 2 x two-

64711/APP/2011/214

bedroom flats, 2 x one-bedroom
flats and 2 x studio flats,
extension to the beauty salon
and the formation of a new Class
A2 ground floor commercial unit
(involving part demolition of
existing building) and the
retention of the beauty salon use
of the existing building, involving
the change of use of the ground
floor retail units (Class A1) and 4
existing flats (Class C3) (Part
Retrospective Application).

Recommendation : Approval




Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
12| 157 - 161 High Street, | West Part demolition of existing 129 -134
Ruislip Ruislip; building (Application for
Conservation Area
consent).
Recommendation : Approval
Any Items Transferred from Part 1
Any Other Business in Part 2
Plans for North Planning Committee Page 135-192




Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address SOUTH RUISLIP LIBRARY, PLOT B VICTORIA ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Erection of a part three and a half, part four storey block and a three storey
block comprising a total of 19 one-bedroom and 12 two-bedroom flats,
together with associated parking and amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 67080/APP/2010/1420

Drawing Nos: Contaminated Land Assessment - Technical Summary, dated 11/06/10
Phase Il Geoenvironmental Assessment Report, September 2009
Preliminary Contamination Assessment Report, September 2009
2009/D42B/P/23
2 (Hard and Soft Landscape Plan)

Arboricultural Impact Assessment, dated 14th June 2010

Transport Statement, dated 10/06/10

Noise Assessment, May 2010

Energy Statement, June 2010

Flood Risk Assessment, April 2010

2009/D42B/P/22 Rev. B

Design and Access Statement, Revised September 2010
2009/D42B/P/02
2009/D42B/P/03
2009/D42B/P/04
2009/D42B/P/05 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/19 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/23 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/24
2009/D42B/P/27 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/28 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/29 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/08 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/09 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/10 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/11 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/12 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/13 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/20 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/21 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/18 Rev.
2009/D42A/P/07 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/26 Rev.
2009/D42B/P/30 Rev.

VOTTMWUWWOW>POWowW>>> P>WO0O

Date Plans Received:  16/06/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 16/06/2010
Date Application Valid: 16/06/2010 04/10/2010
11/10/2010
13/04/2011
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the redevelopment of the site on the
edge of the South Ruislip Local Centre on the north eastern side of Victoria Road to

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 1



provide two residential blocks, one three and a half/four storeys, the other three storeys
to provide a total of 31 flats, with 36 off-street car parking spaces.

Following concerns raised by officers, amended plans have been received which improve
the spacing around the buildings and the overall design of the scheme.

Although the density exceeds the density range recommended by the Mayor, the
proposed scheme is considered appropriate on the edge of the South Ruislip Local
Centre and when considered together with the previously approved mixed use scheme
on the adjoining Plot A, the separation of the two sites being somewhat superficial, with
the approved scheme including a significant residential element, the overall density would
accord with guidance. It is not considered that the proposed development would have a
significant detrimental impact on the character or appearance of the surrounding area
and it would satisfactorily harmonise with the scale, massing and design of the
replacement mixed use library building approved on the adjoining site, known as Plot A
(67080/APP/2010/1419 refers). Furthermore, the residential amenity of existing and
proposed neighbouring occupants would not be adversely affected and an acceptable
internal living environment would be created for future occupants. Although the amount
of private amenity space is deficient, particularly serving Block 2, the shortfall is not
considered to be significant, particularly as all units would have an individual patio or
balcony area and there are other spaces at the front of the blocks, which although not so
private as the rear gardens, would provide a suitable level of amenity to be usable by
some occupants. Furthermore, the Highway Engineer raises no objection to the scheme
and although part of the site does lie within Flood Zone 2, a sequential test did not
identify any more suitable sites and the Environment Agency do not object to the
proposal. Accordingly, approval is recommended.

2. RECOMMENDATION

(This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the
Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the
benefit of the land)

a) That the applicant being the local authority and being the only legal entity with
an interest in the land which is the subject of this application, and hence being
unable to enter into a section 106 Agreement with the local planning
authority, completes a Statement of Intent (Statement) to make provision for the
following matters as would a third party developer under a section 106 planning
obligation:

i) The provision of highway improvements along Victoria Road, including right
turning lane, reinstatement of the existing access and creation of new access
arrangements.

ii) 16% of the scheme, by habitable room, is to be delivered as affordable housing
with the tenure and unit mix to be agreed with the Council.

iii) The provision of a formula calculation towards educational facilities.

iii) The provision of a formula calculation (£216.67 per person) towards healthcare
facilities.

iv) The provision of a formula calculation (23 per person) towards local library
facilities

v) The provision of a formula calculation towards construction training, in line with
the SPD, (£2,500 for every £1 million build cost + 31 (number of units) /160 x
£71,675 = total contribution).

vi) A cash contribution equal to 5% of the total cash contribution to enable the

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 2



management and monitoring of the requirements of the legal agreement.

b) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council’'s reasonable costs in preparation of the Statement and any abortive
work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

c) That planning officers be authorised to negotiate and agree details of the
proposed Statement.

d) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised within 6 months of the date of this
committee resolution, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of
Planning and Enforcement, then the application may be referred back to the
Committee for determination.

e) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the Statement.

f) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:-

1 SP01 Council Application Standard Paragraph

This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the benefit of the
land.

2 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 OoM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

4 OomM2 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 3



accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

5 OM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan
shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(i) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115
for maximum permitted working hours).

(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iv)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities).

(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures
to reduce the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

6 M1 Details/Samples to be Submitted

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

7 M3 Boundary treatment - details

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, materials
and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment shall be
completed before the [use hereby permitted is commenced] or [building(s) is (are)
occupied or [in accordance with a timetable agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority]. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8 TL2 Trees to be retained
Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 4



damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority.

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new tree,
hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to be first
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and species to
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with

BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial
work should be carried out to BS 3998 (1989) 'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS
4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard
Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

9 TL3 Protection of trees during site clearance and development

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas:

1. There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2. No materials or plant shall be stored;

3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

10 TL5 Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 5



No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

- Means of enclosure,

- Car parking layouts,

- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,

- Hard surfacing materials proposed,

- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),

- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

1 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period. The new planting and landscape operations should
comply with the requirements specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs' and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General
Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft
landscaping shall be permanently retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new
tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to
be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority in the next planting season
with another such tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species
unless the Local Planning Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

12 TL7 Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 6



No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation. Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

13 MCD10 Refuse Facilities

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the covered,
appropriately sign posted, secure and screened storage of refuse at the premises have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the
development shall be occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance with
the approved details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON

In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

14 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the approved plans, prior to the commencement of development, full
details of the proposed bathrooms in the residential units, to include details relating to
layout, floor gully drainage, etc, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. With regards to the proposed wheelchair accessible flat, details
of the shower access and perimeter drainage, specifically, should be provided.

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.5, 3A.13,
3A.17 and 4B.5.

15 DIS5 Design to Lifetime Homes Standards & Wheelchair Standards

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed to be fully wheelchair accessible, or easily adaptable for residents who are
wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document
'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.5, 3A.13,
3A.17 and 4B.5.

16 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development
from road traffic noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The noise protection scheme shall meet acceptable noise design
criteria both indoors and outdoors. The scheme shall include such combination of
measures as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
thereafter be retained and operated in its approved form for so long as the use hereby

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 7



permitted remains on site.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by road traffic noise in accordance with policy OE5 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20 of the
London Plan (February 2008).

17 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Before any part of this development is commenced a site survey to assess the land
contamination levels shall be carried out to the satisfaction of the Council and a
remediation scheme for removing or rendering innocuous all contaminates from the site
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
scheme shall include an assessment of the extent of site contamination and provide in
detail the remedial measures to be taken to avoid risk to the occupiers and the buildings
when the site is developed. All works, which form part of this remediation scheme, shall
be completed before any part of the development is occupied (unless otherwise agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority). The condition will not be discharged until
verification information has been submitted for the remedial works. Any imported
material i.e. soil shall be tested for contamination levels therein to the satisfaction of the
Council.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

18 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the commencement of development, full details of covered and secure cycle
storage provision for at least 31 bicycles for the proposed residential units, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle storage
areas shall be completed prior to the first occupation of the building hereby permitted and
thereafter permanently retained and maintained for so long as the development remains
in existence. The cycle parking should be regularly monitored and additional storage
provided if demand dictates.

REASON

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided in accordance with the standards set out
in the Council's Cycle parking Standards in accordance with Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

19 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the car parking area has
been laid out, surfaced, lit and drained in accordance with details first submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority This area shall be permanently
maintained and available for the parking of vehicles at all times thereafter to the
Authority's satisfaction.

REASON
To ensure the scheme is supported by adequate parking provision, to ensure pedestrian
and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure the development does not increase

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 8



the risk of flooding in accordance with policies AM7(ii), AM14 and OES8 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter C of the
London Plan (February 2008).

20 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the existing vehicular
access has been stopped up and the means of vehicular access has been reinstated,
and the new means of vehicular access has been constructed in accordance with the
details first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking and loading facilities in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter C of
the London Plan (February 2008).

21 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The proposed vehicular access shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both directions
and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and
2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking and loading facilities in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter C of
the London Plan (February 2008).

22 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The proposed access to the site shall be provided with driver visibility splays of 2.4m x
43m in both directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to visibility between
the heights of 0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking and loading facilities in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter C of
the London Plan (February 2008).

23 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Development shall not begin until a scheme for the allocation and designation of one
parking space to each of the residential units, for their sole use, has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the parking spaces
shall be allocated and provided for the use of those residential units only for so long as
the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the scheme is supported by adequate parking provision in accordance with
policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

24 OoM14 Secured by Design

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 9



development. Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before development commences. Any security measures to
be implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard necessary to
achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief
Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

25 TL20 Amenity Areas (Residential Developments)

None of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied, until the outdoor amenity area
serving the dwellings as shown on the approved plans (including balconies where these
are shown to be provided) has been made available for the use of residents of the
development. Thereafter, the amenity areas shall so be retained.

REASON

To ensure the continued availability of external amenity space for residents of the
development, in the interests of their amenity and the character of the area in
accordance with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

26 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The residential development hereby permitted shall be built to a minimum of Level 3 of
the Code for Sustainable Homes (or its successor). No development shall take place until
a Design Stage assessment (under the Code for Sustainable Homes or its successor)
has been carried out and a copy of the summary score sheet and Interim Code
Certificate have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON
To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the policy aims of Policy A4.3
and Policy A4.16 of the London Plan.

27 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the first occupation of the residential development, a copy of the summary score
sheet and Post Construction Review Certificate (under the Code for Sustainable Homes
or its successor) shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority verifying that the
agreed standards have been met.

REASON

To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the policy aims of Policy A4.3
and Policy A4.16 of the London Plan.

28 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The internal floor levels of the development shall be at or above 35.34m OD.

REASON:

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 10



In order to safeguard against flooding, in accordance with policy OE8 of the saved UDP,
policies 4A.12, 4A.13 and 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

29 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Development shall not begin until a detailed surface water drainage scheme, based on
the principles set out in the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) for the site dated April 2010,
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details
before the development is completed.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) and to ensure the
development does not increase the risk of flooding, improves and protects water quality,
improves habitat and amenity, and ensures future maintenance of the surface water
drainage system, in accordance with Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), policies 4A.12, 4A.13 and 4A.17 of the London
Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE14 Development of sites in isolation

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood

protection measures

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 11



OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

R5 Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community,
religious, cultural or entertainment facilities

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

A6 Development proposals within the public safety zones around
Heathrow or likely to affect the operation of Heathrow or Northolt
airports

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people

and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
HDAS Residential Layouts

Accessible Hillingdon

3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

5 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 12



plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

7 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

8 111 The Construction (Desigh and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal
contractor who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and
safety responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety
Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020
7556 2100).

9 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 13



D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

10 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

1 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 14



- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

12 145 Discharge of Conditions

Your attention is drawn to condition(s) 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 23, 24,
26, 27 and 29 which must be discharged prior to the commencement of works. You will
be in breach of planning control should you commence these works prior to the
discharge of this/these condition(s). The Council may consider taking enforcement action
to rectify the breach of this condition(s). For further information and advice contact -
Planning & Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250230).

13 147 Damage to Verge

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles
delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and
at the applicant's expense. For further information and advice contact - Highways
Maintenance Operations, Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128
Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

14

It is contrary to Section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface water from private land
to drain onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage system.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises an approximately 0.24 hectare irregularly shaped plot
located on the north east side of Victoria Road in South Ruislip. The site is known as Plot
B and forms one of three plots as part of a linear site along this side of Victoria Road
which is being re-developed by the Council. This is the middle plot, located between the
site of the former South Ruislip library building, known as Plot A and the adjoining site to
the south east which has now been redeveloped as a youth centre. The application site,
together with Plot A has been cleared of buildings and are enclosed with hoarding. The
north western part of the application site previously comprised part of the car park for the
library, with the south eastern part accommodating part of the former Swallows
gymnasium building and its associated car park.

Victoria Road forms the south west boundary of the site, on the opposite side of which is a
Sainsbury's supermarket, with associated service yard, car park and service station. The
site is bounded to the north west by the site of the former South Ruislip library building,
which has permission to be re-developed to provide a new three storey building to
comprise library, adult learning facilities, florist shop and 10 one-bedroom flats, together
with associated parking (ref. 67080/APP/2010/1419). Beyond the library is a three storey
residential block known as Kelvedon Court and residential houses which front Long Drive.
The site is bounded to the south east by the newly built part single, part two, part three
storey South Ruislip Youth Centre (ref. 66408/APP/2009/2202). Beyond this building are

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 15



tennis courts used by Queensmead School and its playing fields also adjoin the
application site along its north east boundary.

The western part of the site, comprising the former library car park and the site of the
library building itself, forms part of the South Ruislip Local Centre. , The remainder of the
site, together with the site of the youth centre to the south east and playing fields to the
north east form part of the 'developed area' as shown on the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Proposals Map.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks full planning permission for the redevelopment of Plot B to provide
two residential blocks, a three and a half/four storey block adjoining Plot A (Block 1) and a
three storey block adjoining the Young People Centre (Block 2). , In total, 31 residential
flats are proposed, with 11 one-bedroom and 4 two-bedroom flats in Block 1 and 8 one-
bedroom and 8 two-bedroom flats in Block 2. In total, 36 off-street car parking spaces are
proposed including 4 disabled person spaces.

The two blocks would be sited at each end of the site, along the north west and south east
side boundaries with parking mainly provided between the two blocks, accessed by a
centrally sited vehicular crossover. The blocks would be at a slight angle to Victoria Road,
set back by 3m to 7m. Following concerns raised by officers, the scheme has been
amended, involving alterations to the scheme's layout with more space being created
around the blocks. The mix of the units has also changed (as opposed to the 15 one-
bedroom and 16 two bedroom units originally proposed), with two units being re-located
within the roofspace of Block 1 and alterations to the design of the blocks. The main
shared amenity space is provided at the rear of each of the blocks, although all the
ground floor units now have their own individual patio areas and the majority of the units
above would have a balcony. There would be a seating out area between the two blocks,
with landscaping along the front of the site. There is also a third floor roof terrace in Block
1.

Block 1 would have a main width of 28.8m and overall depth of 18.7m. It would be finished
with a ridged roof, with a main eaves height of 8.2m and ridge height of 14.8m. The roof
would contain a gable feature and three dormers in the front, with a half gable returning
along the side. At the rear would be a projecting three storey wing, with the roof terrace
above. An undercroft parking area would replace part of the ground floor adjoining the
central car park. Balconies are proposed to the front, side and rear elevations. The block
would comprise 15 units, with 2 x one-bedroom and 1 x two-bedroom units on the ground
floor, together with the undercroft parking, cycle and refuse storage, 4 x one-bedroom and
1 x two-bedroom units on the first and second floors and 1 x one-bedroom and 1 x two-
bedroom units in the roofspace, together with the roof terrace.

Block 2 would have a main width of 27m and overall depth of 19.8m. It would also be
finished with a ridged roof, with a main eaves height of 8.2m and ridge height of 12m and
also contain a gable feature at the front and rear, with half gable features at opposite
corners of the building. A smaller undercroft parking area would be provided adjoining the
car park. Balconies also characterise the front and rear elevations. The block would
comprise 16 units, with 2 x one-bedroom and 2 x two-bedroom units on the ground floor,
together with the undercroft parking and refuse storage, 3 x one-bedroom and 3 x two-
bedroom units on the first and second floors.

A number of reports have been submitted in support of the application, namely:-

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 16



Design and Access Statement (Revised September 2010):

This report outlines the context for the development and provides a justification for the
scheme, layout, scale and access for the proposed development. The report also provides
a summary of a number of the submitted reports.

Transport Statement:

This provides a context for the development and describes the site, the availability of
public transport and the proposal. A Trip Rate Information Computer System (TRICS)
traffic database was utilised to assess the likely traffic generation and other road usage
associated with 31 flats. It estimates total AM (08:00 - 09:00) and PM (17:00 - 18:00) peak
hour traffic at 4.6 and 3.8 vehicles respectively. This level of traffic would have no material
impact upon the junction capacity. Similarly, the capacity of local public transport would
not be affected.

The parking provision would satisfy maximum standards set out in the London Plan and in
Hillingdon's UDP and given the parking restrictions on the surrounding roads, this
provision will be self-enforcing. Cycle parking will also be provided at a ratio of 1 space
per unit.

The new access has adequate visibility recommended in Manual for Streets with at least
43m x 2.4m and will not interfere with the existing bus stop.

Even considering the development of this and the adjoining development on Plot A, the
total AM and PM peak increases to 6.1 and 5.0 vehicles respectively which will have no
material impact on the junction capacity.

Noise Assessment:

This describes the site and provides the statutory background for the assessment and
describes the noise measurements taken. The assessment demonstrates that road traffic
on Victoria Road is the main source of noise with noise from Sainsbury's service yard
being audible, but not identifiable on the measurement trace during the day, although it
did become just detectable during the night. The results show that it is only the facade
facing Victoria Road that requires mitigation from noise. Measures suggested include a
thicker layer of plasterboard on the ceilings, a high specification through-the-wall ventilator
and higher sound insulation specification for the windows.

Energy Statement:

This provides a site description and the statutory context for the report. It concludes that
energy efficiency measures can reduce emissions by up to 13% with the remaining
emission reductions to be provided by low and zero carbon technologies. The review of
renewable energy options suggests that PV panels would be the preferred option.

Arboricultural Impact Assessment Report:

The statement examines the health, vigour and integrity of existing trees on site, assesses
their retention value and makes recommendations for mitigation. The report advises that
there are 11 trees, groups or hedges in total on site. Of these, 10 are low quality and 1 is
poor quality. Such trees do not constrain development and individual tree loss would have
a low impact, although the aggregate loss may require mitigation. The report goes on to

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 17



advise that all of the trees will be removed but the sites re-development offers the
opportunity for replacement planting with appropriate species which will follow the planting
on Plot A, with the native downy Birch along the front and rear boundaries.

Preliminary Contamination Assessment Report:

This presents the findings of a preliminary contaminated land risk assessment for the site.
It primarily considers historical information and records. As the site comprised a library
and gym, with areas of car parking and prior to this agricultural farmland, the report
concludes that the risk of contamination is very low.

Phase Il Geoenvironmental Assessment Report:

This report describes the site, the investigation methodology and the underlying ground
conditions found on site. The results are assessed and recommendations are made for
remediation measures.

Flood Risk Assessment:

The report states that part of the site is within Flood Zone 2 (the medium probability flood
area). To manage the 0.1% annual probability climate change flood level of 35.34m AOD,
finished floor levels will be set at or above this height. The topographical survey also
shows that Victoria Road is above this level for the majority of its frontage so access to
the site should be available during an extreme flood event. Sufficient on site storage in the
form of underground tanks will also be provided to manage storm flows.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

There is no relevant recorded planning history relating specifically to this site. However,
the following applications are considered to be relevant to this scheme:

67080/APP/2010/1419 - Erection of a three storey building to provide for a new library,
adult learning facilities, florist shop, 10 one-bedroom flats, together with associated
parking and external works (involving demolition of existing library building) - Approved
08/11/10.

66408/APP/2009/2202 - Erection of single storey building for use as youth centre with
associated parking and landscaping (land to south east of former Ruislip Library forming
part of former Swallows Gym) - Approved 04/12/09.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing

Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy

Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood Risk

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport

Planning Policy Guidance 24: Planning and Noise

London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004), February 2008
London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, April 2010
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 18



Supplementary Planning Guidance - Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Residential Layouts
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Accessible Hillingdon

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.10

PT1.12

PT1.16

PT1.17

PT1.20

PT1.30

PT1.39

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To avoid any unacceptable risk of flooding to new development in areas already
liable to flood, or increased severity of flooding elsewhere.

To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and
mobility standards.

To seek to ensure the highest acceptable number of new dwellings are provided
in the form of affordable housing.

To give priority to retail uses at ground floor level in the Borough's shopping
areas.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

Part 2 Policies:

BE13
BE14
BE18
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE22
BE23
BE24
BE38

OE1

OE5
OE7

OES8

OE11

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Development of sites in isolation

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



requirement for ameliorative measures

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

R5 Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community, religious, cultural or
entertainment facilities

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

A6 Development proposals within the public safety zones around Heathrow or likely
to affect the operation of Heathrow or Northolt airports

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway

improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
HDAS Residential Layouts

Accessible Hillingdon
5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 24th December 2010

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
Original Plans

284 local properties have been consulted and site and press notices have been posted. 4
responses have been received, making the following concerns:

(i) Overdevelopment of the site which will be incongruous with surrounding area;

(i) Parking will not be sufficient as it is being assumed that residents will only have one car per flat
and that residents will not have visitors;

(iii) Proposed development is only 50 yards from a set of traffic lights which is seriously congested
at peak times and very busy at all other times. Total of proposals on Plots A and B is for 41 units
which will be in middle of a daily traffic jam, and increased congestion and on-street parking will
make situation much worse;

(iv) Surrounding houses benefit from looking out across the green fields;

(v) South Ruislip already densely populated which will be exacerbated by proposal with more
overcrowding turning area into a grim suburb. Infrastructure already overloaded;

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 20



(vi) Continuously increasing traffic results in additional pollution and noise which is making life
unbearable for existing residents;

(vii) Development requires additional facilities, particularly school places as many children already
do not get their first choice of school and this development will make matter worse;

(viii) Adjoining youth club next door went ahead against local wishes;

ix) Adjoining football club stays open past 11:00 PM;

x) How long before playing fields are developed?

xi) Flats would overlook our property on the opposite side of the playing fields;

xii) Flats will appear large and unsightly;

(xiii) Money for development would be better spent on a relief road between Victoria Road and the
A40.

o~~~ —~

South Ruislip Residents Association: No response received.

Environment Agency: There is no requirement to consult the Environment Agency on this
application

Internal Consultees
URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

ORIGINAL PLANS:

The proposed scheme regards the regeneration of a centrally located brownfield site for the
purpose of a replacement library, education facilities for the relocation of adult education from a
Ruislip High School and residential flats. The application site is centrally located within a short
walking distance from South Ruislip Underground Station. Directly opposite the library site is a
large scale retail development. The proposed library and education facilities provide important
complementary services which assist in creating a diverse, well balanced town centre environment,
providing cultural services in close proximity to leisure, sport and commercial services.

To the north west of the elongated plot is a three storey residential development, Kelvedon Court,
which is very well screened from the development site by robust vegetation as well as a
respectable distance. Immediately to the south of the application site is a new Youth Centre under
construction. Further to the south are existing tennis courts, whilst large open Playing fields abuts
the site to the east. The proposed scheme, which forms a linear development along Victoria Road
forms an important extension of the town centre. From an urban design point of view it is of great
importance to continue the avenue character of the street scene in a similar way to the continuous
line of Plane trees and complementary hedge planting which screens the large scale customer car
park opposite the site.

The site as a whole consists of three compact built components, separated by surface car parking
facilities. Because of the narrow shape of the plot, space for amenity facilities within the site are
most restricted. In addition, at the most narrow point of the site, there is very little available space
left for complementary planting, and is therefore not possible to achieve the required avenue
character with the current layout arrangements.

From an urban design point of view it would therefore be advisable to create a residential
development of the same height as the library building, and as a result free up some vital open
space along the street frontage, as well as between Block A and B. The single storey elements
forming the entrance point to these to blocks do however not contribute to the enhancement of the
streetscene, but are considered to be out of character with the development as a whole. It would
therefore be preferable to prolong Block 1 slightly to the south and omit the single storey elements
as a whole, as the proposed undercroft parking facilities provides a visually poor, dark and unsafe
environment. Block 2 could also be increased in height at the northern end, and then step down

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 21



gradually at the southern end. The open space between two built elements, Block 1 and 2, should
then be further enhanced by strategic tree planting and other greenery.

Elements of public art should be incorporated into the landscaping scheme, for example in the form
of bespoke entrance gates, an interesting signage or wall feature to create a strong sense of place.
The art initiatives could be a joint venture with the local community, and incorporate the Library, the
residential blocks as well as the adjacent Youth Centre.

The proposed building materials such as the combination of fairface brickwork and coloured
render, matched by the slated roof and powder coated details in grey are fully supported, and
underline the simplistic and contemporary design approach of the development.

Conditions
1. To be built in accordance with drawings (when amended).

2. Samples of all building materials and hard landscaping materials to be submitted to the LPA and
agreed in writing prior to the commencement of works.

3. Fully detailed drawings of all boundary treatment, including gates, railings and fences to be
submitted to the LPA and agreed in writing prior to the commencement of works.

AMENDED PLANS:

PROPOSAL: Erection of two blocks of three and four storey flats, with parking and ancillary
development

BACKGROUND: This is a very tight site of irregular width, located between Ruislip Manor library
and the Young People's Centre, and backing on to the playing fields.

The scheme has been amended, in discussion with the architects, to produce a modern design
which is coherent in its roofscape, as simplified and as sleek as possible in its elevational
appearance, and appropriate in its relationship with surrounding buildings and setting. As the
scheme would be visible from all viewpoints, including from the rear, attention to detail has been
important. In this way, the apparent scale and bulk of these blocks has been reduced to enable
them to be absorbed satisfactorily into the streetscape.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Acceptable. Samples of all materials required.
TREE OFFICER:

THE SITE (Landscape) & TREES: This flat site is located on the eastern edge of the local centre.
There is a long line of semi-mature (London Plane) trees on the south-western side of Victoria
Road. These trees, and others further to the east of the site, form a large-scale landscape feature
between the road and the large retail buildings on that side of it. The north-eastern side of the road
is more open with some individual and small groups of trees.

There are two small groups of trees on the road frontage and two trees close to the rear boundary
of the site.

The trees on and close to the site, which are shown on the topographical/tree survey drawing, have
been surveyed, in accordance with the recommendations of BS 5837:2005, by Landmark Trees.
The results and interpretation of the results of the survey are presented in the Arboricultural Impact
Assessment Report (June 2010). The report includes tree survey/constraints, arboricultural impact

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 22



assessment and plan.

No trees are categorised as 'A' grade (good quality and landscape value, where protection and
retention is most desirable as part of any redevelopment), nor as 'B' grade (fair quality and value,
worthy of protection and retention as part of any redevelopment). The other trees/groups/hedges
are all 'C' rated (poor), which could be retained but, subject to replacement planting, are not a
constraint on the development of the site, or 'R' (remove).

The tree survey/constraints drawing shows the root protection areas (RPAs) for the trees which
define construction exclusion zones necessary to safeguard trees from built development, or
interference within the root zone.

The trees on and close to the site are not protected by Tree Preservation Order or Conservation
Area designation.

THE PROPOSAL & PRELIMINARY APPRAISAL: Based on the recommendations of BS 5837, the
design of the development of the site should be informed by the tree survey/report.

The redevelopment of the site involves the construction of two new three-storey buildings to provide
31 flats, together with associated parking, external works and landscaping. In this case, the trees
do not constrain the development of the site and the individual removals will have a low impact.
However, the loss of all of the trees should be mitigated by tree planting.

The layout reserves limited space for landscaping on the road frontage, and in the amenity space
at the rear of the buildings. The landscaping scheme makes provision for the planting of five
fastigiate (narrow-crowned) trees in front of the buildings, three trees on the road frontage of the
car park and seven trees in the amenity space behind the buildings, in replacement of the existing
trees. In that context there is no objection to the loss of several trees on the site. However, the
space (a narrow strip) for landscaping in front of the two buildings is limited, such that they will be
the dominant features.

ACCESS OFFICER:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan Policy 3A.5 (Housing
Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon' adopted
January 2010.

The scheme should be revised and compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant)
should be shown on plan. In addition, 10% of new housing should be built to wheelchair home
standards and should accord with relevant policies, legislation and adopted guidance.

1. Plans should be amended to show bathrooms that accord with the Lifetime Home Standards.
The bathrooms/en-suite facilities should be designed in accordance with Lifetime Home standards.
At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100mm provided between the
front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

2. To allow bathrooms to be used as wet rooms in future, plans should indicate floor gulley
drainage.

3. The proposed wheelchair accessible flat (flat 1) should include specification that is conducive to
the access requirements of a wheelchair user. Whilst the Design & Access Statement refers to a
level access shower with perimeter drainage, the submitted plans appear not to have been marked
up with these technical details

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 23



Conclusion: Plans should be amended to reflect the above specification in all bathrooms.
SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:
1 Plot B: Energy

An energy statement was submitted with the application however it only demonstrates 13% of the
energy coming from renewable energy sources without adequate justification for not including
additional technology to provide the remaining 7%.

However given the importance of the applications and the commitment to Code for Sustainable
Homes level 3 for the housing, | do not object to the proposals subject to the following conditions:

CONDITION

The residential development hereby permitted shall be built to a minimum of Level 3 of the Code for
Sustainable Homes (or its successor). No development shall take place until a Design Stage
assessment (under the Code for Sustainable Homes or its successor) has been carried out and a
copy of the summary score sheet and Interim Code Certificate have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the policy aims of Policy A4.3 and Policy
A4.16 of the London Plan.

CONDITION

Prior to the first occupation of the residential development, a copy of the summary score sheet and
Post Construction Review Certificate (under the Code for Sustainable Homes or its successor) shall
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority verifying that the agreed standards have been met.

REASON
To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the policy aims of Policy A4.3 and Policy
A4.16 of the London Plan.

2. Plot B: Flood Risk

As discussed at the pre-registration meeting with the EA, and included within the comments on the
registration proforma, the development will need be justified through the flood risk sequential test. It
is advised that the matter is discussed with the policy team.

S106 OFFICER:

Further to recent amendments to the scheme | am writing to advise of the agreed planning
obligation heads of terms arising from this proposal and also to advise that given that the final
quantum of unit mix for the affordable aspect is uncertain then the obligations will need to be
addressed by formula in the resulting s106 agreement, if the scheme is approved.

In brief:
1. Highways/road works: Please see highways comments as to the extent of the highways works
required as a result of this proposal and which will be followed through into the s106 agreement.

2. Affordable Housing: 16% of the scheme, by habitable room, is to be delivered as affordable
housing with the tenure and unit mix to be agreed with the Council.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 24



3. Education: formula for delivery of the education places in line with the SPD.

4. Health: formula for the resulting level of health facilities contribution in line with the SPD (£216.67
per person) is sought.

5. Libraries: formula for the resulting level of library facilities contribution in line with the SPD (£23
per person) is sought.

6. Construction Training: formula for the resulting level of construction training contribution, in line
with the SPD, (£2,500 for every £1 million build cost + 31(number of units)/160 x £71,675 = total
contribution) is sought or an in-kind scheme submitted to and approved by the Council.

7. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: in line with the SPD a contribution equal to 5% of the
total cash contributions is sought to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting
agreement.

EDUCATION SERVICES:

A S106 education contribution of £108,764 is sought (Nursery - £12,621, Primary - £41,784,
Secondary - £31,183 and Post-16 - £23,176) discounted to £85,289 (Nursery - £9,404, Primary -
£33,278, Secondary - £24,571 and Post-16 - £18,035) for full nomination rights.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER:

| do not wish to object to this proposal.

Residential re-development:

Noise

| refer to the Noise Assessment carried out for the applicant by Northumbrian Water Scientific
Services file reference number 18162 dated May 2010. It has been calculated that the overall site
falls within Noise Exposure Category C of PPG24.

PPG 24 states that for sites falling within Noise Exposure Category C, planning permission should
not normally be granted. Where it is considered that permission should be given, for example
because there are no alternative quieter sites available, conditions should be imposed to ensure a
commensurate level of protection against noise.

Road Traffic Noise - Southern fa§ade (front of building)

The daytime equivalent continuous noise level (Leq) was predicted to be 69.3dB, placing it in upper
Category C. Additionally, the night-time noise Leq was predicted to be 61.0dB, which also places
the site in Category C. A series of measures are suggested in Chapter 7.3 which it is indicated can
be employed to ensure noise levels in habitable rooms satisfy the Borough's Noise SPD.

Summary

Based on the results of the noise assessment | am satisfied that the requirements of the Borough's
Noise SPD can be met using a combination of noise mitigation measures.

| therefore recommend the following conditions be applied to ensure that the proposed
development will satisfy the requirements of the Borough's Noise SPD, Section 5, Table 2;

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 25



Condition

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from road
traffic noise has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The noise
protection scheme shall meet acceptable noise design criteria both indoors and outdoors. The
scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved by the LPA. The scheme
shall thereafter be retained and operated in its approved form for so long as the use hereby
permitted remains on the site.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas.
Condition - Dust from demolition and construction

Current government guidance in PPS231 endorses the use of conditions to control impacts during
the construction phase of a development. | would recommend a standard condition requiring a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) to include dust control measures to be
employed on site.

Relevant Best Practice Guidance exists from the Greater London Authority; The Control of dust and
emissions from construction and demolition. November 2006.

Air Quality Assessment

The site is within the northern half of the Borough and therefore not located in the declared AQMA.
No objections are therefore raised in respect of Air Quality.

Contaminated Land
I understand comments are to be sent under separate cover by colleagues in EPU.
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER (LAND CONTAMINATION):

The desk study Phase 1 report by MLM for the site indicates that the site does not have a
contaminative use, the land being used for agricultural purposes in the past before the building of
the library and gym. We have not identified the site within our contaminated land strategy. However
it is now a brownfield site with made ground. Residential flats are proposed on both sites with more
amenity space on Plot B. The site is therefore a sensitive development and as such contamination
investigations are necessary under the planning regime.

The site investigation (Phase 2) was carried out by MLM following the desk study. There were 12
sampling boreholes into the underlying soil to a maximum of 7.45 metres. They do not cover the
current building areas where the properties still stand. The boreholes did not show unusual ground
conditions however there is a shallow depth of made ground (gravelly clay, bricks etc) located down
to 0.34 to 1.0 metres depth. The borehole soil logs are in the report.

Soils were tested for a range of contaminants and the results were compared to the standards for
residential gardens. Most contaminants were not elevated. However there were two levels of
Polyaromatic Hydrocarbons (Benzo(a)anthracene and Benzo(a)pyrene) that were above these
target levels. The two hotspots are marked on a map and localised remediation is required if they
are in a garden or amenity space area. The hotspots are at 0.1 to 0.2 metres depth and may be
removed in the site strip. The plants on site are healthy and no levels of phytotoxins were found
that would affect plant growth.

Monitoring wells for gas and water were installed at 4 locations. Ground gases were measured on 3

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 26



occasions). Some low Carbon dioxide up to 1.4% was found with no methane or vapours.
Calculations were made for low rise housing using the NHBC Traffic Lights System for a 150mm
void, and it was concluded that gas protection is not necessary mainly due to the low flow rates
found.

It appears that there are no groundwater issues found by the investigation and the site is on a non-
aquifer. However the Agency should be consulted for their comments.

The investigation report proposes protection for water pipes given that some levels of soil
contamination particularly arsenic are above the WRAS guideline for laying water pipes.

The details submitted in this application in the MLM reports are sufficient for our current purposes
as regards the human health issues. On the basis of the soil testing there may be some localised
remediation of the two hotspots. If there is any unexpected contamination in the areas not surveyed
or elsewhere this should be reported to the LPA and carried out properly.

| would advise applying a contaminated land condition as below to both applications given the
sensitivity of the housing development and the made ground/identified hotspots on the site. Some
contamination may be encountered once the buildings are demolished and all of the ground can be
assessed. The condition will also ensure that the imported soil is tested and clean.

Please contact me if you wish to discuss this site.

Condition

Site survey and remediation scheme

Before any part of this development is commenced a site survey to assess the land contamination
levels shall be carried out to the satisfaction of the Council and a remediation scheme for removing
or rendering innocuous all contaminates from the site shall be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority. The remediation scheme shall include an assessment of the extent of site
contamination and provide in detail the remedial measures to be taken to avoid risk to the
occupiers and the buildings when the site is developed. All works, which form part of this
remediation scheme, shall be completed before any part of the development is occupied (unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority). The condition will not be discharged
until verification information has been submitted for the remedial works.

Any imported material i.e. soil shall be tested for contamination levels therein to the satisfaction of
the Council.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit should be consulted when using this condition. The
Environment Agency, EA, should be consulted when using this condition. Contaminates may be
present in the soil, water (ground/surface) and gas within the land or exist on the surface of the
land.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The western part of the site is located within the South Ruislip Local Centre, with the
eastern part being within the 'developed area' as shown on the Unitary Development Plan
Proposals Map. In such a location, there is no in principle objection to the provision of
residential units.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 27



Policy H4 states that wherever practicable a mix of housing units should be provided,
particularly one and two bedroom units. It emphasises that within town centres smaller
units are preferable. Whilst this location does not fall within a designated town centre, it
does fall within the South Ruislip Local Centre. Given the location and nature of the site,
the unit mix of one and two bedroom units is considered to be acceptable.

This proposal involves the re-development of the former car park which served the former
Ruislip Library and part of the site which previously accommodated a gymnasium. Policy
R5 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 resists the loss of community facilities
unless adequate alternative facilities are available. Similarly, Policy R11 of the UDP
requires that proposals which involve the loss of land or buildings previously utilised for
community facilities are assessed having regard to various criteria. Permission has been
granted to replace the former 320m? library with a 388m? library on the adjoining site (Plot
A) which also includes the associated car parking to serve the library and other facilities
proposed as part of the redevelopment scheme. As part of the officer's report on the
adjoining youth centre, it was also noted that as the centre would provide facilities for
social, sporting, educational and community events to take place, including a large multi-
purpose hall, the youth centre would therefore replace a large element of the existing
Class D2 use of the site as a leisure centre. As such, and given that the permission
granted on Plot A would also include an adult learning centre with five classrooms, no
objections are raised to the loss of the community facility use on this site, particularly as
much of this use comprised associated car parking.

As such, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policies H4, R5 and R11 of
the saved UDP, subject to meeting other relevant planning criteria.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3A.3 of the London Plan (February 2008) advises that Boroughs should ensure that
development proposals achieve the maximum intensity of use compatible with the local
context, design principles and public transport accessibility. At Table 3A.2, the London
Plan establishes a density matrix to establish a strategic framework for appropriate
densities at different locations.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2. Given the nature of the
surrounding area, which is on the edge of South Ruislip Local Centre, and is largely
characterised by terraced and semi-detached properties with relatively large gardens, and
buildings of 2-3 storeys in height, it is considered that the site falls within a suburban area
as defined in the London Plan (2008). The London Plan (2008) range for sites with a
PTAL of 2-3 in a suburban area is 50-95 units per hectare and 150-250 habitable rooms
per hectare, assuming units have an indicative size of between 2.7 - 3.0 hr/unit. The
proposed units have an average size of 2.4 hr/unit and the scheme equates to a density
of 129 u/ha and 308 hr/ha which exceeds the maximum density as recommended by the
London Plan.

In this instance, the division between this site and the adjoining Plot A is somewhat
superficial, and although the approved re-development scheme on Plot A is for mixed
development, it does include a significant element of residential use. Taking the
redevelopment proposals on Plots A and B together, the larger scheme, including all the
residential units would have a density of 95 u/ha and 218 hr/ha. This does comply with
London Plan standards. It is therefore considered that the density is acceptable in this
location, particularly as part of the site does form part of the South Ruislip Local Centre,
where arguably, the character could be described as more urban (increasing the
appropriate density from 70 - 170 u/ha in the London Plan) and the site is close, ie within

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 28



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

250m of the South Ruislip Underground Station. It is therefore considered that on
balance, no objections are raised to the proposed density of development on this site.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application site.
Airport safeguarding

The Ministry of Defence (MoD) have confirmed that they have no objections to the
proposals. There is no requirement to consult National Air Traffic Services (NATS) or BAA
Safeguarding on this proposal.

Impact on the green belt

No Green Belt issues are raised by this application.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The surrounding area is characterised by a wide mix of uses, with a large Sainsburys
Supermarket and associated car park located on the opposite side of Victoria Road,
beyond which is South Ruislip's main shopping area, a largely residential area located to
the north, and large school playing fields located to the east. The site falls on the edge of
the area designated as South Ruislip Local Centre and, accordingly, is on the fringe of the
more densely built up area of South Ruislip.

Block 1 adjoining Plot A would be a four storey block, although on the Victoria Road
frontage, the fourth floor would mainly be contained within the roof space with pitched roof
dormers fronting the road, with Block 2 being three storey.

Block 1 would be comparable to the height of the three storey replacement building
approved on the library site and be of a similar design. As part of the consideration of this
scheme, it was noted that the building would not be out of keeping with the size, scale and
height of nearby developments including Kelvedon Court to the north west, Sainsburys
Supermarket opposite, and most of the properties in the Local Centre. Notably, all
buildings fronting the Victoria Road/Station Road crossroads, less than 100m to the north
west of the application site, are at least three-storeys, or equivalent, in height. Block 2
would also sit comfortably with the adjoining Young People Centre, parts of which equate
to a two storey height.

The Council's Urban Design/Conservation Officer considers that the revised plans are a
considerable improvement to the scheme, providing more space around the buildings, and
the design of the buildings are much improved. The alterations to the roof terrace, by
bringing the roof of the building down lower, also assist in reducing the dominance of this
feature.

This part of Victoria Road, is characterised by rows of trees, set back from the road, on
both sides, and these form an important element to the street scene, providing screening
to the busy supermarket, service yard and associated car parking on the south western
side of Victoria Road, and enhancing the more open nature of the north eastern side of
the road. Whilst existing trees would need to be removed in order to make way for the
proposed development, replacement trees would be provided to maintain the tree planting
to the site frontage.

The building would take on a modern appearance with use of building materials such as
fairface brick work, coloured render, and slate roofs to match the materials proposed on
the adjoining building. Given the various different styles of buildings within the vicinity of

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



the site, this is considered to be visually acceptable in this location.

Overall, it is not considered that the size, scale, height or design of the proposed building
would have a significant detrimental impact on the character or appearance of the
surrounding area, or on the visual amenities of the street scene. Accordingly, the proposal
is considered to comply with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The nearest existing residential properties to the application site are located at Kelvedon
Court and the adjoining houses that front the south eastern side of Long Drive. These
properties are sited over 65m from the application site. Furthermore, once the adjoining
library site is redeveloped (application no. 67080/APP/2010/1419 refers), the nearest
properties at Kelvedon Court and the adjoining property, No. 53 Long Drive would be
screened by the new three storey building on Plot A from the nearest proposed block
(Block 1) on Plot B.

The proposed new three storey building on Plot A does contain residential units, but these
would not contain any side windows that would face onto the application site and the two
blocks would be separated by a 21m distance. The whole of the area at the side of the
building on Plot A would provide car parking which wraps around at the rear. Shared
private amenity space for the adjoining block would be provided in the northern corner of
the adjoining site, well away and largely screened from the application site. Furthermore,
private balconies and roof terraces are located at the rear of the building, but these would
be more than 21m from the nearest proposed block so as to satisfy the 21m separation
distance advocated by design guidance to ensure that privacy is maintained.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not have any detrimental impact on the
amenity of existing and proposed residential occupiers in terms of overlooking, loss of
privacy, overshadowing or loss of outlook. The scheme complies with Policies BE20,
BE21 and BE24 of the saved UDP.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document: 'Residential Layouts' states that a
minimum of 50m? internal floor space should be provided for one-bedroom flats,
increasing to 63m? for two-bedroom units. The one bedroom flats would have floor areas
ranging from 51m?2 to 55m?, with the flats in the attic of Block 1 having a floor area of 74m?
and 66m? to 80m? in the case of the two-bedroom units. The proposal therefore meets
these guidelines. All windows would receive adequate daylight and the amenities of future
occupiers would not be prejudiced by the location of adjoining properties. Furthermore, all
the ground floor units now have their own small patio areas, allowing areas of defensible
space to be created immediately outside their habitable room windows. As such, it is
considered that the proposed units would adequately serve the needs of future occupiers
in terms of internal space.

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document: 'Residential Layouts' also advises that
shared amenity space should be provided at a minimum level of 20m? and 25m? per one-
bedroom and two-bedroom units respectively and that space needs to be usable,
attractively laid out and conveniently located. As such, a total of 680m? of external amenity
space should be provided (320m? for Block 1 and 360m? for Block 2). This proposal would
provide 207m? of shared garden space for Block 1 and 166m? for Block 2 at the rear of
each block. In addition, the ground floor unit at the rear of Block 1 would have a private
patio area of 24m? and the two ground floor units on Block 2 would have areas of 21m?
and 25m?2. Also, on each of the first and second floors on Block 1, 3 of the 5 units would

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 30



have a 4m? balcony (only 2 one-bedroom units would not have a balcony), and a 59m?
communal roof terrace would be provided on the third floor. In Block 2 on the first and
second floors, all the one-bedroom flats would have 4m? balconies and the two-bedroom
units would each have 10m? areas. Therefore, Block 1 provides 314m? or over 98% of its
amenity space requirement to satisfy minimum standards, whereas Block 2 only provides
a total of 248m? or some 69% of its overall requirement.

However, the ground floor units at the front would also have small patio areas of 16m? and
24m? on Block 1 and 13m? and 27m? on Block 2. At the front of these areas are
communal/landscaping areas, with a 62m? seating out area provided between the two
blocks at the front of the car park. Although the Council's design guidance does not
include front garden areas as providing private amenity space as these areas are
generally not considered to afford adequate privacy and amenity to be counted as amenity
space, it is considered that this issue, particularly as regards flatted development where
shared amenity space by definition, is not particularly private, is not clear cut. For
instance, the seating out area at the front would not be particularly private and be more
exposed to traffic noise but that is not to say that it could not serve a more limited useful
purpose for some residents, less sensitive to noise and the gaze of passers-by,
particularly if they were carefully landscaped. Those more sensitive residents would still
have the option of using the rear amenity area(s). There have been a number of appeal
cases recently, such as the Reindeer Public House, Maxwell Road, Northwood (ref.
18958/APP/2009/2210) where Inspector's have not discounted amenity areas at the front.
If all the external amenity space is included, the overall amount of space for Block 2 at
350m? equates to 92% of that required by design guidance.

It is therefore considered that given the relatively minor nature of the shortfall in amenity
space, even if the areas at the front are not included, combined with the fact that all the
units in Block 2 where the shortfall is more pronounced would have their own patio or
balcony areas, a reason for refusal on this ground would not be justified. As such, the
scheme is considered to comply with policy BE23 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

A total of 36 parking spaces are proposed within the centre of the site, including 4
disabled person spaces, served by a new central vehicular crossover. This would require
alteration to the road markings of the central reservation on Victoria Road in order to
provide a new right hand turn lane.

Given the scale of the proposed development, in terms of vehicular trip
generation/attraction, the future trips associated with the development are unlikely to have
a significant effect on the capacity of the highway network.

With regards to the proposed residential use, the Council's Car Parking Standards state
that for flats without individual curtilages and with communal parking areas, a maximum of
1.5 spaces should be provided per unit which would give a total of 47 spaces.
Notwithstanding this, the London Plan standards state that for one and two-bedroom units
a maximum of one space or less should be provided per unit, emphasising that all
developments in areas of good public transport accessibility and/or town centres should
aim for less than 1 space per unit. The site lies on the edge of the South Ruislip Local
Centre, very close to local shops and a major supermarket, and is less than 500m away
from the Victoria Road Retail Park. The site is also within approximately 300m of South
Ruislip Underground and train stations.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 31



There are parking restrictions along Victoria Road and in South Ruislip Centre. In addition,
the site lies within close proximity to public car parks within South Ruislip. Accordingly, it is
not considered that the proposal would result in a significant increase in on-street parking
in the surrounding area.

Cycle storage provision has been shown within the undercroft area. Full details would be
required by way of condition should approval be granted, and a minimum of 31 spaces are
required, one space per unit.

On this basis, the Council's Highway Engineer does not raise any objections to the
proposal and its off-street car parking provision or the access arrangements. Alterations to
the road markings would be secured through S106/S78 Agreement. As such, the scheme
complies with policies AM7, AM9 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Urban Design

This issue has been largely addressed in part 7.07 of the report. At ground floor level, the
proposed building would have an external footprint of approximately 507m2. However, at
first and second storey level, part of the building would be cantilevered over the car park,
essentially creating an undercroft element to the car park, and additional floorspace for
the upper floors. The second storey would be set back from the building's main front
elevation, fronting Victoria Road, in order to provide roof terraces for flats at that level.
The proposed building would have maximum dimensions of approximately 30m by 28m by
14m high.

Given the nature of the immediately surrounding area, including the three-storey
residential block adjoining the site to the north west, and the large Sainsburys
Supermarket, which the plans indicate measures approximately 26m high, opposite, it is
not considered that the height, size or scale of the development would be out of keeping
with the character or appearance of the surrounding area.

The building has been designed to reflect its different uses. At ground floor level it would
be largely glazed to maximise the daylight in to the library and to provide a link to the
outside, emphasising that it is a public building. At first floor level, the windows would
project from the front elevation to create visual interest and a modern design, and at third
floor level the front elevation to the residential units would sit behind roof terraces. The
Design and Access statement suggests the provision of a pitched roof would add a
domestic character. The external walls to the building would be finished in fairface
brickwork and coloured render finish. the roof would comprise grey slates and the doors
and windows would be finished in grey powder coated aluminium.

The proposed design and materials would create the impression of a modern
contemporary building which is considered to be visually acceptable in this location.
Notably, the proposal would reflect the modern design approach which was adopted for
the youth centre, currently under construction to the south west of the site.

The Council's Urban Design Officer has raised no objections to the scheme in terms of
size, scale, height, bulk, design, etc. However, it has been suggested that additional tree
planting should be provided in the car park area. Given that a large part of the car park
would be provided under an undercroft, and the restricted space available in this part of
the site, this would not be possible. Details relating to landscaping will be further
discussed in part 7.14 of the report. However, it should be noted that following

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 32



discussions with the Council's Trees/Landscape officer amended plans were submitted
which show additional soft landscaping and tree planting to the site frontage, fronting
Victoria Road, and notably, the Council's Trees/Landscape Officer has raised no
objections. Accordingly, it is not considered that refusal could be justified on these
grounds.

Security

The development would incorporate measures to reduce the risk of crime. Should
approval be granted a condition would be required to ensure the development meets the
Metropolitan Police's 'Secured by Design' criteria. Notably the Metropolitan Police's Crime
Prevention Design Advisor has raised no objections to the scheme subject to conditions
regarding boundary treatment (which would be covered by the Council's standard
boundary treatment condition), CCTV, and details relating to the proposed children's play
area to ensure it is secure and not abused by unauthorised users.

7.12 Disabled access

The applicant's Design and Access Statement confirms that the proposed development
would comply with Lifetime Homes Standards, BS8300:2009 and Part M of the Building
Regulations. It confirms that level access would be provided to all floors, all access
controls to common parts of the building would be accessible and inclusive, and that WCs
and bathrooms throughout the development would be flexible to allow use by wheelchair
users. The Council's Access Officer has raised a number of points regarding the
bathrooms and proposed wheelchair accessible unit. However, should approval be
granted, it is considered that these issues could be satisfactorily addressed by way of
condition.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Policy 3A.11 of the London Plan (2008) states that Boroughs should normally require 50%
affordable housing provision on a site which has a capacity to provide 10 or more homes,
unless a Financial Viability Assessment indicates otherwise.

Circular 05/2005 acknowledges that in some instances 'it may not be feasible for a
proposed development to meet all of the requirements set out in local, regional and
national policies and still be economically viable.' It goes on to state that in such cases it is
for the local authority to decide what level of contributions are appropriate.

A Financial Viability Assessment (FVA) has been submitted which suggests that the
scheme can support an element of affordable housing and 16% of the scheme by
habitable room has been agreed which would be controlled by the S106 Agreement.

7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

There are two small groups of trees on the road frontage and two trees close to the rear
boundary of the site. These trees are not protected and the Council's Tree Officer advises
that they do not constrain the development, as no objection would be raised to individual
tree loss, provided replacement tree planting was carried out on site.

The submitted landscape plan makes adequate provision for landscaping at the front of
the site, including new tree planting, which would reflect the long line of tree planting on
the south-western side of Victoria Road. As such, subject to appropriate conditions, the
scheme is acceptable and complies with policy BE38 of the adopted Hillingdon unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The plans show refuse storage areas within the undercroft parking area. Block 1 would be
served by a 4m x 0.9m deep storage area, with Block 2 by a 6m x 0.9m area. It is

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 33



considered that the areas proposed would be large enough to accommodate the required
refuse storage provision. Additional space could be made available on site to provide
larger areas if required. Accordingly, further details would be required by way of condition
should approval be granted.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 4A.7 of the London Plan 2008 advises that boroughs should require major
development to show how they would reduce carbon emissions by 20% through
addressing the site's electricity and heat needs from renewable sources, wherever
feasible.

An energy statement has been submitted with the application, however it only
demonstrates that 13% of the energy would come from renewable energy sources without
adequate justification for not including additional technology to provide the remaining 7%.

However, the Council's Sustainability Officer advises that given the importance of the
applications and the commitment to Code for Sustainable Homes level 3 for the housing,
no objection is raised, subject to appropriate conditions to ensure compliance with Code
3.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy OE8 of the saved UDP seeks to ensure that new development incorporates
appropriate measures to mitigate against any potential increase in the risk of flooding.
Policies 4A.12, 4A.13 and 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) require that flooding
issues and the need for flood risk management and sustainable drainage are taken into
account, having regard to PPS25.

Much of the western half of the site is within Flood Zone 1, which has the lowest
probability of flooding, whereas most of the eastern half falls within Flood Zone 2.
Accordingly, a Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted in support of the application.
The Environment Agency have confirmed that they do not wish to be consulted on the
application and that the Council should use standing advice on their website and in PPS25
to assess the scheme.

In accordance with PPS25, due to the provision of residential units, the development
would be regarded as a 'more vulnerable' use. However, Table D.3, 'Flood Risk
Vulnerability and Flood Zone Compatibility' indicates that 'more vulnerable' uses falling
within Flood Zone 2 are appropriate. However, a sequential test should be used to
establish that more suitable sites are not available.

To this end, a flood risk sequential test has been carried out. This advises that the Council
is developing its Core Strategy and Strategic Housing Land Allocations and that currently,
there is limited information on other sites likely to come forward that are comparable in
size to the application site and the London Plan Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment only investigates 'large' sites over 0.25 hectare. Accordingly, a comparison of
other alternative sites would need to investigate other available 'windfall' sites that may be
considered reasonably available. However, there is a relatively low level of flood risk on
this site and measures identified in the Flood Risk Assessment would reduce the risk to a
negligible level. Also, safe access and egress in times of flooding can be maintained to
the site. Furthermore, this proposal is linked to the re-development of the adjoining library
site. The report concludes that given the above, the development will be sited in an area
with little or no flood risk, and there are no reasonably available alternative sites.

Therefore, it is not considered that the proposed development would lead to a significant

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 34



increase in flood risk. Appropriate conditions are recommended and the scheme is
considered to be acceptable, in accordance with policy OE8 of the saved UDP, policies
4A.12, 4A.13 and 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Noise

The site lies adjacent to Victoria Road, near a busy junction, and opposite Sainsburys
Service Yard. Accordingly, a Noise Assessment has been submitted in support of the
application. This confirms that whilst the site falls within Noise Exposure Category C, the
use of mitigation measures, such as use of double glazing and appropriate building
materials, would give sufficient noise attenuation for the residential areas. Notably,
Officers in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have raised no objections subject
to appropriate conditions to ensure the scheme is adequately protected from road traffic
noise.

Air Quality

The site does not fall within an Air Quality Management Area and, accordingly, there is no
requirement for the applicant to submit an Air Quality Assessment in support of the
scheme. Officers in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have confirmed that no
objections are raised to the scheme on grounds of air quality.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Points (i) to (vii), (xi) and (xii) have been dealt with in the main report. Points (viii), (ix), (x)
and (xiii) are noted but do not raise any material planning objections. Point (xiv) is noted
by other residential properties already overlook the playing fields and this relationship is a
normal one and natural surveillance is normally considered to improve safety. As regards
point (xv), land ownership is not a material planning consideration and correct certificates
have been served.

7.20 Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the UDP states that the Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate,
seek to supplement the provision of recreational open space, facilities to support the arts,
culture and entertainment activities and other community, social and education facilities
through planning obligations in conjunction with other development proposals.

The applicant has agreed in principle to fund the highway works and a 16% affordable
housing element (by habitable room) and provide contributions towards education, health
and library facilities in this part of the borough and construction training. These will be
secured by the proposed S106/S78 agreement.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

The application site does not raise any enforcement issues.
7.22 Other Issues

No other relevant planning issues are raised by this proposal.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 35



Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

Although the scheme exceeds the Mayor's density guidelines, the separation of this site
with the adjoining Plot A site which would also contain a significant element of residential
is somewhat superficial and although the approved development here is for a mixed
scheme, when the overall residential densities are taken for the larger site, the scheme
does comply with this guidance. Furthermore, it is considered that the proposed
development would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding
area and there would be no adverse impact on the residential amenity of existing or
proposed neighbouring occupants. An acceptable internal living environment would be
created for future occupants of this scheme and although the amenity space standard
would not be met, it is considered that the overall provision is acceptable. The parking
layout and access arrangements are acceptable. Also, part of the site is within Flood Zone
2 but a sequential test did not reveal a more appropriate site for the development and no
objections are raised by the Environment Agency. Accordingly, on balance, the proposal is
considered to comply with relevant UDP and London Plan policies and approval is
recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004)

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing

Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy

Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood Risk

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport

Planning Policy Guidance 24: Planning and Noise

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 36



Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Residential Layouts
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Accessible Hillingdon

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 37



...
Se
Z::EE\\7 Sel

Playing Fields

Playing Fields

Tennis Co

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site Address

South Ruislip Library Plot B
Victoria Road

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
67080/APP/2010/1420 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 38 May 2011

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 104 ABBOTSBURY GARDENS EASTCOTE

Development: 1 x one-bedroom, single storey detached dwelling with new crossover to front
and associated parking and amenity space (Outline application with some
matters reserved.) (Resubmission)

LBH Ref Nos: 67398/APP/2011/481

Drawing Nos: Design & Access Statement
Location Plan to Scale 1:125(
2878/01 Rev. A

Date Plans Received:  01/03/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 01/03/2011
1. SUMMARY

The proposal would appear as a stand alone bungalow and due to its siting and position, it
is considered that the proposal would result in a development which would appear out of
context in relation to the surrounding design and pattern of existing residential
development, resulting in a detrimental impact on the visual amenities of the street scene.
It is further considered that should the application receive consent it would set an
undesirable precedent for other proposals in the vicinity of a similar nature, which the
Council would find difficult to resist. Accordingly the application is recommended for
refusal.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, design and layout, would fail to
harmonise with the existing local and historic context of the surrounding area. The
principle of intensifying the residential use of the site through the loss/part loss of this rear
garden area would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and local
distinctiveness of the area. The proposal is therefore detrimental to the visual amenity of
the surrounding area contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), Policies 3A.3, 4B.1 and 4B.8 of the
London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004), Planning Policy Statement 3:
Housing (June 2010), and guidance with The London Plan: Interim Housing
Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
HDAS Residential Layouts
LPP 3A.5 London Plan Policy 3A.5 - Housing Choice
LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.
LPP 4B .1 London Plan Policy 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city.
LPP 4B.5 London Plan Policy 4B.5 - Creating an inclusive environment.
LPP 3A.3 London Plan Policy 3A.3 - Maximising the potential of sites

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises the rear garden area of 104 Abbotsbury Gardens, however
this plot of land would front Lowlands Road. Vehicular access to the site would be gained
at the point in the road where it turns to the north east at 90 degrees. The proposed
dwelling would stand alone on this section/side of the road with the remaining street scene
in this immediate vicinity comprising gardens and their rear boundaries.

Lowlands Road and other roads within close proximity of the application site predominantly
comprise two storey semi-detached houses with long gardens, a small number of which
have extensions and loft conversions with rear dormer additions, creating rooms within the
roof.

The site is within a developed area as identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) (Saved Policies September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a one-bedroom detached bungalow. The
dwelling would be a maximum of 7.2m wide and 8.4m deep, finished with a hipped roof,

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



2.6m high to the eaves and 4m high to the ridge. One off street parking space would be
provided on the frontage, accessed from Lowlands Road.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

67398/APP/2010/2562 Land Forming Part Of 104 Abbotsbury Gardens Eastcote

Erection of 1 one-bedroom, single storey detached dwelling with new crossover to front and
associated parking and amenity space (Outline application with matters relating to appearance,
landscaping and layout being reserved.)

Decision: 23-12-2010 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

This application is a resubmission of a previously refused application
(67398/APP/2010/2562), for a similar proposal, this application was refused on the
23/12/2010, for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development, by reason of its siting, design and layout, would fail to
harmonise with the existing local and historic context of the surrounding area. The principle
of intensifying the residential use of the site through the loss/part loss of this rear garden
area would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and local
distinctiveness of the area. The proposal is therefore detrimental to the visual amenity of
the street scene and the surrounding area generally contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007, Policies 3A.3,
4B.1 and 4B.8 of the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004), Planning
Policy Statement 3: Housing (June 2010) and The London Plan: Interim Housing
Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010).

2. The floor area for the proposed new dwelling is below the Council's minimum 50m2
required for a one-bedroom unit. As such the proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory
residential environment for future occupiers and is therefore contrary to Policy BE19 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3. The proposal fails to satisfy Lifetime Homes standards, contrary to Policy 3A.5 of the
London Plan (February 2008) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Accessible Hillingdon.

The current proposal has been amended and now shows a larger footprint, thereby
increasing the internal floor areas.

It is further noted the adjacent site has got an extensive site history, which is considered
relevant to this proposal, the most recently determined application, for the erection of a five-
bedroom detached bungalow with additional habitable accommodation in the roof space
(56032/APP/2010/2111), was refused on the 23/12/2010. The principle reason for refusal
was:

- The proposed development, by reason of its siting, design and layout, would fail to
harmonise with the existing local and historic context of the surrounding area. The principle
of intensifying the residential use of the site to the level proposed through the loss/part loss
of these significant garden areas would have a detrimental impact on the character,
appearance and local distinctiveness of the area. The proposal is therefore detrimental to
the visual amenity of the street scene and the surrounding area generally contrary to

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



UDP /

Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007), Policies 3A.3, 4B.1 and 4B.8 of the London Plan (Consolidated with
Alterations since 2004), Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (June 2010) and The
London Plan: Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010).

Prior to this, permission was refused and dismissed at appeal (for a 2 storey four-bedroom
detached house with additional habitable accommodation in the roof space
(56032/APP/2009/967)), the inspector concluded:

"I am drawn to the conclusion, notwithstanding the view of the previous Inspector, that the
principle of the site being suitable to accommodate development of the general scale
proposed. To my mind the term general scale does not establish a sufficiently precise
parameter to fetter my conclusions in respect of impact on character in this case. In my
view, the scheme, being of the scale proposed and in this location, would obtrude into the
open context of the informal vista of the rear gardens to the material detriment of the
character of the area. | consider the degree of harm identified here sufficient on its own to
merit the dismissal of the appeal, and as no express arguments have been put forward in
relation to the more effective or efficient use of land in the support of the case, its status as
garden land in relation to the amended definition of previously developed land set out in the
reissued PPS3 is not a matter on which the case turns."

Planning Policies and Standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Educational Facilities
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (June 2010)
The London Plan: Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010).

LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1

Part 2
BE13
BE15
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE23
BE24
BE38

OE1

AM7
AM14
HDAS

Policies:

Policies:
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.
Residential Layouts

LPP 3A.5 London Plan Policy 3A.5 - Housing Choice

North P
PART 1

lanning Committee - 19th May 2011
- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



LPP 4A3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.
LPP 4B.1 London Plan Policy 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city.
LPP 4B.5 London Plan Policy 4B.5 - Creating an inclusive environment.
LPP 3A.3 London Plan Policy 3A.3 - Maximising the potential of sites

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

29 neighbours and interested parties were consulted. A petition of 27 signatures and 7 responses
have been received, objecting to the proposal on the following grounds:

1. The proposal is out of keeping with the area, contrary to PPS3 and the revised London Plan.

2. We are against the development of back garden land into new housing and also for new access
roads to be built into this space from another road.

3. This will degrade the quality of the gardens that are characterisic of the local estate and lead to
additional developments of garden space which we understand are no longer permitted under new
planning rules

4. There are enough dwellings in the area already.

5. The current houses were purchased by residents who wanted to have space around them, this
type of development is not acceptable.

6. This would set a precedent.

7. The reason for the development is unrealistic (to help daughter get on the property ladder), but if
built this could be sold on the open market.

8. The area is prone to flood and this would add to the problems.

9. This development would affect wildlife in the area.

10. The access is on a blind corner and would constitute a hazard to other road users.

11. Vehicles would undoubtedly reverse onto the pavement.

12. The access is close to First and Middle Schools where parking is restricted and traffic
compromised on safety grounds.

13. Vehicles will inevitably park on the roadway, therefore the development cannot be viewed
separately from parking restrictions and disallowances.

14 The development would dwarf and completely overshadow the adjacent gardens resulting in loss
of privacy and amenity.

15.The land adjacent to the site has an oak tree which could be affected by the development
16.The applicant draws a comparison to a nearby development at 114, 116, 118 Abotsbury Gardens.
It should be noted the development is for a building similar in size but the site area is three times
larger and presents a less jarring visual effect. Furthermore this proposal was passed prior to the
new planning regulations.

17.This application is not materially different from the previous refused case.

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application be referred to committee.

Thames Water: With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make
proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface
water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or
regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final
manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal of Ground Water.
Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water
Developer Services will be required. Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage
infrastructure we would not have any objection to the above planning application.

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Veolia Water Company.

Internal Consultees
Tree/Landscape Officer:

This site is not covered by a TPO, nor within a Conservation Area. There are several trees (mainly
apple and yew) within the rear garden of 104 Abbotsbury Gardens, where the proposed dwelling is to
be constructed. There are also several trees (mainly pear and oak) within the rear garden of the
neighbouring property (106 Abbotsbury Gardens). As a group, these trees contribute to the arboreal
character of the area. Several of the trees within 104 will need to be removed to accommodate the
proposed dwelling, and several of the trees within 106 could be affected by construction-related
activity. The application should, therefore, be supported by a tree survey and tree protection plan.

With regards to landscaping, the plans show an area to be laid to lawn and an area to be used for
car parking. Further details should be provided to show soft landscaping (small trees/shrubs etc),
and that the materials to be used for the car parking area conform to SUDS recommendations.

Subject to conditions TL1, TL2, TL3, TL4 (lawn, planting plans and car parking layout/materials) and
TL6, this scheme is considered acceptable in terms of Saved Policy BE38 of the UDP. However, in
this case there is now another landscape-related consideration.

An inspector dismissed an appeal in August 2010 for a similar development. The inspector noted
that the gardens between the semi-detached houses in Lowlands Road and Abbotsbury Gardens
form part of a green vista, which strongly defines the locally distinctive context and suburban
character of the area. The inspector also noted that 'the extensive back gardens forming the appeal
site and its context make a strong contribution to the local distinctiveness and character of the area’,
which should be preserved or enhanced by proposed developments.

Therefore, the effect of the proposed development on the openness and character of the area needs
to be considered in this context, in terms of the relevant policies of the UDP and the London Plan.

Highways Officer:

No highway ground was applied on the refusal of the previous application ref. 67398/APP/2010/2562.
The highway aspect of this and the previous application is identical.

Consequently, there is no objection on the highways aspect of the proposals subject to conditions
being applied to provide 2.4m x 2.4m pedestrian visibility splays on both side of the access and
parking spaces shall be completed before the occupation of the development and shall be available
for car parking at all times thereafter.

In addition, the following informatives are recommended to be applied:

1. It is contrary to section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface water from private land to drain
onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage system.

2. The applicant is advised to contact the Council's Highways Team in respect of the construction of
the vehicle crossover.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



Environmental Protection Unit:

The above application relates to a new residential development, therefore will be introducing a new
sensitive use at the site. We have no specific information in relation to land contamination at this
site. If it is likely soil will be imported to the site as part of the development it is advisable to include
the following condition for imports to ensure they are suitable for use.

Condition to minimise risk of contamination from Imported Materials

No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported soils for
landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. All imported soils shall be tested for
chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted for approval to the Local
Planning Authority.

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted for their advice when using this
condition.

REASON

To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

Waste and Recycling Officer:

The plan does not show that a space has been allocated for the storage of waste. However,
Hillingdon is not a wheeled bin borough so a refuse bins or other containment would have to be
provided by the developer.

The current waste and recycling collection systems are:

- Weekly residual (refuse) waste, using sacks purchased by the occupier

- Weekly dry recycling collection, using specially marked sacks provided by the Council.

- Fortnightly green garden waste collection, three specially marked reusable bags provided by the
Council free of charge, additional three can be purchased by occupier.

The residents would be required to present the waste and recycling at the curtilage of the property
on the allocated collection days.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy BE13 of the Adopted Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007) states that
development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene and BE19 states the LPA will seek to ensure that new development
within residential areas compliments or improves the amenity and character of the area.

The adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD): Residential Layouts: Section 3.4
states this type of development must seek to enhance the character of the area. Section
4.10 of the SPD explains careful consideration should be given to the height of new
buildings and the surrounding building lines, as a general rule the front and rear building
lines should be a guide for the siting of new dwellings.

However, there have been a number of key changes in the policy context, since the
adoption of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007), adopted SPD guidance and these
include the adoption of The London Plan (consolidated with alterations since 2004), the

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



Letter to Chief Planning Officers: Development on Garden Land dated 19/01/2010, The
London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance adopted April 2010, and
new Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 3: Housing adopted June 2010.

In relation to National Policy the Letter to Chief Planning Officers clarifies that "there is no
presumption that previously developed land is necessarily suitable for housing, nor that all
of the curtilage should be developed" and commits to move this clarification to a more
prominent position within the PPS. It further clarifies that "the main focus of the
Government's position therefore is that local authorities are best placed to develop policies
and take decisions on the most suitable locations for housing and they can, if appropriate,
resist development on existing gardens". This guidance was published prior to submission
of this application and should be given appropriate weight in the assessment of the same.

The London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010) was
published following the national advice above and represents the Mayor of London's
guidance on how applications for development on garden land should be treated within the
London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that back gardens contribute to the objectives
of a significant number of London Plan policies and these matters should be taken into
account when considering the principle of such developments.

The guidance requires that "In implementing London Plan housing policies and especially
Policy 3A.3, the Mayor will, and Boroughs and other partners are advised when considering
development proposals which entail the loss of garden land, to take full account of the
contribution of gardens to achievement of London Plan policies on:

* local context and character including the historic and built environment;

* safe, secure and sustainable environments;

* bio diversity;

* trees;

* green corridors and networks;

* flood risk;

* climate change including the heat island effect, and

* enhancing the distinct character of suburban London,

and carefully balance these policy objectives against the generally limited contribution such
developments can make toward achieving housing targets."

Following on from this, Policy 4B.8 emphasises the importance of local distinctiveness,
and ensuring proposed developments preserve or enhance local social, physical, cultural,
historical, environmental and economic characteristics.

Notably, revised Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing, was published in April 2010 and, as
advised in the Letter to Chief Planning Officers, discussed above, clearly clarifies that not
all developed land is necessarily suitable for housing, nor that all of the curtilage should be
developed. It also makes it clear that well thought out design and layout which integrates
with and complements existing buildings and the surrounding local context is a key
consideration which needs to be taken into account when assessing proposals for
residential development.

The London Plan Interim Housing supplementary Planning Guidance, and revised Planning
Policy Statement 3 were both published prior to the submission of the application. As such
they carry significant weight and whilst they do not introduce additional policy, they do
provide clarity on the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan. Whilst there

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

is in general no objection to the principle of an intensification of use on existing residential
sites it is considered that in this instance the loss of this section of rear garden area in this
location, the resulting built development and the necessary creation of additional areas of
hardstanding with associated pedestrian and vehicular access to the site, would be
detrimental to the local and historical context of the area, which is characterised by semi-
detached properties with long rear gardens. When balanced against the limited contribution
the developments would make toward achieving housing targets in the borough it is
considered that the principle of the proposed residential development is contrary to Policies
3A.3, 4B.1 and 4B.8 of the London Plan, guidance within The London Plan Interim Housing
Supplementary Planning Guidance and Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing. Notably, the
Council's Development Plan Annual Monitoring Report 2008/2009 shows that the Council is
achieving its housing targets from sites elsewhere in the borough.

Density of the proposed development

The scheme would have a residential density which equates to approximately 150
habitable rooms per hectare (hrpha). As such this would comply with the London Plan
recommended guidelines having regard to the sites Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) score of 1b (which suggests a level of 150-200 hrpha, 30-50 units per hectare).
However, given that the development is for a single dwelling the relevance of the density of
the site in determining the proposal is limited.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The Deane Estate is characteristic 1930's development comprising semi-detached and
detached properties with a variety of house styles. Although properties within the
immediate vicinity of the application site are semi-detached there are also detached
properties on this Estate. The properties are situated on large plots of land and generally
have long gardens. The houses are set back from the road frontage by 8 metres to
establish building lines. The area therefore has an open character and appearance.

The SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts, Section 5.11 states that the intensification of sites
within an existing streetscape if carefully designed can enhance the appearance of the
surrounding area and the form and type of development should be largely determined by its
townscape context. New developments should aim to make a positive contribution to
improve the quality of the area, although they should relate to the scale and form of their
surroundings.

Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 3: Housing, states Whilst it is considered to be
strategically important that sufficient housing is delivered, it is made clear in the policy that
this should not be at the expense of quality. Paragraph 13 of this document clarifies this
advice, stating that 'Design which is inappropriate in its context, or fails to take the
opportunity available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it
functions should not be accepted.'

The proposed house would be set in from the site boundaries by a minimum of 1m, so as

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



to retain sufficient visual gaps around the dwelling and the design of the proposal may be
considered appropriate in some instances, and the SPD, Residential Layouts, Section 5.11
states the intensification of sites within an existing streetscape if carefully designed can
enhance the appearance of the surrounding area and the form and type of development
should be largely determined by its townscape context. That new developments should aim
to make a positive contribution to improve the quality of the area, and they should relate to
the scale and form of their surroundings. However, it is considered that this proposal
relates to a small single storey proposal that would be sited in a rear garden, adjacent to
the surrounding rear boundaries fronting this road, thereby failing to make any reference to
existing built development in the street scene and appearing out of context in relation to its
surroundings, and due to the siting of a dwelling in this location and its position in the street
scene, would result in an incongruous feature, which would fail to respect the established
pattern of residential development in the area.

In view of the above, it is considered that the proposal would result in a detrimental impact
on the visual amenities of the street and the wider area, and as such would be contrary to
Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007), the Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts and
Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 3: Housing (Nov 2006).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

With regard to the impact of the amenities on the adjoining occupiers, Sections 4.9 of the
SPD: Residential Layouts, in relation to new dwellings, states all residential developments
and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight, including habitable
rooms and kitchens. The daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be
adequately protected. Due to the single storey nature of the proposal and the distances to
the nearest residential properties it is not considered a material loss of outlook or light
would result to those properties. Therefore the proposal would comply with policies BE20
and BE21 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

With regard to privacy, the design guide requires that a minimum distance of 21m between
habitable room windows and private garden areas is provided in order to protect privacy.
The distance between the rear facing wall of the host dwelling and that of the proposed
new dwelling would be 21m. Therefore the proposal is not considered to result in a material
loss of privacy and would accord with Policy BE24 of the UDP (Saved Policies September
2007).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Section 4.7 of the SPD: Residential Layouts, states careful consideration should be given
in the design of the internal layout, and that satisfactory indoor living space and amenities
should be provided. The proposed internal floor space for the new dwelling would be 50m2.
The SPD states the minimum amount of floor space required for a 1-bedroom single
storey house sould be 50m2 and therefore the proposal would comply with this advice.

With regard to the size of the garden, the SDP: Residential Layouts: Section 4.15 states
that a 1 bed house should have a minimum garden space of 40m2, and the development
would comply with this advice, with a rear usable garden area of over 65m2. Whilst there
would be a reduction in the amenity area for the host dwelling, the amenity space
remaining would still be in excess of 120m2. Therefore the proposal would comply with
Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007).

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

With regard to highway safety, an acceptable access point with adequate visibility in both
directions would be achieved and given that one extra dwelling would not significantly add

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



7.11

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

718

to existing traffic flows, the proposal would not be detrimental to pedestrian and highway
safety.

Therefore the proposal is considered to comply with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

See Section 7.01 and 7.07.
Disabled access

The proposal comprises a single storey building and as such level access could be
provided throughout. The floor space would now enable the proposal to meet Lifetimes
Homes standards. As such, it is considered that should members wish to approve this
application it is recommended a condition is added requiring the submission and approval
of these details. Therefore, the proposal would comply with Policies 3A.5, 4B.3 and 4B.5 of
the London Plan (February 2008) and the Council's HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Council's Trees and Landscape Section does not raise objection to the proposal,
subject to suitable safeguarding conditions and thus it is considered acceptable in terms of
Saved Policy BE38 of the UDP. However, in this case there is another landscape-related
consideration. An inspector dismissed an appeal in August 2010 for a similar development.
The inspector noted that the gardens between the semi-detached houses in Lowlands
Road and Abbotsbury Gardens form part of a green vista, which strongly defines the locally
distinctive context and suburban character of the area. The inspector also noted that 'the
extensive back gardens forming the appeal site and its context make a strong contribution
to the local distinctiveness and character of the area', which should be preserved or
enhanced by proposed developments. Therefore, the effect of the proposed development
on the openness and character of the area is considered unacceptable and forms the
basis for the refusal reason.

Sustainable waste management

Section 4.40 - 4.41 of the SPD: Residential Layouts deals with waste management and
specifies bin stores should be provided for, and wheelie bin stores should not be farther
than 9m from the edge of the highway. No details have been provided in respect of this
issue, however, it is considered that should a permission be issued this matter could be
addressed by suitable condition.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 4A.7 of the London Plan (February 2008) requires developments to achieve a 20%
reduction of carbon dioxide emissions from on site renewal energy generation. Although no
details have been submitted as to how this could be achieved, it is considered that a
condition requiring the development to meet Code 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes
could have been attached, had the application been recommended favourably.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposal is not within a flood plain, however, concerns from local residents have been
raised with regard to the locality and land drainage problems. This matter was considered
by a previous inspector's decision in relation to the adjoining site (application
56032/APP/2005/1287 April 2007), for a four bedroom house. The conclusion was drawn
that these matters could be adequately dealt with by way of appropriate planning condition
requiring the submission of suitable schemes for approval by the Local Planning Authority.
As such, if members wish to approve this application it is recommended the above
approach it taken to deal with this issue.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

With regard to any noise or disturbance caused by the proposed house and vehicular
access road, it is considered the bend in Lowlands Road enables the proposed dwelling to
be accessed from a separate entrance to those serving existing properties in Lowlands
Road and in Abbotsbury Gardens. The access is situated over 30m from the rear elevation
of No.61 and therefore the proposed additional house is unlikely to give rise to an increase
in pollution, noise and disturbance to adjoining properties to justify refusal. As such, the
proposal is considered to comply with Policy OE1 of the UDP (Saved Policies September
2007).

Comments on Public Consultations

Points 4, 5, and 7 are not material to the planning consideration of this application and the
remaining points are addressed in the report.
Planning Obligations

Presently S106 contributions for education are only sought for developments if the net gain
of habitable rooms exceeds six. This proposal shows the creation of a private house with a
net gain of 3 habitable rooms and therefore no educational contribution would be sought in
this instance.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



10. CONCLUSION

The proposal, due to the impact a dwelling in this location would have on the established
pattern of residential development and historical character of the existing locality, would be
considered to result in an obtrusive feature in this street scene, to the detriment of the
character of the area. As such, the proposal is considered contrary to policies in the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and The London
Plan (2008).

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007

HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan (2008)

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Educational Facilities

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (June 2010)

The London Plan: Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010).

Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site Address

Land forming part of
104 Abbotsbury Gardens

Eastcote

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
67398/APP/2011/481 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 52 May 2011

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND NORTH OF CARLTON PLACE RICKMANSWORTH ROAD
NORTHWOOD
Development: Use of land as dog day care and kennels to include 8 kennels, 4 stables, 1

office block, 1 toilet block and 1 store room.

LBH Ref Nos: 67584/APP/2011/232

Drawing Nos: 1045/SK102A
1045/SK103
1045/SK104
1045/SK105
1045/SK101
Location Plan to Scale 1:250(
Transport Statement
Supporting Planning Statement Received 6th April 201
Highway Construction Materials Specificatior
1045/SK100F
Entrance/ Exit Cross Section Showing Line of Sight
Design & Access Statement

Date Plans Received:  01/02/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 02/02/2011
Date Application Valid: 22/02/2011 14/02/2011
24/03/2011
06/04/2011

1. SUMMARY

The application relates to the change of use of existing open pasture land to a dog training
facility together with dog day care creche and stabling for the applicants own horses. The
proposal would involve a fenced training area, 8 kennels with associated enclosures,
reinforced mesh surface to the car parking area, 3 stables, WC, storage building and
office.

The proposal is considered to represent inappropriate development within the Green Belt
and is therefore harmful by definition, furthermore, the ancillary structures, parking and
highway works and activities generated that are proposed to support the use, would
significantly increase the built-up appearance of the site, thereby injuring the visual
amenities of the green belt by reason of their siting, size, scale, materials, design, traffic
and activities generated. Furthermore, it has not been demonstrated that sufficient
measures have been taken to mitigate the environmental impact of the development by
noise nuisance from the kennels or by way of pollution of nearby watercourses through
animal or water waste.

In regard to the visual amenities of the site, the proposed use of a reinforced mesh
surface (which is supposed to allow grass to grow through) thereby maintaining a green
surface, is noted to have limited success and is generally only successful when used
occasionally and not on a daily basis as would be the case in this instance. In addition, the
application is considered to fail to make adequate provision for the protection and long-
term retention of the adjacent protected Horse Chestnut tree and because it does not
include landscaping proposals or make provision for comprehensive landscape

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



improvement, it would fail to enhance the visual amenity of the Green Belt.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The use of the land as a dog training and day care facility is considered to represent
inappropriate development within the Green Belt and is therefore harmful by definition,
furthermore, the ancillary structures, parking and highway works and activities generated
that are proposed to support the use would significantly increase the built-up appearance
of the site, thereby injuring the visual amenities of the green belt by reason of their siting,
size, scale, materials, design, traffic and activities generated. The development is
therefore contrary to policy OL1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) and PPG2: Green Belts.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application fails to make adequate provision for the protection and long-term retention
of the adjacent protected Horse Chestnut tree and also does not include landscaping
proposals or make provision for comprehensive landscape improvement, thereby failing to
enhance the visual amenity of the Green Belt. Therefore the proposal would fail to comply
with Policies OL2, OL26 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

In the absence of any proposed mitigation measures regarding the control of noise
emanating from the site in relation to the nearby residential properties, the application has
failed to demonstrate that the development will safeguard the amenities of those
properties. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal includes a substantial car parking area, which would be surfaced with a
reinforced grass-mesh surface. Due to the intensity of use by vehicles entering and
leaving the site, it is considered that this would result in a detrimental impact to the visual
amenities of the existing character and appearance of the area and the Green Belt
contrary to policy BE13 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) and PPG2: Green
Belts.

5 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient measures have been taken to mitigate
the environmental impact of the development by both animal and water waste resulting in
nuisance to nearby properties and polluting nearby watercourses. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policy OE1 of the Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

6 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal fails to make adequate provision for access for people with disabilities to the
detriment of the users of the proposed development and contrary to policy 4B.5 of the
London Plan 2008.

INFORMATIVES

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.
OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
oL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements
EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
PPG2 Green Belts
PPS9 Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is located on the west side of Rickmansworth Road, on the northern boundary of
the housing development known as Carlton Place. The area relates to an open field,
currently used as pasture land. The application site area comprises a corner section of this
field, covering 8,380m2 in a roughly square shape. There are mature trees and hedges on
all of the field boundaries, including a woodland to the west. The northern boundary of the
field demarcates the local authority boundary with Three Rivers District Council, this field
boundary also bounds the rear gardens of properties 8-14 (inclusive) Batchworth Heath,
with No.14 being the Prince of Wales Public House. The eastern boundary fronts
Rickmansworth Road, designated as part of London's Strategic Road Network (SRN) and
is also a London Distributor Road.

The site is within the Green Belt and a Countryside Conservation Area as identified in the

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Saved Policies (September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme
Planning permission is sought for the change of use of land to dog day care, involving:

i) Dog training area, defined by a post and rail fence 1.1m in height.

ii) 8 kennels: 1.2m x 2.4m, finished with a shallow mono-pitched roof at a maximum height
of 1.72m. The kennels would be standalone structures, constructed of shiplap boarding,
enclosed with 1m high metal mesh enclosures and would have a sloping inward overhang
to stop dogs jumping out. The kennels would not be suitable for overnight boarding.

i) Parking area, comprising re-inforced mesh surface. A total of 26 parking spaces are
provided, 6 of which are for staff, with the remainder for people dropping off their dogs or
those who have brought their dogs for training. Two disabled bays are proposed.

iv) Upgraded vehicular access, comprising permeable paving.

v) 3 stables, office, store and WC. The buildings would be situated in one block, this would
be 17.5m long x 2.5m deep, finished with a pitched roof with a maximum height of 2.6m,
involving an additional 1.45m overhang to the front and would be constructed using shiplap-
boarding with metal sheet roofing. The office, store and WC would be finished with a flat
roof at a maximum height of 2.5m. It is not clear from the submitted drawings what these
buildings would be constructed from, although the drawings are annotated to say “vandal
proof.'

The design and access statement states the proposal seeks to provide a dog training
school and daycare facility for up to 10 dogs per day (during daylight hours only). The
applicant states any uncollected dogs would be taken off site before it gets dark.

The site does not benefit from any utilities and the application does not propose to install
any. It is stated a small gas fired heater would be provided for the office and a portable
battery/solar powered light is proposed for the office, store and WC.

With regard to noise, the application contends, dog barking is associated with long stay
kennels where animals only benefit from a small amount of individual attention, whereas
here the dogs would be involved in training thereby receiving high amounts of attention
Dog training classes are proposed in daylight hours only, mostly at weekends, with some
individual 1:1 training in the week days. Training classes would be 1.5hrs long, with starting
times of 9am, 11am and 1pm, allowing a 1/2hr break between classes to allow people to
leave before the next class arrives. Each class would cater for up to 10 dogs.

The following timetable has been submitted for information purposes:

7.30 to 9.30am Dogs arrive or will be collected.

9.30 to 12noon Training session supervised by staff for some dogs, others will be taken to
be walked off site, i.e. local trust land/Council park/public countryside.

12 to 2pm Dogs will be resting and supervised in kennels or taken home where required.

2 to 4pm Training session supervised by staff for some dogs, others will receive a second
walk (depending on their owners' preference).

4 to 6pm Dogs are collected or taken home.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



3.3

The kennel staff would be separate from training staff. Owners of dogs coming in for
training would be present and involved in training sessions and as a result few animals
would be on site without their owners.

The dog creche facility would take a maximum of 5 dogs per day, whilst the creche would
be open at weekends, it is envisaged it will be busier during the week.

The revised/additional design and access statement comments that all animal waste from
the site would be collected and taken to an allotment for composting.

The applicants agent confirmed the stables would be for the applicants own use and would
not be used as part of the business. Two stables would be provided for the applicants own
horses and one for storage.

The business would be open from 8am to 7pm, however in the winter months, dogs would
be in their kennels from 3.30pm until they were collected or taken home. The business
would operate an arrangement where working people can leave their dogs in safety and
security of the facility whilst they go about their normal working day.

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
None

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

ou Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

OoL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

PPG2 Green Belts

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011

PART 1

- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 57



PPS9 Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

73 neighbours and interested parties were consulted and 3 petitions comprising a total of 100
signatures and 63 individual responses have been received, objecting to the proposal on the
following grounds:

1. Oversized and inappropriate commercial development on Green Belt land.

2. Loss of amenity to local residents.

3. Prejudice highway and pedestrian safety.

4. The use of the land is neither agricultural, horticultural or leisure, being solely a business.

5. The development fails to harmonise with the street scene with its nearest neighbours being
residential properties situated in the green belt.

6. The kennels will accommodate dogs whose barking would disturb neighbours. Also the whistles
and shouts associated to the training. Dog kennels are normally sited much farther away from
residential properties than that proposed here.

7. The proposal could result in noise and smells.

8. The noise will also affect the adjoining hospital.

9. The access to the site joins a busy dangerous road, which would be made worse by this
development.

10. The applicant is already advertising the site on her web site as her forthcoming site for training
dogs, yet no planning permission has been granted.

11. The visual amenities of the Green Belt would be damaged by the proposal. The site currently
comprises attractive open space and is not derelict. The resulting buildings would be clearly visible
from all directions.

12. The continual transportation of dogs to and from the site will result in noise and disturbance.

13. The proposal will cause a health and safety issue, in that dogs carry significant health risks
which are contagious to humans and other animals. They also attract insects and produce other
undesirable matter.

14. Central Government Planning Guidance Re Open Spaces, clearly states, in identifying where to
locate new recreational facilities, the LPA should avoid loss of significant amenity to residents,
neighbouring uses or biodiversity. The applicant claims this is a ‘recreational facility', whilst this is
clearly not, that aside this application would result in a huge loss of amenity thereby being in breach
of this advice (PPG17 20 (iii)).

15. Having visited a number of local kennels (all located at the rear of the owners property and
further away than the distance shown in this application). On arrival the dogs were quiet, but in all 4
cases as soon as the kennel owner approached, they started to bark continuously and very loudly.
We estimate the barking would be audible for approximately 7 mile.

16. The application states the buildings would be vandal-proof, this suggests vandals are expected
on the site, this would then encourage vandals onto the neighbouring residential sites.

17. The proposal would also have a severe impact on highway safety due to its proximity to the
access point of Carlton Place, the speed camera on this stretch of road, the sloped nature of the
road and these already dangerous conditions would be made worse by the virtue of the extra traffic
entering and leaving the site.

18. Central Government clearly states developers of open space will need to consult the local

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



community. A small number of poorly written supporting emotional letters (not from local residents),
of which none refer to the planning matters on the site and are therefore considered irrelevant. The
application is not widely supported by the local community.

19. In the summer, bats are seen flying around over the proposed site and it must be concluded they
roost here. Under UK law bats and their roosts are protected. The proposed commercial
development would clearly harm these bats and their roosts.

20. 8 kennels does not necessarily equate to eight dogs, sometimes dogs from the same household
are kept together.

21. The surrounding roads are very busy and an escaped animal would be a danger to road users.
22. We experience flooding on a regular basis, so our opinion is that drainage is a big problem. The
water board is likely to restrict drainage from the site into the main system .

23. 19 car-parking spaces will create unnecessary traffic.

24. The ground will be grass, therefore horse dung and dog fouling will not be easily to remove,
resulting in flies, smells, and health risks.

25. The application has clearly ignored all the issues on the Hertfordshire side of the county line.
There is a rare acid grass on the other side of White Hill, the whole area is common land, Area of
Scientific Interest, Green Belt, Listed Buildings, not to report these facts is outrageous.

26. Section 20 of the application forms does not answer opening times. | suspect they will be very
early and late for the arrival and collection of dogs.

27. There is no mention of a muck heap for the proposed stables, having a muck heap so close to
residential properties would not be acceptable. Dog waste has not been adequately dealt with.

28. Parking of 20 cars will injure the visual amenities of the green belt.

29. The site is adjacent a listed woodland of significant importance and an application for buildings
so close to this would be contrary to legislation.

30. The site will be purely for the applicant and her paying customers, not to benefit local residents
31. The revised layout makes the impact on the residents of Carlton Place even worse.

32. Mount Vernon Hospital is a major public facility which requires a quiet and stable environment for
treatment and recuperation of patients. | object as no noise impact assessment has been submitted
with the application and there is no evidence to the impact the proposal will have on sensitive
surrounding site users.

33. My customers would be put off using the pub garden due to the dog barking while they are trying
to relax.

34. The site is not within a built up area.

35. The comments that dogs won't bark are risible and could not be controlled.

36. Currently | look out onto a field. If approved | will look out onto metal roofs, cages and
hardstanding for 21 cars.

37. If approved | think it won't be long before horse care and overnight dog care is offered.

38. Horseboxes entering and leaving the site would cause mayhem.

39. Large numbers of horses could be kept in the adjacent field, resulting in no grass left in the
summer and a muddy field in the winter and if the land is not cleared of dung daily, associated
smells.

40. The responsibility of keeping horses and dogs at the site may lead to pressure to provide
permanent accommodation on the site for security reasons.

41. The care of up to 10 dogs a day is not economically viable and therefore the business is likely to
expand.

42. The application says dogs will be brought to the site by a van, minimizing the disturbance, so
why are 21 parking spaces needed.

43. The proposal will undoubtedly impact on the value of adjoining properties.

44. Clearly there would be a need to have an electricity supply to the site, especially during the winter
months when paying customers collect their dogs.

45. The transport statement has not provided a comprehensive assessment and has not taken into
account model shifts and highway safety implications.

Ward Councillors: Request that the application is presented to the North Planning Committee for

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



determination and object on the following grounds:

The application is for an oversized, commercial, not recreational facility on Green Belt land. The
siting of the buildings and associated works would clearly turn the open Green Belt into a
commercial development, contravening adopted policies.

The noise from dogs barking and whining will be able to be heard some distance away and will result
in loss of amenity to nearby residential properties, particularly in summer months when windows are
more often open.

The development would not harmonise with existing site features.

The proposal would also have a severe impact on highway safety due to its proximity to the access
point of Carlton Place, the speed camera on this stretch of road, the sloped nature of the road and
these already dangerous conditions would be made worse by the virtue of the extra traffic entering
and leaving the site.

The development is inappropriate and would set an undesirable precedent.

Nick Hurd MP: There appears to be considerable opposition to the application. The local view seems
that the application is not for open air recreational facilities but for a commercial use that is entirely
inappropriate for green belt land.

Clirs. Paula Hiscocks and David Sansom (Three Rivers District Council): This is inappropriate
development in the Green Belt as it constitutes a business. It would not preserve the openness of
the Green Belt with its numerous outbuildings and fencing required for the boarding of dogs. Dog
kennel facilities are not within the list of appropriate developments in the Green Belt either in PPG2
or Policy OL1

We are further concerned that there would be a need for external lighting in the winter months and
that the existing access would need to be widened to allow for two cars to pass, and this would be a
further erosion of the Green Belt.

Internal Consultees

Trees and Landscape Officer:

There are several trees on and close to this site in the Green Belt, including a tree belt adjacent to
the road, Oaks in the field, and a Horse Chestnut (off-site at Carlton Place and in the group G1 on
TPO 474) close to site access. These existing trees are features of merit that should be retained in
accordance with Saved Policies OL26 and BE38 of the UDP.

Saved Policies OL2 and OL26 also require comprehensive landscape improvement, landscaping
and tree planting, to enhance the visual amenity of the Green Belt, as part of any acceptable
development in the Green Belt.

The application does not include a tree survey or tree protection plan to BS 5837:2005, but the
revised plan does seem to show that all of the existing trees and vegetation will be retained.
However, the proposed access/cross-over will involve works, and possibly excavation, in proximity
to the protected Horse Chestnut at Carlton Place, but the application does not include an
arboricultural implications assessment or method statement to BS 5837, or any information to show
that this valuable tree will not be adversely affected by the development.

The application does not include any landscape proposals and, given the layout and extent of hard-
standing and buildings, which will adversely affect the visual amenity of the Green Belt, there is

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



limited scope for landscaping and tree planting.

The revised scheme includes a fairly large car park with a reinforced grass-mesh surface, which
depending on the intensity of use by vehicles may not be sustainable. The application does not
seem to consider and address this issue.

The application is unacceptable in terms of Saved Policies OL26 and BE38, because it does not
make adequate provision for the protection and long-term retention of the protected Horse Chestnut
tree, and in terms of Saved Policies OL2 and OL26, because it does not include landscaping
proposals and make provision for comprehensive landscape improvement and therefore fails to
enhance the visual amenity of the Green Belt.

Environmental Protection Unit:

With regards to the above application this site is located adjacent to flats at Carlton Place and there
are houses opposite on Rickmansworth Road and also to the north of the site.

As | have already stated, | have concerns regarding the potential noise from the proposed use of the
site. The site is proposed to be used for dog day care and as a training facility. This will involve quite
a number of comings and goings as dogs arrive and leave and also when they are taken out for
walks. As dogs are arriving or leaving there is a likelihood of barking. The construction of the kennels
is not very substantial and they would therefore have a limited effect in containing noise. The
additional information submitted moves 3 of the kennels to the boundary adjacent to Carlton Place.
Although this does split the kennels up it places these kennels very close to the flats at Carlton
Place.

They are proposing to have groups of 10 dogs arriving for training, with sessions held mostly over
the weekend. This number of dogs arriving on site could lead to problems with barking, particularly if
they are groups of young dogs. The applicants have not currently demonstrated that noise from this
development would not be an issue.

A noise report will be required before this application can be considered further. This should look at
predicted 5min Leq and Lmax levels from the development.

The applicants have not indicated how they will be disposing of waste water or provided details of a
suitable means of dealing with animal waste from the kennels or stables. They have stated that
surface water will drain to a local stream but this is not appropriate for waste water from the kennels
or stables. Composting at an allotment is not an appropriate method of dealing with the solid waste.
Due to the proximity of the stables to the flats at Carlton Place and the lack of information as to how
they propose to dispose of waste there is the possibility of problems with odour.

Licensing officer:

The Local Authority has taken the view for a number of years now that a dog creche falls within the
scope of the Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963 as it is a business which is providing
accommodation for other people's animals (there is no reference in the legislation to length of stay,
including overnight, as a determining factor). As such the proposed facility would require an Animal
Boarding Establishment licence and would be subject to the requirements of the legislation:

(a) that animals will at all times be kept in accommodation suitable as respects construction, size of
quarters, number of occupants, exercising facilities, temperature, lighting, ventilation and cleanlines:
(b) that animals will be adequately supplied with suitable food, drink and bedding material,
adequately exercised and (so far as is necessary) visited at suitable intervals

(c) that all reasonable precautions will be taken to prevent and control the spread among animals of

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



infectious or contagious diseases, including the provision of adequate isolation facilities

(d) that the appropriate steps will be taken for the protection of animals in case of fire or other
emergency

(e) that a register be kept

It is accepted that the legislation in its current form may not reflect modern day dog boarding
practices and therefore the Local Authority takes a common sense approach to the legislative
requirements when licensing such facilities.

Animal Welfare Act 2006 requires that steps are taken as are reasonable to ensure that the needs of
an animal are met. An animals needs are taken to include:

- its need for a suitable environment

- its need for a suitable diet

- its need to exhibit normal behaviour patterns

- any need it has to be housed with, apart from, other animals and
- its need to be protected from pain, suffering, injury and disease

With the above in mind the following comments are made in respect of the above application:

- The kennel size of 2.88sq m is acceptable as a holding pen only (minimum requirement for such a
unit is 2.3sq m) and can therefore only be used for temporary kennelling.

- It would appear from the site plan that each kennel will be located within an enclosure, however,
further details are required with regards to the size of the enclosure, its use (for example is it
envisaged that a dog will be secured in the kennel whilst resting or will the dog use the enclosure for
exercise and if so does the enclosure open into a secure area so that dogs are not able to escape
when being led to and from it) and its construction?

- The fencing for the kennel enclosure appears from the plan to be galvanised wire mesh. Solid
partition walls to a minimum height of 1.1m may be required if enclosures are to be used as an
exercise area for each dog.

- Where metal bars and frames are used they must be of a suitable gauge (approx 10-12mm) with
spacing adequate to prevent small dogs escaping or becoming entrapped via nose or paw. Further
details are required with regards to the galvanised railing on the front elevation of the kennel.

- Doors must open inwards towards the kennel, the door on the plan appears to open outward.
Doors must resist impact and scratching and be capable of being effectively secured. Further
details are required.

- The interior surfaces of the walls, floor and ceiling of the kennels must be of smooth, impervious
materials capable of being easily cleaned. Junctions between vertical and horizontal sections must
be coved. The floor must incorporate a damp proof membrane. Further details are required on the
internal structure of the kennel.

- Wood must not be used in the exposed construction of walls, floors, partitions, door frames or
doors in dog kennelling areas.

- The kennel must be so insulated as to prevent extremes of temperature. The kennel must be
maintained at a temperature of between 10C (50F) and 26C (79F). Whilst it is understood that dogs
will not be kept in kennels overnight there are animal welfare concerns with regards to dogs being
kept in unheated/uninsulated kennels even for 3-4 hours during the winter months.

- Design of the kennels must be such that excessive, localised draughts are not created and that the
area is kept dry.

- Further details are required with regards to drainage provision at the site. Kennels will need to be
cleaned daily/inbetween occupants and floor washings from each kennel, which may contain
urine/faeces, will need to be discharged somewhere. Contamination must not be allowed to pass
between kennels/enclosures.

- Further details are required with regards to the arrangements to be made for the removal, storage
and disposal of excreta, soiled material, food waste and food containers etc.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



- The site plan does not show an area for the storage and preparation of the food for the dogs, the
storage of eating and drinking vessels and bedding for the kennels. Such a facility will need to be
provided and include a sink with hot and cold water for washing of food equipment and a wash hand
basin with hot and cold water for staff. Consideration will need to be given to a means of washing
soiled bedding etc

- The site plan does not show an isolation facility although depending upon the distance between the
kennels/enclosures, the use of the enclosure and the means of partitioning (solid construction to a
minimum height of 1.1m) between each individual enclosure this may not be necessary. Further
information is required.

- No information has been provided with regards to fire prevention provision.

- No information has been provided with regards to provision for cleaning the kennels.

- Confirmation is required that there will be hot water provision at the wash hand basins in the toilet.
This is a requirement under welfare provisions of health and safety legislation.

- It is noted that there is no electricity supply to the site so it is not possible to provide artificial light to
the kennels. This would pose a health and safety risk for both staff and members of the public in
terms of safe access and egress, general movement around the site and working conditions,
especially in the winter months.

- Separate toilet facilities for male and female employees may need to be provided under welfare
provisions of health and safety legislation.

- There could be health and safety issues at the site e.g. slips, trips and falls with the removal of
paths, especially during the winter when the ground could be waterlogged etc.

The Animal Boarding Establishment Act 1963 does permit the Local Authority to specify conditions
on the licence as appear necessary or expedient for securing the objects specified in points (a) to
(e) above. This could include restricting the numbers of animals to be housed on the site, the length
of time animals are housed on site, no overnight boarding etc. There is also scope for a licence to
be reviewed if any problems occur.

Highways Engineer:

Proposed site is a plot of land located on the western side of Rickmansworth Road near Kewferry
Drive. Rickmansworth Road is designated as a London Strategic Road Network (SRN) and also
forms part of London Distributor Road. This section of Rickmansworth Road has a statutory 40mph
speed limit providing links to Rickmansworth and Chorleywood in the northwest and Pinner and
Harrow to the southeast, with on street parking restriction operational between 8am - 6.30pm.

Proposal is to use the land for dog day care and a maximum of 8 kennels and four stables with its
associated offices and storage room.

Although the applicant has failed to indicate number of potential full/part time staff within the
application form, attached Transport Statement indicates total of 5 full time staff and twenty one off
site car parking spaces including two disabled spaces, which appears to be sufficient.

The applicant is also proposing to construct an access road off Rickmansworth Road leading into
the car park with over 103m visibility splay that is in compliance with current guideline (Manual for
Street September 2010).

Although the UDP Saved policies (September 2007) and the London Plan do not specify the required
number of cycle parking for similar development, however, it is necessary to provide a minimum of
four covered and secure cycle parking as part of the development.

Consequently, no objection is raised subject to the following conditions and informatives being
applied:

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



Conditions

1. The use of the land for vehicle parking shall not be commenced until the area has been laid out,
surfaced and drained in accordance with details submitted and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and shall be permanently maintained and available for the parking of vehicles at all
times thereafter to the Authority's satisfaction

2. The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both directions and shall
be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and 2.0m above the level
of the adjoining highway.

3. The hardstanding area shall not be used until the means of vehicular access has been
constructed in accordance with the details submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority

Informatives

1. It is contrary to section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface water from private land to drain
onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage system.

2. The applicant is advised to contact the Council's Highways Team in respect of the construction of
the vehicle crossover.

Further comments received following the submission of additional information:

Revised drawings are unclear in terms of number of car parking, but trust that this has not been
reduced. Furthermore, can you please add an additional condition to ensure that the applicant will
NOT install gates at the entrance to the site or any proposed gate should be at least 10m from
highway boundary.

Access Officer:

Plans submitted would suggest that the buildings associated with the proposed facility would be
inaccessible to disabled people using wheelchairs. The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people
accessing goods, facilities and services from discrimination on the basis of a protected
characteristic, which includes those with a disability. The Act states that service providers should
think ahead to take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

The following observations are provided:

1. The two accessible parking bays proposed should be a minimum of 4.8m x 2.4m and marked and
signed in accordance with BS 8300: 2009.

2. Paths forming access routes should be a minimum of 1.2m clear wide, no steeper than 1:20
(unless designed as a suitable ramp), non-slip, well lit and clearly defined using texture and visual
contrasts. The proposed hoggin and clinker pathway(s) should be laid such that they comply with
the requirements of BS 8300:2009.

3. The proposed office accommodation should provide wheelchair access for both customers and
staff. In this instance, ramped access would be acceptable provided the design that accords with
Part M to the Building Regulations 2000 (2004 edition). Handrails should be provided on both sides
and stepped access should be maintained in addition to the ramp.

4. The proposed plan does not currently include any WC provision for disabled people and at least
one accessible unisex toilet is required. It may be more beneficial to provide one large cubicle that
would be accessible to everybody, as opposed to two smaller toilet compartments, which would
exclude wheelchair users. Reference to Part M to the Building Regulations 2000 (2004 edition) is
advised.

5. The accessible toilet should be signed either Accessible WC or Unisex. Alternatively, the use of
the wheelchair symbol and the words Ladies and Gentlemen or Unisex would be acceptable.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



Conclusion: No obijection is raised provided the above can be secured by way of suitable planning
conditions attached to any grant of planning permission.

Waste Development Manager:

a) The proposal is for kennels. The occupiers would have to make an arrangement with either the
Council or a licensed waste carrier for the collection of the waste produced from the premises.

b) As the producers of waste from a commercial premises the occupiers have a Duty of Care to
contain the waste safely until it is collected by the Council or a licensed waste carrier.

c) The dog waste would have to be collected by a specialist contractor and dealt with through
appropriate treatment, possibly clinical waste incineration.

d) The waste from the office could be collected using a sack collection system.

e) The collectors should not have to cart a 1,100 litre bulk bin more than 10 metres from the point of
storage to the collection vehicle (BS 5906 standard). Collectors should not have to carry refuse
sacks more than 15 metres.

f) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no more than
1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the storage area is raised
above the area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is needed to safely move the
bin to level of the collection vehicle.

Sustainability Officer:

The applicant states: It must be emphasised that the proposed facility is not for residential boarding
kennels.

However, it goes on to state: The primary purpose of the business is dog training, but training cannot
take place for the entire day, so other activities are required in order to maintain the wellbeing of the
animals. An essential element of this are the kennels, which provide a place for the dogs to rest,
feed and shelter (during times of inclement weather) etc.

The Animal Boarding Establishments Act of 1963 provides the regulations for licensing such
facilities which | assume will be required from the Council. The DEFRA guidance states:
Establishments where the boarding of animals is being carried on as a business are subject to the
1963 Act, which requires such establishments to be licensed by the local authority. For the purpose
of this Act the keeping of such establishments is defined as the carrying on at any premises,
including a private dwelling, of a business of providing accommodation for other people's cats and
dogs. The licence is granted at the discretion of the local authority which may take into account the
suitability of the accommodation and whether the animals are well fed, exercised and protected from
disease and fire.

| don't see how the kennels would be appropriate. The applicant suggests they would be akin to a
small wooden outbuilding which is where they would stay when the weather gets bad. | don't think
we would be willing to see a dog stuck in a small wooden box in the pitch black, in the cold and wet
whilst it waits for its owner.

Officer comments: The LA's licensing officers comments are stated above.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within the Green Belt. Policy 3D.9 of the London Plan seeks to maintain
the protection of Londons Green Belt with a presumption against inappropriate
development except in very special circumstances. The reference to inappropriate
development flows directly from Planning Policy Guidance Note 2 (PPG2), which sets out

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

national planning policy on Green Belt. PPG2 states that the most important attribute of the
Green Belt is its openness. Paragraph 3.4 states that the construction of new buildings in
the Green Belt is inappropriate unless it is for the following purposes:

- Agriculture and forestry;

- Essential facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation; for cemeteries, and for other
uses of land which preserve the openness of the Green Belt and which do not conflict with
the purpose of including land in it;

- Limited extension, alteration or replacement of existing dwellings;

- Limited infilling in existing villages and limited affordable housing for local community
needs under development plan policies according with PPG3;

- Limited infilling or redevelopment of major existing developed sites identified in adopted
local plans, which meets the criteria in paragraph C3 or C4 of Annex C.

PPG2 makes clear that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green
Belt, and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. The guidance adds
that such circumstances will not exist unless the harm is clearly outweighed by other
considerations and that it is for the applicant to show why permission should be granted.

Policies in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan endorse national guidance.
Policy OL1 states that within the Green Belt, as defined on the Proposals Map, the
following predominantly open land uses will be acceptable:

- Agriculture, horticulture, forestry and nature conservation;

- Open air recreational facilities;

- Cemeteries

The Local Planning Authority will not grant planning permission for new buildings or for
changes of use of existing land and buildings, other than for purposes essential for and
associated with the uses specified at (i), (ii) and (iii) above. The number and scale of
buildings permitted will be kept to a minimum in order to protect the visual amenity of the
Green Belt. The proposal does not conform to the types of development allowed by Policy
OoL1.

The application relates to the change of use of open pasture land to a dog training facility,
dog day care creche, stables, associated structures and car park. The application
contends the proposal would be considered as appropriate development in the Green Belt,
as it would fall within the definition of ‘open air recreational facilities'. However, it is
considered whilst there may be open air elements to the proposal, the primary purpose of
the development is a commercial dog care facility, with dog day care provided whilst their
owners are at work. Dog kennel facilities are not listed as “appropriate' development in the
Green Belt in either PPG2 or Policy OL1. As such, the proposal would be considered
inappropriate development within the Green Belt and therefore the principle of the
development would be unacceptable.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

This site is situated within the designated Green Belt. The application seeks permission to
use the site for a dog training and day care facility, together with stabling for the applicant's
horses and associated ancillary structures and works.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



PPG2 states that the construction of new buildings inside a Green Belt is inappropriate
unless it is for certain specified purposes. The application proposes the development
relates to an “outdoor recreational facility', however, it is considered the application relates
to a commercial dog care facility involving daytime kenneling. Whilst it is noted elements of
the proposal would relate to the open area, it is further noted dog kennel facilities are not
listed within the list of appropriate uses. A supporting planning statement submitted for the
application commented that, the business operates an arrangement whereby working
people can leave their dogs in the safety and security of the facility whilst they go about
their normal working day. Therefore it is not considered to be an open air recreational use
in the Green Belt, such as Golf, and would therefore be inappropriate.

PPG2 further states, that the visual amenities of the Green Belt should not be injured by
proposals for developments which could be visually detrimental by reason of their siting,
materials or design. Also that new buildings are inappropriate unless they are required for
the essential needs for outdoor sport or outdoor recreation which preserves the openness
of the green belt. Whilst, it is noted the application involves the provision of stabling and this
is given as an example of a new building that could be considered essential to the wider
site use. It is considered the proposed developments would not be ancillary to the wider
site use, but rather form part of the primary use of the development, failing to preserve the
openness of the Green Belt.

Policy OL1 of the Adopted UDP Saved policies (September 2007) sets out appropriate
uses of land and buildings within these areas, as discussed above. The proposal is not
considered to be an accepted use within the Green Belt. Furthermore, this policy states the
LPA will not grant permission for buildings other than for purposes essential for and
associated with one of the accepted uses. As such, the proposed buildings and intended
activities would not constitute an appropriate or essential use of this green belt site. Whilst,
the proposal would be reasonably well screened from the wider area, clear vantage of the
development would be gained from nearby residential properties and it is considered the
development would have a detrimental impact upon the visual amenities and openness of
the green belt. As such the proposal is considered contrary to Policy OL1 of the UDP
Saved Policies (September 2007).
7.06 Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Due to the existing boundary treatments and site surroundings the use and ancillary
buildings/works would be largely screened from the wider area. However, the proposal
would be clearly visible from the properties on the northern boundary of Carlton Place and
those properties which back onto the northern boundary of the site (Batchworth Heath).
Whilst it is considered the post and rail fencing to the dog training area, together with the
dog kennels and stables that would be finished in ship-lap boarding would have a rural
appearance and therefore would not appear out of context in relation to their surroundings,
concern is raised with regard to the remaining buildings (WC, office and storage building),
which due to their design and construction, would fail to visually integrate with their
surroundings resulting in obtrusive features. Furthermore, it is considered the proposed
size and proximity of the car parking area in this location would appear out of context in the
countryside location and whilst it is acknowledged the revised layout plan shows the use of
a reinforced mesh surface (which is supposed to allow grass to grow through) thereby
maintaining a green surface, it is noted the limited success of this surface material, and is
generally only successful when used occasionally and not on a daily basis as would be the
case in this instance.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



As such, it is considered the proposal would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the
existing character and appearance of the area, and is therefore contrary to policy BE13 of
the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The issues relating to noise and disturbance are covered in Section 7.18.

With regard to loss of light, outlook or privacy to the adjacent properties at Carlton Place,
the revised layout plan now shows the siting of the main structures behind an existing
garage block and ancillary structure (belonging to Carlton Place) and boundary comprising
mature trees and hedges. The car park surface is now indicated to be finished with a
reinforced mesh surface to allow grass to grow through (see impact on the area above)
and the dog training area would be surrounded by post and rail fencing, that would not
appear out of context in a countryside setting. As such, it is considered that the existing
residential properties would not be affected by either loss of light, outlook or privacy. As
such the proposal is considered to comply with to Policies BE20 and BE21 of the UDP
Saved Policies (September 2007).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The highway engineer has been consulted considers that although the applicant has failed
to indicate number of potential full/part time staff within the application forms, the attached
Transport Statement indicates a total of 5 full time staff and twenty one off site car parking
spaces including two disabled spaces to be provided and this is considered to be
sufficient.

The applicant is also proposing to construct an access road off Rickmansworth Road
leading into the car park with over 103m visibility splay that is in compliance with current
guidelines (Manual for Street September 2010).

Although the UDP Saved policies (September 2007) and the London Plan do not specify
the required number of cycle parking required, it is considered a minimum of four covered
and secure cycle parking spaces should be provided and this could be covered by a
condition in the event of an approval.

Consequently, no objection is raised subject to safeguarding conditions and informatives
being applied and therefore the proposal would accord with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
UDP Saved policies (September 2007)

7.11 Urban design, access and security

See Sections 7.05 and 7.07.
7.12 Disabled access

The application as originally submitted showed the hard surfaced areas constructed from
compacted hoggin, the revised proposal has now removed all the proposed paths from the
site and the car-park has been reduced and this area would be finished with a reinforced
mesh surface. Plans submitted would suggest that the buildings associated with the
proposed facility would be inaccessible to disabled people using wheelchairs. The Equality
Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a protected characteristic, which includes those with a
disability. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take steps to address
barriers that impede disabled people. Had the other principle issues to the application not
arisen further details would have been sought in relation to the accessibility of the site. As

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



such it is considered that the proposal has not demonstrated its compliance with the Policy
3A.4 of the London Plan (2008).
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The trees and landscape officer has commented that the application does not include a
tree survey or tree protection plan to BS 5837:2005, however, the revised plan does seem
to show that all of the existing trees and vegetation will be retained. However, the proposed
access/cross-over will involve works, and possibly excavation, in proximity to the protected
Horse Chestnut at Carlton Place and the application does not include an arboricultural
implications assessment or method statement to BS 5837, or any information to show that
this valuable tree will not be adversely affected by the development.

The application does not include any landscape proposals and, given the layout and extent
of hard-standing and buildings, that would adversely affect the visual amenity of the Green
Belt, there is limited scope for landscaping and tree planting.

The revised scheme includes a fairly large car park with a reinforced grass-mesh surface,
which depending on the intensity of use by vehicles may not be sustainable. The
application does not seem to consider and address this issue.

The application is unacceptable in terms of Saved Policies OL26 and BE38, because it
does not make adequate provision for the protection and long-term retention of the
protected Horse Chestnut tree, and in terms of Saved Policies OL2 and OL26, because it
does not include landscaping proposals and make provision for comprehensive landscape
improvement and therefore fails to enhance the visual amenity of the Green Belt.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

No details have been supplied in relation to the disposal of waste water. The application
forms state surface water would be disposed of into the existing water course. The
revised/additional design and access statement comments that all animal waste from the
site would be collected and taken to an allotment for composting.

The waste and recycling officer has commented that the proposal is for kennels. The
occupiers would have to make an arrangement with either the Council or a licensed waste
carrier for the collection of the waste produced from the premises. As the producers of
waste from a commercial premises the occupiers have a Duty of Care to contain the
waste safely until it is collected by the Council or a licensed waste carrier. The dog waste
would have to be collected by a specialist contractor and dealt with through appropriate
treatment, possibly clinical waste incineration.

Furthermore, the Councils Environmental Protection Officer has commented that the
applicants have not indicated how they will be disposing of waste water or provided details
of a suitable means of dealing with animal waste from the kennels or stables. They have
stated that surface water will drain to a local stream but this is not appropriate for waste
water from the kennels or stables. Composting at an allotment is not an appropriate
method of dealing with the solid waste. Due to the proximity of the stables to the flats at
Carlton Place and the lack of information as to how they propose to dispose of waste there
is the possibility of problems with odour.

As such the proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient measures have been taken to
mitigate the environmental impact of the development by both animal and water waste

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



resulting in a nuisance to nearby properties or polluting nearby watercourses.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

The sustainability officer has been consulted with regard to the issues raised relating to
bats and the possible affects the proposal could have on them. No concerns have been
raised, however, it is recommended if a permission were to be granted then conditions
should be applied to the development to control any external lighting used on the site.
Therefore, subject to this mitigation measure the proposal would comply with PPS9 and
therefore also with policy EC5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007)
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become detrimental to the
character or amenities of surrounding properties, and Policy OE3 deals with development
which has the potential to cause noise annoyance.

The application is located adjacent to flats at Carlton Place, there are houses opposite on
Rickmansworth Road and also to the north of the site (Batchworth Heath). The application
proposes a dog training facility together with dog day care crche facility and 3 stables.

Concern is raised regarding the noise impact form the proposed site use. These concerns
are outlined as follows:

Training classes:

The proposal suggests up to 10 dogs would be involved in training classes at any one time.
These would take place mainly at the weekends. The classes would start at 9am and finish
at 2.30pm, although it is considered there would be additional time either side of this as
people arrived and left. The classes would have 30mins between them to allow for one
group to leave before another arrives. In between, it is considered that these classes could
result in up to 20 vehicular movements with the associated noise of parking, manoeuvring
and doors opening and closing. Furthermore, while the classes were being run, it is
accepted most dogs in training would be quiet, however there would still be the resulting
whistles and shouts from the trainers and handlers.

Kennelling/Day care facility:

Due to the construction of the kennels, which are not very substantial, together with the
open runs, they would have a limited effect in containing noise. Whilst it is acknowledged
the intention would be that dogs would be kept quiet, it is also noted dogs when they are out
of their home environment can behave very differently and due to the close proximity of the
development in relation to surrounding properties it is not considered this matter could be
adequately controlled. The supporting information states up to 5 dogs would be
accommodated in the facility, and therefore it is not clear why 8 kennels are proposed.
There is further concern that any dogs taking their rest time in the kennels when training
classes were taking place would be disturbed with the possible result of additional barking.

It is noted, the example booking form for the facility, confirms if a dog shows aggressive
tendencies towards a member of staff or its behaviour becomes uncontrollable or a
nuisance beyond reasonable acceptance, then it will be placed in one of the boarding
kennels until the owners return. It has not been demonstrated how this would be dealt with
from a noise nuisance perspective.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

The applicant has not demonstrated that noise from this development would not be an
issue. A noise report would be required before this application can be given further
consideration. This would need to look at predicted 5min Leq and Lmax levels from the
development.

With regard to smell nuisance, the application does not contain information of how stable
waste would be dealt with. The use of stables for horses normally also involves the storage
of dung and dirty bedding in a dung heap. This can result in both smell and fly nuisance and
due to the close proximity of adjoining residential properties together with the lack of
information provided the application has failed to demonstrate that this would not have an
adverse affect to residential amenity.

It is considered, due to the activities generated by the proposed use, this could result in
increased noise, smells and disturbance to adjoining properties (possibly at anti-social
times of the day) reducing their residential amenities. As such, the proposal is considered
contrary to policies OE1 and OE3 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).
Comments on Public Consultations

Points 10, 37, 39, 40, 41 and 43 would not be material to the consideration of this
application. The remaining points are addressed in the full report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application
Other Issues

None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposal would fail to accord with adopted Green Belt Policies.
Furthermore, it has not been possible to assess the impact of this use on the wider
environment. As no information has been provided with regard to mitigation measures in
relation to the environmental impact of the development by noise, animal and/or water
waste. Therefore the application is considered contrary to adopted policy and as such
recommended for REFUSAL.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007
The London Plan (2008)
PPG2: Green Belts

Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



Pressure
Regulating
Station

——

—_—
e

Batchworth Heath H

(PH)

Prince
of Wales

—
—_——

—_——
o ——
—_—
—

L

—

-
—_——
——
e -
—_——

P :: Birken ,
o ! Court *
g
z
% H Birken Mews
9
:
S
5 |
'.-'. :I‘.: :I Kevere :' D:E
H ! Court : [ :1
. ““ I', I: E :: E Greenad
A o
i e
E ' ‘, ' ,"'./ —— EI Sub Sta
Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary Land north of Carlton Place OF HILLINGDON
) Planning,
For identification purposes only. RICkmanSWOI'th Road Environment, Education
This copy has been made by or with Northwood & Communlty SerVIces
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Mlddx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents ; ; ; . 4
Act 1988 (the Act) Planning Application Ref: Scale !
Unless the Act provides a relevant 67584/APP/201 1/232 1 :1 ,250
exception to copyright. % 1-;“ ‘_
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Plannmg Committee Date 1 ‘t‘
London Borough of Hillingdon —~
100019283 2011 North Page 73 May 2011 (-[\I’[ LLINGDON
LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 186 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER
Development: Change of use from photographic studio to accountancy office (Use Class
A2)

LBH Ref Nos: 2294/APP/2011/415

Drawing Nos: 01A
02A
Location Plan to Scale 1:125(

Date Plans Received:  23/02/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 01/03/2011
1. SUMMARY

The application relates to the change of use of an existing vacant Photographic
studio/shop (Sui generis) to a use as an accountancy office (A2 Financial and
Professional Services Use).

The site is within a Secondary Shopping Area of Eastcote Town Centre as identified in the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Saved Policies (September 2007). The UDP
Saved Policies (September 2007) states that the Local Planning Authority will exercise
strict control over the loss of shops to other uses. However, this unit has been in use as a
photographic studio with associated retail shop element in excess of 20 years. The Land
Use Gazetteer lists a photographic studio with a retail element as a Sui-generis use i.e not
within any use class. Therefore, no objection is raised to the proposed change of use to
an A2 accountancy use as the proposal would not result in the loss of a retail unit,
classified as an A1 use, and would thus not change the proportion of retail use within the
centre. As such, the proposal would not conflict with any of the relevant adopted policies
within the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Therefore subject to condition the application is recommended for Approval.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2 OM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



REASON

To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No air conditioning plant shall be used on the premises until a scheme which specifies the
provisions to be made for the control of noise emanating from the site or to other parts of
the building, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved
by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full
compliance with the approved measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas
S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas
LPP 3D .1 London Plan Policy 3D.1 - Supporting Town Centres.
LPP 3D.3 London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail
Facilities.
3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

6 125 Consent for the Display of Adverts and llluminated Signs

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

7 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings’

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

8

It is advised that the installation of roller shutters at this site would require planning
permission. The Authorities Adopted Design Guidance on “Shopfronts and Signage'
Section 9.0 - 9.9 deals with security measures, and comments as follows, whilst the
councils recognises the need for premises to be adequately secured and protected
through appropriate security devices, it is concerned the character of the area can be
adversely effected by inappropriate physical security measures. Solid and visually
impermeable roller shutters can create a forbidding and unsafe environment after dark,
preventing passive surveillance (both into the street and the shop). Their appearance also
adversely affects the character and appearance of the building and the area. These types
of shutters are easy to vandalise with graffiti, which in turn can further negatively affect the
character and image of the area. Therefore, external solid roller shutters (including
punched, perforated or micro-perforated shutters) should be avoided.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a vacant photographic studio/shop situated on the west
side of Field End Road, at the end of a parade of units which wraps round the corner to
front EIm Avenue. This unit is two storey with a pitched roof and has a single storey
element to the rear. The site is within the Secondary Shopping Area of Eastcote Town
Centre and the Eastcote (Morford Way) Conservation Area as identified in the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Saved Policies (September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of the commercial unit from a
photographic studio with retail element to a financial and professional services use
(accountancy office). There are no exterior alterations to the building proposed as part of
this application.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



3.3 Relevant Planning History

2294/C/85/1574 186 Field End Road Eastcote Pinner

Alterations to elevation (P)

Decision: 09-10-1985 Approved

2294/D/85/3114 186 Field End Road Eastcote Pinner
Advertisment (P)

Decision: 16-10-1985 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History
None

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

LPP 3D.1 London Plan Policy 3D.1 - Supporting Town Centres.

LPP 3D.3 London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail Facilities.

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- 13th April 2011
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



24 neighbouring properties and interested parties have been consulted and no responses have been
received.

Internal Consultees
Environmental Protection Unit:

The following condition is suggested.

No air conditioning plant shall be used on the premises until a scheme which specifies the
provisions to be made for the control of noise emanating from the site or to other parts of the
building, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter,
the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Urban Design and Conservation Officer:

The current application is for change of use only with no alterations proposed to the shop front or
fascia. Therefore, there would be no objections from a conservation view point.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The Local Planning Authority's aim is to retain the retail function of all shopping areas to
meet the needs of the area each serves. Shops grouped conveniently together assist the
process of search for and comparison of goods and hence attract shoppers. As such the
Local Planning Authority will exercise strict control over the loss of shops to other uses.
However, in this particular case, it is considered that although there is a retail element to
the existing use, the authorised planning use for this unit is currently a Sui-generis use, as
such, in planning terms the proposal is not considered to result in the loss of an A1 retail
unit.

Policy S6 of the UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007) states changes of use
applications will be granted where a frontage of design appropriate to the surrounding area
is maintained or provided, the use would be compatible with neighbouring uses and will not
cause unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby residential properties and would have no
harmful effect on road safety or worsen traffic congestion. The proposal does not involve
an alteration to the frontage and it is not considered that the traffic generation between the
existing use and the proposed use would be materially different such as to warrant the
refusal of planning permission. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with policy
S6 of the UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007).

Policy S12 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) relates to change of use
applications within Secondary Shopping Areas of Town Centres. This policy sets out where
the loss of a retail use would be acceptable and then subsequently discusses what types
of uses would be considered appropriate in these areas. However, it is accepted the loss
of the retail use at this site has already been established by previous long term use of the
site, and it is further noted that an A2 (financial and professional services) is listed as an
acceptable alternative use in Secondary Shopping Areas. As such, the proposal is
considered to comply with this policy.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is within the Eastcote (Morford Way) Conservation Area. The application relates
solely to the change of use of the building and therefore the Conservation and Urban
Design Officer has not raised an objection to the proposal. As such, the application is
considered to accord with policies BE4 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) requires new development to
harmonise with the appearance of the existing street scene and area, and Policy BE15
requires alterations to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form, architectural
composition and proportions of the original building.

There are no external alterations proposed to the building as part of this application and
therefore the proposal is considered to comply with the intensions of Policy BE13 and
BE15 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

The application relates solely to the change of use of the building and therefore it is not
considered a material loss of light, outlook or privacy would rise as a result of this proposal.
As such, the application is considered to accord with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

There is no off-street car parking for this site, however, it is not considered the traffic
generation or parking requirement between the existing use and the proposed use would
be significantly different. The proposal would therefore comply with AM7 and AM14 of the
UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

Not applicable to this application.
Disabled access

Not applicable to this application, the application relates to the change of use of the building
only and no alterations are proposed
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Policy OE1 states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted
if the impact can be mitigated. The Environmental protection officer has not raised an
objection to the application subject to a safeguarding condition being applied relating to any
air conditioning plant being installed, in order to safeguard the amenity of residents and the
surrounding area. Therefore subject to condition the proposal is considered to accord with
policies OE1 and OE3 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

Comments on Public Consultations

None
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



10. CONCLUSION

This application relates for change of use of an existing vacant photographic studio/shop
(Sui generis) to a use as an accountancy office (A2 Financial and Professional Services
Use) and therefore would not result in further loss of an A1 unit in the town centre. No
alterations are proposed as part of the application and the existing shopfront would remain.
The proposal is not considered to result in an adverse impact to highway safety. Therefore
subject to suitable conditions the proposal is considered to comply with the relevant
policies of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

11. Reference Documents

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
London Plan (February 2008)

Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



Car Park

.
a S
.
z N
N B *
s \'ss Shelter R\ M)
. .
W\ \ '\
Pad) W\ ¢ s Y
- LY + A)

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUG
For identification purposes only 186 Field End Road Envi Planril:InEg& ti

: nvironment, ucation
This copy has been made by or with Eastcote & Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Mlddx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents ; ; ; .
Act 1988 (the Act). Planning Application Ref: Scale
Unless the Act provides a relevant 2294/APP/201 1/41 5 1 :1 ,250

exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Planmng Committee Date

London Borough of Hillingdon North Page 84 May 2011

100019283 2011

LONDON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 89/91 JOEL STREET NORTHWOOD

Development: Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to part Class A3 (Restaurants and
Cafes), part Class A4 (Drinking Establishments), part Class A5 (Hot Food
Takeaways) and part Class B1 (Office.)

LBH Ref Nos: 45536/APP/2010/2946

Drawing Nos: Location Plan to Scale 1:125C
C12739-01 Rev. A
C12739-02 Rev. A

Date Plans Received:  22/12/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/12/2010
Date Application Valid: 13/01/2011 13/01/2011
06/04/2011

1. SUMMARY

The site comprises an existing vacant double unit and the proposal seeks to sub-divide
the units back into two independent commercial premises, leaving the corner property (No
91) in A1 (retail) use and seeking a mixed A3, A4 and A5 use on the remaining unit, No.
89. The July 2010 retail frontage survey shows that Northwood Hills Secondary Shopping
Area had a retail frontage with A1 use at 50.6%. Policy S12 seeks to maintain a 50%
frontage within A1 use. This application would result in the proportion being exactly 50%.
Therefore, any future changes of use from the remaining A1 units in this Secondary
Shopping Area would be resisted, but the current proposal is considered to be acceptable.

It is noted the application also seeks permission to establish a B1 (Business) use within a
small basement level area accessed from the rear of the site, that was previously used as
storage in relation to the existing site uses. Due to the small nature and as this would be
only accessed from the rear courtyard area, it is not considered this would have a material
effect on the Town Centre or on residential amenity of adjoining occupiers.

Therefore, subject to appropriate conditions relating to hours of operation and noise
control, deliveries, and waste management, the proposal would not conflict with any of the
relevant Adopted policies within the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Therefore subject to conditions the application is recommended for Approval.
2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



2 OoM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The proposal involves the sub-division of 89/91 Joel Street and from the sub-division only
the resulting unit known as 89 Joel Street shall be used within Use Classes A3/A4/A5
(cafelrestaurant, drinking establishment, or takeaway), with the unit known as 91
remaining in A1 (retail) use, as shown on the plans hereby approved and for no other
purpose without further consent from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To conform to the terms of the application and to ensure the use is appropriate to the retail
function and assists in maintaining the retail vitality and viability in accordance with Policy
S12 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

4 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Before any A3 or A5 use commences, a scheme detailing the method of disposal, storage
and collection of litter and waste materials, generated by the business and/or discarded by
patrons, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include a description of the facilities to be provided and the methods for
collection of litter within and in the vicinity of the premises. The approved scheme shall be
implemented in full thereafter.

REASON

To ensure that adequate provision is made for the disposal of litter and waste, in the
interests of maintaining a satisfactory standard of amenity in the locality, in accordance
with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

5 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The premises shall only be used for the preparation, sale of food and drink and clearing up
between the hours of 08:00 and 23:30. There shall be no staff allowed on the premises
outside these hours.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers and nearby properties, in
accordance with Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Polices September 2007).

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The proposed uses hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of all extract
ventilation systems and odour control equipment including details of any noise levels and
external ducting, have been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority and
the equipment so approved has been installed. The approved extract ventilation system
equipment and odour control equipment shall be operated at all times when cooking is
carried out and maintained in accordance with the manufacturers instructions. The

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



external ducting shall be removed as soon as possible when no longer required.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties in accordance
with Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007).

7 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No air handling units shall be used on the premises until a scheme which specifies the
provisions to be made for the control of noise emanating from the site or to other parts of
the building, has been submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved by the LPA.
The said scheme shall include such secure provision as will ensure that the said scheme
and all of it endures for use and that any and all constituent parts are repaired and
maintained and replaced in whole or in part so often as occasion may require.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policies OE1 and OE3
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The premises shall not be used for deliveries and collections, including waste collections
other than between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00, Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 to 13:00
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays and Bank and Public Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20
of the London Plan (February 2008).

9 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Before the development commences, details of access to building entrances (to include
ramped/level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of door width and lobby
openings) to meet the needs of people with disabilities shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These approved facilities shall be provided
before the use commences and shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON

To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policy R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies 3A.13, 3A.17 and
4B.5.

10 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No development shall take place until details of a sound insulation scheme to control noise
transmission to adjoining dwellings/premises have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The use shall not commence until the approved
scheme has been approved and it shall thereafter be retained.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policies OE1 and OE3
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



11 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The details shown on drawing C12739-02 rev A, received on the 6th April 2011, relating to
the covered, secure and screened storage of refuse at the premises shall be provided in
accordance with the approved details and shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON

In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

12 H16 Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

The details shown on drawing C12739-02 rev A, received on the 6th April 2011, relating to
the covered and secure cycle storage for 6 bicycles at the premises shall be provided in
accordance with the approved details and shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan (February 2008).

13 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No delivery service shall take place from the development hereby approved, without
further written consent from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with Policy
AM?7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas

S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties

and the local area

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation

measures
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Shopfronts
3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 125 Consent for the Display of Adverts and llluminated Signs

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

5 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

7 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning & Community
Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

9 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and
13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and Public
Holidays.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

10

Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat trap on all
catering establishments. We further recommend, in line with best practice for the disposal
of Fats, Oils and Grease, the collection of waste oil by a contractor, particularly to recycle
for the production of bio diesel. Failure to implement these recommendations may result
in this and other properties suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and pollution to local
watercourses. Further information on the above is available in a leaflet, Best Management
Practices for Catering Establishments which can be requested by telephoning 020 8507
4321.

11

It is advised that the installation of roller shutters at this site would require planning
permission. The Authorities Adopted Design Guidance on “Shopfronts and Signage'
Section 9.0 - 9.9 deals with security measures, and comments as follows, whilst the
councils recognises the need for premises to be adequately secured and protected
through appropriate security devices, it is concerned the character of the area can be
adversely effected by inappropriate physical security measures. Solid and visually
impermeable roller shutters can create a forbidding and unsafe environment after dark,
preventing passive surveillance (both into the street and the shop). Their appearance also
adversely affects the character and appearance of the building and the area. These types
of shutters are easy to vandalise with graffiti, which in turn can further negatively affect the
character and image of the area. Therefore, external solid roller shutters (including
punched, perforated or micro-perforated shutters) should be avoided.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a ground floor end terrace double unit with a small area of
basement level accommodation to the rear. The unit is currently vacant and has an A1 use.
There is on street parking to the front of the unit with restrictions between 8am to 6.30pm
Monday to Saturday. The site is on a slope with the service/access courtyard to the rear at
basement level. The site is within Northwood Hills Secondary Shopping Centre as identified
in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Saved Policies (September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme
The proposal involves:

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



i) The subdivision of the existing double unit back into single units and the change of use
No.89 into mixed A3 (Restaurant/Cafe), A4 (Drinking Establishment) and A5 (Hot Food
Takeaway).
- Change of use of a small basement level area, accessed from the rear courtyard,
previously used for storage, to a B1 (office) use.
- To the front, the installation of a new doorway in the existing shop front of No.89.
- Installation of bicycle store and bin storage facilities to the rear.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

None

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Shopfronts

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

79 neighbours and interested parties were consulted and five responses have been received which
object to the proposal on the following grounds:

1. | would welcome a well run drinking establishment if it means | can have a drink without fear of
being involved in the fighting and drug gangs which occupy Wetherspoons.

2. There is no need for another takeaway on the high street.

3. Where will people park, there are already parking problems on Tolcarne Drive with commuters

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



and this will mean problems in the evening too, especially at the weekends.

4. There is an existing rat problem this will make matters worse, also we are fed up of walking
through litter dropped by irresponsible customers.

5. We are concerned about noise. Will there be music playing and not all people leave premises
quietly.

6. We have seen a marked deterioration in useful shops and we have always endeavoured to retain
our retail premises, we cannot afford to lose any more.

7. The application is contrary to Adopted Policy and Guidance, due to lack of parking facilities and
disabled access.

8. No alcohol licence has been applied for.

Ward Councillor: | share objectors concerns and in particular the parking problems down Tolcarne
Drive.

Thames Water: Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat trap on all
catering establishments. We further recommend, in line with best practice for the disposal of Fats,
Oils and Grease, the collection of waste oil by a contractor, particularly to recycle for the production
of bio diesel. Failure to implement these recommendations may result in this and other properties
suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and pollution to local watercourses. Further information on
the above is available in a leaflet, Best Management Practices for Catering Establishments which
can be requested by telephoning 020 8507 4321

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure we would not have any
objection to the above planning application.

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Veolia Water Company.

Internal Consultees
Waste & Recycling Officer:

a) The application is for a part restaurant, part drinking establishment and part food take-away. One
x 1,100 litre type of bulk bin is needed to safely and hygienically contain the waste arising from this
type of business. Additional bins for recycling waste may also be required.

b) The bulk bin should be sited on an area of hard-standing, with a smooth surface, so that it can be
washed down with water and disinfectant. The surface should be cambered so the run off follows
towards a proper drain.

c¢) The collectors should not have to cart a bulk bin more than 10 metres from the point of storage to
the collection vehicle (BS 5906 standard). The collection crew would therefore need to access the
rear of the shop. Alternatively the owners would have to present the bulk bin at an agreed collection
point on the allocated day.

d) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no more than
1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the path is raised above the
area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is needed to safely move the bin to
level of the collection vehicle.

Highway Engineer:

Hillingdon cycle parking standards stipulate 6 spaces should be provided, this should covered
through a planning condition or amended plans. The applicant has not provided any information on
the number of delivery vehicles for the A3/A5 use and their parking provision. A condition should be
attached restricting any delivery service from the site. Subject to these issues being covered, there
is no objection on the highways aspect of the proposals.

EPU:

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



| do not wish to object to this proposal. Should this proposal be recommended for approval | would
recommend conditions relating to hours of operation, deliveries, sound insulation, air handling units,
noise and odour control and litter be added together with the construction site Informative.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The Local Planning Authority will resist proposals that would result in the loss of Class A1
shop use in core areas and will examine very closely similar proposals for other parts of
these centres.

Policy S6 states that change of use applications will be granted where a frontage of design
appropriate to the surrounding area is maintained or provided, the use would be compatible
with neighbouring uses and will not cause unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby
residential properties, and would have no harmful effect on road safety or worsen traffic
congestion. The external alterations proposed as part of this application would be
considered in keeping with the design of the building and the frontage to which it relates,
and therefore would be acceptable. Loss of residential amenity issues are considered
below and the highway engineer has not objected to the proposal subject to appropriate
conditions being applied. Therefore the proposal would comply with the criteria listed in
Policy S6 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

Policy S12 establishes the criteria where service use would be permitted in secondary
frontages. To maintain the viability of the retail function of a centre, class A1 units should be
separated by no more than 12m and at least 50% of the remaining frontage should remain
in A1 use. The July 2010 retail frontage survey showed that Northwood Hills Secondary
Shopping Area had a retail frontage with A1 use at 50.6%. Policy S12 seeks to maintain a
50% frontage within A1 use. Given that part of the proposal involves the retention of an A1
use, the proportion of A1 use would be reduced to 50% and the proposal would create a
separation of approximately 6.5m between the A1 units. The proposal would thus comply
with Policy S12.

The application also seeks permission to establish a B1 (Business) use within a small
basement level area accessed from the rear of the site, previously used as storage in
relation to the existing site uses. Due to the small nature and as this would be only
accessed from the rear courtyard area, it is not considered this would have a material
effect on the Town Centre or on residential amenity of adjoining occupiers.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.06 Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) requires new development to
harmonise with the appearance of the existing street scene and area, and Policy BE15
requires alterations to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form, architectural
composition and proportions of the original building. Policy BE28 requires shopfronts to

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

712

713

714

harmonise with the building and to improve the character of the area. The Hillingdon Design
and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Supplementary Planning Document: Shopfronts and
Signage: Section 5.3 states, the Council will encourage all applicants to adopt good design
that can set example for others and can trigger improvements in the appearance of other
shop fronts in the locality.

With regard to the impact on the street scene, the application involves the installation of a
new door to No.89, which is considered to result in a visual improvement to this frontage,
with the use of a central door, as it considered this would break up the frontage by
providing a vertical subdivisions and this would be in-keeping in the street scene.
Therefore, this element of the proposal is considered to comply with policies BE13, BE15
and BE28 of the Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

To the rear, the revised plans show the provision of a bin store and bicycle store. Due to
the sloping nature of the site and the surrounding built development, it is considered these
elements would be largely screened from the wider area. Furthermore, they would be in-
keeping with their surroundings. As such, the proposal would comply with Policies BE13,
BE15 and S6 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted
if the impact can be mitigated. The Environmental protection officer has commented on
this application and has suggested a number of conditions should be applied relating to the
the hours of operation, control of noise, deliveries and collections, air handling units,
ventilation systems and litter, in order to safeguard the amenity of residents and the
surrounding area. Therefore subject to condition the proposal is considered to accord with
policies OE1 and OE3 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The applicant has not provided any information on the number of delivery vehicles for the
A3/A5 use and their parking provision. A condition should be attached requiring further
information regarding any delivery service from the site (which could result from an A4
use). Subject to these issues being covered, there is no objection on the highways aspect
of the proposals. The proposal would therefore comply with AM7 and AM14 of the UDP
Saved Policies (September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

Not applicable to this application.
Disabled access

There are no internal alterations shown as part of this application, the application seeks to
get the principle of the change of use established. However, it is recommended that if
permission were to be granted an informative is added advising the applicant of the need to
comply with The Building Regulations Part M Access to and use of Buildings. A condition
requiring facilities for disabled people is also recommended. Subject to this the proposal
would comply with Policy 4B.5 of the London Plan and the Council's HDAS: Accessible
Hillingdon.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

Waste & Recycling Officer has been consulted and has commented that as the application
is for a part restaurant, part drinking establishment and part food take-away. One x 1,100
litre type of bulk bin is needed to safely and hygienically contain the waste arising from this
type of business and that additional bins for recycling waste may also be required. It is not
considered the revised plans have fully addressed this issue, however, it is considered
these issues could be dealt with by way of a suitable condition should members approve
the application.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

See impact on neighbours above.
Comments on Public Consultations

Point 8 is not material to the consideration of this planning application and the remaining
comments received have been addressed in the body of the report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

This application relates to the subdivision of the existing double commercial unit back into
two, together with the change of use of one of these resulting units into a mixed A3/A4/A5
use (restaurant/drinking establishment/takeaway). It is considered the proposal would bring
this vacant unit back into use by providing a wider scope to prospective tenants. The July
2010 retail frontage survey showed that Northwood Hills Secondary Shopping Area had a
retail frontage with A1 use at 50.6% and that Policy S12 seeks to maintain a 50% frontage
within A1 use. This application would result in the frontage being at the 50% threshold.

The application also seeks permission to establish a B1 (Business) use which relates to a
small basement level area accessed from the rear of the site, that was previously used as
storage in relation to the existing site uses. Due to the small nature and as this would be
only accessed from the rear courtyard area, it is not considered this would have a material
effect on the Town Centre or on residential amenity of adjoining occupiers.

As such, the proposal would accord with Policy S12 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and subject to appropriate safeguarding conditions,
would not result in any further adverse impacts.

11. Reference Documents

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007)

London Plan (February 2008)

HDAS: Residential Layouts

HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

HDAS: Shopfronts

Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies, September 2007)

Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



7

ommmeeo . LNIOsTY,

-t
. -

Poor's Field
(Allotment Gardens)

LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site Address

89 - 91Joel Street

Northwood

OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:

45536/APP/2010/2946

Scale

1:1,250

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.

Planning Committee

North Page 98

Date
May 2011

LONDON




Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 157-161 AND LAND FRONTING HIGH STREET RUISLIP

Development: Two and half storey linked building comprising 2 x two- bedroom flats, 2 x
one-bedroom flats and 2 x studio flats, extension to the beauty saloon and the
formation of a new Class A2 ground floor commercial unit (involving part
demolition of existing building) and the retention of the beauty saloon use of
the existing building, involving the change of use of the ground floor retail unit
(Class A1) and 4 existing flats (Class C3) (Part Retrospective Application).

LBH Ref Nos: 64711/APP/2011/214

Drawing Nos: Location Plan to Scale 1:125C
10/3208/5 Rev. B
10/3208/8
10/3208/13
Design and Access Statement, January 2011
10/3208/10 Rev. A
10/3208/9 Rev. A
10/3208/11 Rev. B
10/3208/12 Rev. A
Agent's E-mail dated 07/04/11
Agent's E-mail dated 28/04/11

Date Plans Received:  31/01/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/01/2011

Date Application Valid: 09/02/2011 03/02/2011
09/02/2011

17/03/2011

07/04/2011

11/04/2011

28/04/2011
1. SUMMARY

This application is a third scheme for the re-development of this site which is situated
within the Ruislip Town Centre and forms part of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area.
The other two schemes were refused permission, the first scheme also being dismissed
at appeal.

The current scheme seeks permission to erect a two storey building with accommodation
in the roof to the rear and linked at ground floor level to the building on the High Street
frontage which it would mimic in terms of its height, proportion and design. The new
building would provide an extension to a beauty salon on part of the ground floor, with the
rest of the ground floor providing an office (Class A2) unit at the rear and 2 x two-bedroom
flats and a studio flat on the first floor and 2 x one-bedroom flats and a studio flat on the
second floor, all of which with the exception of the second floor studio unit would have
balcony areas. The application also seeks the change of use of the ground floor of the
existing building from Class A1 (retail) to beauty salon (sui generis) and the former 4 one-
bedroom flats above to form additional treatment rooms and ancillary office and storage
accommodation for the beauty salon. The proposal involves partial demolition of the rear
part of the existing building and is part retrospective as the changes of use of the existing
building have already been undertaken. The proposed development is car free.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



The scheme is considered to be acceptable within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area
and will enhance its character and appearance. No objections were previously raised to
the loss of retail on the ground floor of the existing building, given the nature of the beauty
salon use which comprises a retail element and the scheme would increase the number
of flats previously accommodated on site. Furthermore, the accommodation proposed is
considered to provide suitable residential accommodation. The amenities of surrounding
residential occupiers would not be adversely affected by the proposal. Also, no objections
are raised to a car free development within the Ruislip Town Centre, close to the
underground station.

The revised scheme is considered to have overcome the reasons for refusal of the
previous two schemes and the concerns raised by the previous Inspector and is
recommended for approval.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 M1 Details/Samples to be Submitted

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces, including, doors and windows, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 OoM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

4 OoM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan
shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works
(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115
for maximum permitted working hours).
(i) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iv)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads (including
wheel washing facilities).

(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

5 MCDA4 Shop Window Display (Service Uses etc)

A window display shall be provided along the High Street frontage within 1 month of the
date of this permission and thereafter a window display shall be permanently retained on
the High Street frontage.

REASON

To ensure the appearance of the frontage is appropriate to the shopping area and assists
in maintaining its vitality in accordance with Policy S6 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008)
Policy 3D.3.

6 TL5 Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

- Means of enclosure,

- Car parking layouts,

- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,

- Hard surfacing materials proposed,

- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage, power
cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),

- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

7 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever
is the earlier period. The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the
requirements specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees
and Shrubs' and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations
(Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be
permanently retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or in
the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new tree,
hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to be first
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority in the next planting season with another
such tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local
Planning Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

8 TLY Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation. Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

9 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from
road traffic and other noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall meet acceptable noise design criteria both indoors
and outdoors. The scheme shall include such combination of sound insulation and other
measures as may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented
and maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not adversely
affected by road traffic and other noise in accordance with policy OE5 of the adoptec
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20
of the London Plan (February 2008).

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



10 HLC5 Industrial and Commercial Development

The beauty salon shall not be used except between 08:00 hours and 20:00 hours,
Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours on Saturdays and 10:00 to 16:00 hours
on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

11 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The premises shall not be used for deliveries and collections, including waste collections
other than between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00, Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 to 13:00
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays and Bank and Public Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20
of the London Plan (February 2008).

12 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No extraction /ventilation or air conditioning plant or equipment shall be used on the
premises until a scheme which specifies the provisions to be made for the control of
noise emanating from the site or to other parts of the building, has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such
combination of measures as may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall
be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policies OE1 and
OE3 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and Policy 4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

13 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The rating level of any noise emitted from any plant and/or machinery shall be at least 5dB
below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the
nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in
accordance with British Standard 4142 'Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed
residential and industrial areas'.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policies OE1 and
OE3 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and Policy 4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

14 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No floodlighting shall be installed unless it is in accordance with details which have
previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
details shall include location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity of

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



ilumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall not thereafter be altered without the prior
consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority other than for routine maintenance which
does not change its details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in relation to light pollution
accordance with policy OE1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

15 DIS5 Design to Lifetime Homes Standards & Wheelchair Standards

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and

elderly people in accordance with London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.5, 3A.13,
3A.17 and 4B.5.

16 SUS2 Energy Efficiency Major Applications (outline where energy s

No development shall take place on site until an energy efficiency report has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The energy
efficiency report shall demonstrate how the Mayors Energy Hierarchy will be integrated
into the development, including a full assessment of the site's energy demand and carbon
dioxide emissions, measures to reduce this demand and the provision of 20% of the sites
energy needs through on site renewable energy generation. The methods identified within
the approved report shall be integrated within the development and thereafter permanently
retained and maintained.

REASON

To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate energy efficiency measures in
accordance with policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6, 4A.7, 4A.9, and 4A.10 of the London Plan
(February 2008).

17 SuUS4 Code for Sustainable Homes details

No development shall take place until an initial design stage assessment by an accredited
assessor for the Code for Sustainable Homes and an accompanying interim certificate
stating that each dwelling has been designed to achieve level 3 of the Code has been
submitted to, and approved in writing, by the local planning authority. No dwelling shall be
occupied until it has been issued with a final Code certificate of compliance.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in policies 4A.1 and
4A.3 of the London Plan (February 2008).

18 SUS5 Sustainable Urban Drainage

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) /if appropriate/ and to
ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), polices 4A.12
and 4A.13 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

19 H14 Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

Notwithstanding the details shown on Drwg. No. 10/3208/8, prior to the commencement of
works on site, revised details of covered and secure cycle storage for a total of 14 cycles
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter, the development shall not be occupied or brought into use until the approved
cycling facilities have been implemented in accordance with the approved plan, with the
facilities being permanently retained for use by cyclists.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

20 OM14 Secured by Design

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the development.
Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before development commences. Any security measures to be
implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard necessary to
achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief
Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

21 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced arrangements shall be agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority and be put in place to ensure that, with the
exception of disabled persons, no resident of the development shall obtain a resident's
parking permit within any controlled parking zone which may be in force in the area at any
time.

Reason:

In order to reduce pressure on existing on-street parking and to ensure that the
development does not prejudice the free flow of traffic and conditions of safety along the
neighbouring highway in compliance with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

22 MRD8 Education Contributions
Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority detailing how additional or
improved educational facilities will be provided within a 3 miles radius of the site to
accommodate the nursery, primary and secondary school child yield arising from the
proposed development. This shall include a timescale for the provision of the
additional/improved facilities. The approved means and timescale of accommodating the
child yield arising from the development shall then be implemented in accordance with the
agreed scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to educational facilities
within the surrounding area, arising from the proposed development, in accordance with
Policy R17 of the adopted Hilingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies,
September 2007) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Educational
Facilities.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE14 Development of sites in isolation

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H2 Restrictions on changes of use of residential properties

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



H4 Mix of housing units

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas
S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas
R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreatior
leisure and community facilities
AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
HDAS Residential Layouts
3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

6 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and
13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and Public
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

7 121 Street Naming and Numbering

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8
1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

8 125 Consent for the Display of Adverts and llluminated Signs

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

9 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

10 145 Discharge of Conditions

Your attention is drawn to condition(s) 2, 4, 6, 8, 9, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23 which
must be discharged prior to the commencement of works. You will be in breach of
planning control should you commence these works prior to the discharge of this/these
condition(s). The Council may consider taking enforcement action to rectify the breach of
this condition(s). For further information and advice contact - Planning & Community
Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250230).

11

In respect of Condition 22, you are advised that the Council considers that one way to
ensure compliance with this condition is to enter into an agreement with the Council to
ensure the provision of additional educational facilities locally proportionate to the needs
arising from the development.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a prominent corner plot located at the southern end of Ruislip High
Street, at its junction with Pembroke Road, West End Road and Kingsend within Ruislip
Town Centre. It forms a 0.04 ha site with frontages of 12.2m and 35.3m onto Ruislip High
Street and Pembroke Road respectively and comprises a detached two storey building
with a rear wing and extensions, incorporating accommodation in its mansard roof, the
whole of which is occupied by a beauty salon, known as The Synergy Spa. There is an
overgrown area at the rear, part of which appears to be used for informal parking,
accessed by a narrow service road between this and the adjoining parade buildings, Nos.
153/155 High Street to the north.

The surrounding area, particularly High Street to the north and west is a traditional mix of
town centre uses, predominantly retail use on the ground floor with residential and office
use above. A 4 storey office block adjoins the site to the east, beyond which the road
becomes more suburban with a mix of residential properties whereas to the south, on the
opposite side of Pembroke Road is the 6 to 8 storey former Times House office building,

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



now converted to residential flats.

The application site lies within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area on its south eastern
edge and also lies within the secondary shopping area of the Ruislip Town Centre as
designated within the Unitary Development Plan, Saved Policies (September 2007). It also
lies some 30m to the south of the Midcroft Area of Special Local Character and 100m to
the north of Ruislip Underground Station.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Full planning permission is sought for the erection of a two storey building with
accommodation in the roof to the rear of and linked to the existing beauty salon unit at
ground floor level. On the ground floor, the building would extend the beauty saloon and
provide an office (Class A2) unit at the rear. On the upper floors, the building would form 6
residential flats in total, 2 x two-bedroom units and a studio flat on the first floor with
balconies at the front and 2 x one-bedroom units and a studio flat on the second floor, with
the one-bedroom flats having recessed terraces within the roof space. Amended plans
have been received which set back the proposed building further on the upper floors,
increasing the size of the first floor balconies. The application also seeks permission for
the change of use of the ground floor retail units and the first and second floors from 4 one-
bedroom flats within the existing building to use as part of the beauty salon (sui generis).
The proposal involves the demolition of the rear two storey wing and garage of the existing
building, with its main bulk to the front being retained.The change of use of the existing
building has already been implemented.

The proposed two storey building would mimic the proportions, height and design of the
existing Queen Anne style building on site. It would have a main width of 21.2m and overall
depth of 11.8m on the ground floor, reducing to 10.1m on the first floor, with a similar
mansard roof with matching eaves and ridge heights of 6.6m and 12.1m respectively.

The front part of the ground floor of the proposed building would be utilised as an extension
to the existing beauty salon and to provide bin and cycle storage for the proposed block. A
large treatment room would be provided in the linked block on the ground floor, internally
accessible to both the former shop units, effectively combining the two units into one,
although a dividing wall would remain at the front. The front of the corner unit, No.161,
would provide retail sales, with No.157 a treatment room. The first and second floors of the
existing building would provide 5 additional treatment rooms, a shower room and office and
storage space for the beauty salon use. No car parking is proposed.

A Design and Access Statement has been submitted with the application, which is
discussed in the relevant sections of the main report.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

64711/APP/2010/683: Full planning permission was sought for a similar style and design of
building, albeit incorporating front and rear bays, which comprised 6 one-bedroom units
and 2 two-bedroomed units, omitting the ground floor office unit was refused on the
24/06/11 for the following reasons:

1. The proposal, by reason of the siting of the proposed building, within 1.1m of the re-
instated rear elevation of the existing building, and design, including crown roof elements,
full height flat roof bays on the front elevation, detailing of the commercial frontage on
Pembroke Road and overlarge three storey flat roofed projecting wing and lack of matching

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



detailing at the rear, would appear as an unduly cramped and incongruous form of
development on this prominent corner plot within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. The
proposal would be detrimental to the character and appearance of the original building, the
visual amenities of the street scene and fails to maintain or enhance the conservation area,
contrary to Policies BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

2. The proposed ground floor flats, by reason of the siting and proximity of the front
habitable room windows and terraces to the adjoining public footpath, would fail to afford
adequate privacy for their occupiers. As such, the proposed ground floor units would not
provide an adequate standard of residential amenity for future occupiers, contrary to Policy
BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts.

3. The proposed balconies/terraces with an area of approximately 2m? are not considered
to be of a sufficient size to provide usable external amenity space. The proposal therefore
represents sub-standard residential accommodation for future occupiers, contrary to
Policy BE23 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

4. In the absence of any supporting information, the Local Planning Authority was unable to
assess the adequacy of natural daylight reaching the bedroom window of the ground floor
flat at the eastern end of the building, being sited beneath a first floor balcony. As such, the
Local Planning Authority was unable to assess whether the proposal would afford an
adequate standard of residential amenity for this property and not to be reliant on artificial
light, contrary to energy conservation objectives. As such, the proposal fails to demonstrate
compliance with Policies BE20 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007), 4A.3 of the London Plan (February 2008) and the Council's
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5. The proposal fails to provide adequate arrangements to access the landscaped areas in
order to allow for its maintenance. As such, these areas are likely to become overgrown
and neglected, contrary to Policies BE4 and BE38 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

6. The siting of the proposed refuse store exceeds the normal 10m maximum trundle
distance and would be likely to be prejudicial to highway and pedestrian safety.
Furthermore, the proposal fails to demonstrate that appropriate control would be
maintained over the service road to the north of the site to allow access to the
refuse/recycling and cycle storage facilities in perpetuity. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policies OE1, AM7 and AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007), Chapter 3C and Policies 4A.22 and 4B.1 of the London Plan
and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: 'Residential
Layouts'.

7. The development is estimated to give rise to a number of children of school age and
additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of places in
schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not been offered
or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



(July 2008).

A conservation area consent application (64711/APP/2011/684) was also refused on the
24/06/11 for the following reason:

1. Planning application reference 64711/APP/2010/683 to erect a two storey building and
convert the existing building on site, involving its part demolition has been refused. As such,
there are no acceptable and detailed plans for any redevelopment. As such, the Local
Planning Authority does not have full information about what is proposed for the site after
demolition. In the absence of this information the proposed works are considered to be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE4 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan, Saved Policies (September 2007).

64711/APP/2008/2050: An outline application (with only details of appearance and
landscaping being reserved for subsequent approval) for the erection of a part four, part
five storey block linked to the existing units at ground floor level to provide a ground floor
extension to the beauty salon and 12 two-bedroom and 1 three-bedroom flats on the
second to fifth floors (involving partial demolition) was refused on the 10th December 2008
due to (i) excessive height, scale, bulk, layout and lack of opportunity for soft landscaping,
detrimental to the character and amenity of the street scene, (ii) inadequate provision of
internal floor space and external amenity space would fail to provide an appropriate level of
residential amenity for future occupiers, (iii) inadequate storage and servicing of refuse and
recycling, (iv) lack of provision of a disabled car parking space, and inadequate provision
for the needs of people with disabilities, and (v) lack of a S106 contribution.

A subsequent appeal was dismissed.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing

Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth
Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning and the Historic Environment
Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport

Planning Policy Guidance 24: Planning and Noise

London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004)

London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010)
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Residential Layouts
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Accessible Hillingdon

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.8 To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to
their special architectural and visual qualities.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



PT1.18

PT1.16

PT1.14
PT1.20
PT1.30

PT1.31

PT1.39

To maintain, enhance and promote town centres as the principle centres for
shopping, employment and community and cultural activities in the Borough.

To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and
mobility standards.

To not normally grant planning permission for a change from residential use.
To give priority to retail uses at ground floor level in the Borough's shopping areas

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local
services, including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to
all, including people with disabilities or other mobility handicaps.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

Part 2 Policies:

BE4

BE13
BE14
BE15
BE18
BE20
BE21
BE22
BE23
BE24
BE26
OE5

OE1

OE3
OES8

H2
H3
H4
S6
S12

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Development of sites in isolation

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings
Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Restrictions on changes of use of residential properties

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Mix of housing units

Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas
Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Residential Layouts

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 23rd March 2011

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
ORIGINAL PLANS:

119 surrounding properties have been consulted and press and site notices have been posted. 3
responses have been received, raising the following concerns:

(i) Amendments made to scheme do little to change the scale, bulk and massing of the proposal and
gap with existing building has only been increased to 2.15m which is still very close. As such,
building would appear unduly cramped and incongruous.

(ii) The building, to the south of No.155 would cast that property into shadow for most of the day,
including the flat.

(iii) Proposal would prejudice the development of land to the rear of No.155 and it has been
confirmed with the LPA that there is development potential so scheme would be contrary to BE14 of
the UDP.

(iv) Scheme would contravene the 15m separation distance from face of new building to existing
buildings and 45° splay from centre of windows to avoid overdomination.

(v) Ground floor unit may be used as a pub or a bar, and Ruislip High Street and residents of Kings
Lodge already suffer with two late night drinking establishments, which cause problems of noise,
general disturbance and anti-social behaviour, particularly during the hours of 11:00PM and 02:00AM
with revellers heading to tube/bus station and cab office.

(vi) I was not notified of this or the previous application, despite objecting and submitting petitions to
a previous application on this site,

(vii) Inspector on previous scheme (64711/APP/2008/2050) was concerned about the amenity
space provision and family accommodation. This scheme proposes balconies, but is it appropriate
for families as 9m? falls well below the 25m? required by design guidance. This does refer to use of
balconies for higher flats but this is meant to supplement a ground floor sunlit amenity space. The
guidance also makes clear that no amenity space will only be acceptable in special circumstances
and only with non-family housing.

(viii) Inspector noted that there was uncertainty as to whether the entitlement of occupiers to use the
side access road would extend to a more intensive use.

(ix) Service road is located close to traffic lights at the corner of High Street and Pembroke Road
and being narrow, vehicles tend to reverse out into the High Street, with waiting vehicles and
pedestrians.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



(x) There is no disabled parking or parking provision for visitors or customers of Synergy Spa or
parking/servicing of the flats.
(xi) Details of the storing and collecting of refuse needs to be considered before proposal is agreed.

Ruislip Residents Association: No response received.
Ruislip Chamber of Commerce:

The Chamber wishes to object to this application to carry out major building works on this site which
will include the provision of 2 x 2 bedroom flats, 2 x 1 bedroom flats and 2 studio flats as well as
alterations to the ground floor involving some demolition. We have looked at the plans on line and it
appears to us that the corner shop, formerly occupied for many years by Ruislip Office Supplies, will
no longer exist as a shop and this will mean the loss of an A1 (retail) unit in the High St. which the
Chamber feels is completely unacceptable. We would like assurances from the Council that should
these plans be passed they will not be allowed to include the loss of this A1 Retail outlet in the High
Street.

AMENDED PLANS:
120 surrounding properties have been consulted. To date, no responses have been received.
THAMES WATER:

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure, we would have no
objection to the above planning application.

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make proper provision
for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is
recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the
receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to connect to a
combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole
nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal of Ground Water. Where the
developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer
Services will be required. With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the
Veolia Water Company.

Internal Consultees
URBAN DESIGN/CONSERVATION OFFICER:

ORIGINAL PLANS:

PROPOSAL: The erection of a two and a half storey building comprising 2 x two bed flats and 2 x
one bed unit and 2 x studio flats plus an extension to the Synergy Spa and ground floor business
unit, involving some demolition.

COMMENTS: The site is located at a prominent junction within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area
and the works will require the demolition of the two storey wing and single storey garage to the rear
of the existing building which fronts the High Street. This building is one of a pair of similar and quite
distinctive properties in the 'Queen Anne' style.

CONSIDERATION: There would be no objection in principle to the removal of the rear wing of the
existing property and to the redevelopment of the remainder of the site provided the proposed
scheme were appropriate in design/conservation terms as noted re the previous application. The
design approach is acceptable in principle, but there are a number of design issues that still need to

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



be addressed:

* The proposed commercial frontage should be finished with a traditional shopfront. Whilst the side
elevation of the existing frontage building includes some areas of undivided plate glass, these are
less than attractive and are not considered suitable for the main elevation of the new building.

* The design of the street level doors should reflect the style of the building ie be a traditional
panelled door and the glazing details of dormer windows should follow those of the original frontage
building and include subdivision.

* To the rear, the quality of the detailing of the frontage should also follow through to the back of the
building e.g. rubbed/segmental brick arches, rather than the more basic modern solider course
detail. The windows and dormers should also be of the same pattern/design as the frontage.

* The new building would step forward of Pembroke House on Pembroke Road. The type and scale
of planting in the raised bed to the flank of the building will be important as it will need to soften the
visual impact of the buildings forward position in the street scene. A more preferable approach would
be to step the footprint of the new building towards the east to link with the building line on Pembroke
Road.

* It is noted that amenity space/parking has not been provided as part of this scheme.

* A similar scheme is currently proposed for the adjoining site at nos 153 -155, which may need to
be considered when determining this application.

* Subject to the above and if minded to agree, conditions should be attached to any approval re
samples of all materials to be provided for approval, plus detailed drawings of architectural features
such as the timber dentil cornice, shopfronts, brick arches over the windows, windows and
dormers, the chimney stacks and projecting brickwork corbels, this level of detail will be important to
the success of the scheme. We should also ensure the rear of the frontage building is fully
completed as agreed.

CONCLUSION: Improved, but design revisions required.
AMENDED PLANS:

The amended plans are acceptable.

TREE OFFICER:

BACKGROUND: The site is located on a prominent corner within the Ruislip Village Conservation
Area. It occupies the land behind the High Street address and fronts onto Pembroke Road at the
interface between the town centre and a residential area. The plot is currently vacant. There are no
trees or other significant landscape features on the site which constitute a constraint on
development.

PROPOSAL: The proposal is an amended scheme to develop the site to include flats, a ground-floor
business unit and an extension of the synergy Spa. Macleod drawing No. 10/3208/8 indicates a
small planted area between the entrances to unit 1 and the proposed treatment room, with a larger
plot of soft landscape in the south-east corner of unit 1.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate.

* In this case no landscape features will be lost and at issue is the potential to provide landscape
enhancement at the junction between the hard landscape associated with the town centre and the
soft landscape fronting the properties further along Pembroke Road.

* The proposed planting near the entrances to the building on the Pembroke Road frontage may
contribute to the landscape quality provided that it is suitably planted and maintained. Similarly the
larger plot of landscaping will be capable of providing a visual oasis, again subject to detailing and

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



ongoing management. From the information available it is not clear how this plot will be accessed,
for the purpose of maintenance.

* A management/maintenance plan is required to ensure that the landscape is maintained in
accordance with the landscape proposals.

RECOMMENDATIONS: No objection, subject to the above observations and conditions TL5, TL6
and TL7.

HIGHWAY OFFICER:

There have been two previous planning applications refs. 64711/APP/2008/2050 and
64711/APP/2010/683 proposing similar commercial uses but more residential units than this
application.

No car parking was proposed on the previous applications and there are none proposed in this
application. The Council has not previously raised any objection on this aspect of the proposals. The
Planning Inspector for the appealed application ref. 64711/APP/2008/2050 considered that the site is
located in a sustainable location from the public transport point of view and there are existing
opportunities for off-street parking, therefore the development proposed accords with the
Government guidance on sustainable development and that on-site parking is not essential. The
proposals are therefore not considered to merit refusal on parking grounds.

The Council raised objection on the location of the refuse/recycle storage on the previous
applications. The drawings show the refuse/recycle storage being relocated further west than the
first application (approximately. 20.5m from the carriageway). The Council's standard requirement is
a maximum of 10m trundle distance for bins. Although the trundle distance for the proposed bins
would exceed the standard requirements and refuse collection vehicles would need to stop near a
traffic signal controlled junction, given that the existing/previous refuse/recycle storage and collection
is further away from the highway than the one proposed and the refuse collection vehicles
previously/currently wait near the traffic signal controlled junction, the proposals are not considered
to worsen the existing situation, therefore do no merit refusal on this ground.

Cycle storage is proposed for a total of 6 no. cycles, which is not considered to be adequate. A
suitable condition should be applied to provide covered and secured cycle storage for 14 no. cycles
(4 no. for A2, 6 no. for C3, and 4 no. for the Heath SPA).

There is no objection on the highways aspect of the proposals subject to cycle parking being
covered through a planning condition.

ACCESS OFFICER:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan Policy 3A.5 (Housing
Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon' adopted
January 2010.

Whilst the internal layout of the proposed flats at first and second floor would allow a wheelchair user
to use the accommodation, there appears to be no means of wheelchair access from the ground to
the first and second floors. To remain in keeping with the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon' (adopted January 2010), a design amendment which incorporates
a lift should be sought.

Conclusion:
On the basis that the above could be incorporated, no other concerns are raised from an access

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



point of view.

Officer Comments: The development is for less than 10 units, hence there is not a wheelchair
accessible unit. The Council would find it difficult to justify requiring a lift on this site given the scale
of the development as revised. Such a position is unlikely to be supported at appeal.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OFFICER:

The site is on a busy junction so some protection from noise will be required for the residential
portion of the development. The neighbouring property has an extensive area of outbuildings to the
rear so please check they are not permitted for any use which is likely to be noisy, if no such uses
are permitted then the following conditions should be sufficient.

1. Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development from road
traffic noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall meet acceptable noise design criteria both indoors and outdoors. The scheme shall
include such combination of sound insulation and other measures as may be approved by the LPA.
Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved
measures.

REASON: To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not adversely
affected by (road traffic) (rail traffic) and (other) noise in accordance with policy OE5 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan

2. Please attach a condition controlling the hours of operation.
3. Please attach a condition controlling Loading/unloading/deliveries.

4. The extraction /ventilation or air conditioning plant or equipment hereby approved shall not be used
on the premises until a scheme which specifies the provisions to be made for the control of noise
emanating from the site or to other parts of the building, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as
may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full
compliance with the approved measures.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

5. The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be at least
5dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the nearest
residential property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance with British
Standard 4142 'Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas'.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

6. No floodlighting shall be installed unless it is in accordance with details which have previously
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include
location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so
installed shall not thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning
Authority other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in relation to light pollution
accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



Informative: Control of environmental nuisance from construction work.
EDUCATION SERVICES:

A S106 contribution of £2,176 is required (Nursery - £0, Primary - £301, Secondary - £1,119 and
Post-16 - £756).

WASTE SERVICES:

Flats:
a) | would estimate the waste arising from the development to be as shown below:

Studio/ one-bedroom flats: 4 x 100 litres = 400 litres
Two-bedroom flats: 2 x 170 litres = 340 litres
Total: 740 litres.

The above waste would therefore be accommodated in a total of one bulk bin. The three bulk bins
shown would therefore be more than sufficient. Initially all bulk bins on site would be for residual
waste, then one of these could be exchanged for recycling at a latter date, or an additional recycling
bin added.

Commercial Premises:

The occupier of the commercial premises would need to make an arrangement for a commercial
waste collection either with the Council, or a private waste company (that is a licensed waste
carrier). The waste should be presented in a separate waste container from the waste produced by
the flats.

Containment of Waste:

a) The bin enclosures must be built to ensure there is at least 150mm clearance in between the bulk
bins and the walls of storage area. The size and shape of the bin enclosures must also allow good
access to bins by residents, and if multiple bins are installed for the bins to be rotated in between
collections.

b) Arrangements should be made for the cleansing of the bin store with water and disinfectant. A
hose union tap should be installed for the water supply. Drainage should be by means of trapped
gully connected to the foul sewer. The floor of the bin store area should have a suitable fall (no
greater than1:20) towards the drainage points.

¢) The material used for the floor should be 100mm thick to withstand the weight of the bulk bins.
Ideally the walls of the bin storage area should be made of a material that has a fire resistance of
one hour when tested in accordance with BS 472-61.

d) The gate/door of the bin stores need to be made of either metal, hardwood, or metal clad
softwood and ideally have fire resistance of 30 minutes when tested to BS 476-22. The door frame
should be rebated into the opening. Again the doorway should allow clearance of 150mm either side
of the bin when it is being moved for collection. The door(s) should have a latch or other mechanism
to hold them open when the bins are being moved in and out of the chamber.

e) Internal bin chambers should have appropriate passive ventilators to allow air flow and stop the
build up of unpleasant odours. The ventilation needs to be fly proofed.

f) The collectors should not have to cart a 1,100 litre bulk bin more than 10 metres from the point of
storage to the collection vehicle (BS 5906 standard). The access road would therefore have to be

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



able to take the load of a 26 tonne refuse collection vehicle.

h) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no more than
1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the storage area is raised
above the area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is needed to safely move the
bin to level of the collection vehicle.

General Points

i) The value of the construction project will be in excess of £300,000, so the Site Waste
Management Plans Regulations 2008 apply. This requires a document to be produced which
explains how waste arising from the building works will be reused, recycled or otherwise handled.
This document needs to prepared before the building work begins.

i) The client for the building work should ensure that the contractor complies with the Duty of Care
requirements, created by Section 33 and 34 of the Environmental Protection Act.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within the secondary shopping frontage of Ruislip Town Centre as
designated in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007). Accordingly, the main policy consideration concerns the appropriateness of the loss
of retail floorspace and the loss and replacement of residential accommodation.

Policy S12 of the saved UDP sets out the circumstances under which certain uses are
considered appropriate within secondary shopping areas.

As part of the officer's consideration of the previous application (64711/APP/2008/2050), it
was noted that the proposed spa would provide a number of facilities including, but not
limited to, beauty therapy, hair dressing, tanning, nails, osteopathy, sports injuries therapy,
chiropody and a photograph studio. In combination, the mix of uses gave a sui generis use
to the premises but it was noted that a number of the uses would represent an A1 retail
use if carried out separately.

The report went on to advise that the proposal would result in the loss of approximately
88m? of existing floorspace within the secondary frontage. However, given that a number of
the use elements within the spa are commensurate with A1 use and the increased overall
provision of facilities for consumers visiting Ruislip and the level of A1 use that would
remain, the proposal was considered to comply with Policy S12 of the adopted UDP
(Saved Policies). There has been no change in circumstance to suggest that such an
assessment is no longer appropriate.

Although the proposal would result in the loss of 4 one-bedroom flats, 2 studios, 2 one-
bedroom and 2 two-bedroom flats would be provided on site which would replace and
increase the number of residential units provided on site, whilst improving the standard of
residential accommodation. As such, no objections are raised to the proposal in terms of
Policies H2 and H3 of the saved UDP. Again, no objections were raised to this element of
the proposal and the principle of the development on the previous applications.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3A.3 of the London Plan (February 2008) seeks to maximise the potential of sites,
having regard to local character and its accessibility by public transport, in line with Table
3A.2 which advises of an appropriate residential density range.

The site is considered to have an urban setting given its town centre location and has a

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



PTAL score of 4. The average unit size of the units at 2.3 habitable rooms per unit is below
the range cited in Table 3A.2. The smallest average unit size range cited in the Table is 2.7
- 3.0 and for this unit size, guidance suggests an appropriate range of 70 - 260 u/ha and
200 - 700 hr/ha. The scheme would achieve a residential density of 147 u/ha and 342
hr/ha, well within the Mayor's guidance. However, this proposal is for a mixed scheme
where the normal density guidelines are not directly applicable. The London Plan Interim
Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, April 2010 at Para. 3.35 advises that in mixed
use developments where more than 35% of the total floor space is for uses other than
residential such as this scheme, density is more appropriately assessed in line with
guidance on commercial developments. Paragraph 4.105 of the London Plan states that
commercial developments should fulfil Policy 3A.3 by maximising plot ratios, and average
site densities of at least 3:1 should be achieved wherever there is good public transport
accessibility and capacity. This scheme would achieve a plot ratio of 2.5:1. However,
Paragraph 4.105 goes on to state that the ability of plot ratios to be maximised will depend
on the local context, including built form and character, and given that this site forms part of
the Ruislip Village Conservation Area and has been designed to mimic the existing built
form on site, it is considered that a higher density and a reason for refusal would not be
appropriate.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The proposal would involve the demolition of a part two storey, part single storey rear wing
and single storey extensions to the existing building on site. As with the previous
applications, it is considered that the single storey extensions have no architectural merit
and the Council's Urban Design/Conservation Officer advises that there would be no
objection to the loss of the rear wing.

The Inspector, in assessing the initial scheme (64711/APP/2008/2050) for a part four
storey, part five storey flat roofed block, mimicking the scale and design of the adjoining
Pembroke House, considered that whilst the adjoining Pembroke House was prominent in
local views, it did not provide a compelling precedent to justify allowing buildings of a similar
height and scale. He considered that the proposed building by reason of its size, siting and
monolithic appearance would dominate its situation and relate unsatisfactorily to Nos. 157
to 161 High Street, the building to which it would be attached and with which it would be
most closely associated in most public views. He concluded that the building would fail to
preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village Conservation
Area.

The last refused scheme (64711/APP/2010/683) represented a significant reduction in the
bulk and scale of the initial proposal, so that it reflected the scale and proportion of Nos.
157 to 161. However, the new building would have been sited 1.1m from the re-instated
main rear elevation of the existing building, as compared to a 2m gap retained by the
previous proposal. It was considered that the proposal with this relationship would appear
unduly cramped. Furthermore, the proposed design, whilst generally replicating the scale,
height, proportion and design of the existing building on this and the adjoining site, did
include flat roofed bays on the Pembroke Road frontage and a three storey flat roofed
projecting wing at the rear. It was considered that these elements would appear as
incongruous features, with the rear element appearing overlarge in the confined space.
Furthermore, the proposed commercial frontage on Pembroke Road was not finished with
a traditional shopfront, or follow the fenestration of the adjacent flat units with a more
residential appearance. It was also considered that the bulk of the roof to the rear should be
'broken’ to reduce its apparent scale, whilst also enabling the area of crown roof to be
reduced and ideally, the quality of the detailing of the frontage should follow through to the
back of the building with rubbed red brick arches.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

This proposal would increase the gap between the flank of the proposed building and the
re-instated rear elevation of the existing building by 1m to 2.1m. It is considered that the
enlarged gap would assist in defining the space between the buildings so that they would
now read as two separate buildings, albeit linked at ground floor level. Furthermore, the flat
roofed bays at the front and rear have been omitted, the mansard roof proposed would
better match the mansard roof of the adjoining buildings, with no crown roof element being
proposed. Following detailed comments made by the Council's Urban
Design/Conservation Officer, further revisions have been made to the detailed design of
the scheme, including the incorporation of more traditional 'shopfronts’, avoiding the use of
undivided plate glass, panelled doors, dormer window detail to match the rest of building
and detailing at the front, notably brick arches above the windows to be carried through to
the rear. Following the receipt of revised plans, the Urban Design/Conservation Officer
raises no further objection to the proposal.

The proposal is now considered to enhance the character and appearance of Ruislip
Conservation Area, in compliance with Policies BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and overcomes the
previous reasons for refusal.

Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues related to this development.
Impact on the green belt

There are no Green Belt issues associated with this town centre site.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this scheme.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

This is dealt with in Section 7.03 above.
Impact on neighbours

The nearest residential properties to the application site are the first floor flat above No. 155
High Street and at Kings Lodge, a converted office block, on the opposite side of Pembroke
Road.

In terms of No.155, the only existing side facing windows sited towards the rear of the
property do not serve habitable rooms. There is a side lounge window, but this is
secondary and sited towards the front of the property where it would not be overlooked.
Given that this property does not have an external amenity area and the windows at the
rear are to non-habitable rooms, the proposal would not result in a significant reduction to
the residential amenities of this property, by reason of dominance, loss of light and/or loss
of privacy.

As regards Kings Lodge, this property is at least 21m away from the application site, on the
opposite side of a busy road. It is not considered that the proposed development would
have an adverse impact upon these neighbouring occupiers.

There are side windows on the third floor of the adjoining block, Pembroke House on
Pembroke Road but this building is in commercial use.

The proposal is considered to have an acceptable impact upon the amenities of adjoining
properties, in accordance with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the adopted UDP (Saved
Policies).

Living conditions for future occupiers

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



Private amenity space:

The initial scheme proposed 12 two-bedroom flats and 1 three-bedroom flat served by a
84m? communal roof terrace, substantially below the required 330m? area required by
guidance. The Inspector considered that some, if not all, the accommodation would be
occupied by a family of more than two people. The Inspector noted that the extent to which
the site would be developed would leave little opportunity for outdoor amenity space and
none of the two-bedroom units would have balconies or dedicated private open space.
Given the exposure and relative inaccessibility of the roof terrace, this was unlikely to
satisfy the needs of the residents. The Inspector also noted that there was public open
space within walking distance but this would not compensate for the relatively inaccessible
roof terrace.

By contrast, this scheme is for 2 studio, 2 one-bedroom and 2 two-bedroom flats, requiring
a total of 130m? of shared space. However, the Council's HDAS: 'Residential Layouts' does
advise at paragraph 4.19 that exceptions can be made in special circumstances, 'such as
the provision of small non-family housing, predominantly made up of 1 bedroom units in
town centres'. Guidance goes on to advise that even in these cases, care should be taken
to provide some usable and reasonable outdoor amenity space, perhaps in the form of
balconies. This scheme is considered to satisfy this exception criteria and it does provide
all but one studio flat with balcony space. On the latest refused application
(64711/APP/2010/683), it was noted that a similar scheme with 6 one-bedroom and 2 two-
bedroom units did potentially fulfil this exception criteria, but in that case, with the balcony
areas having a typical floor area of 2m?, they were considered too small to provide usable
amenity space. In this case, following the receipt of amended plans, the 2 two-bedroom
units would each have 1.5m deep balconies providing 11.25m? of external amenity space,
the 2 one-bedroom units would have a recessed roof terrace, providing 5.4m? of amenity
space, the first floor studio flat would have a 1.2m deep, 6.1m? balcony area, to only leave
the second floor studio without any amenity space. It is considered that with appropriate
privacy screens, controlled by condition, the amenity space proposed would be adequate
for the type of unit that it would serve, with the larger units having the larger, more usable
space. The only unit without external space would be a non-family studio unit. As such, it is
considered that the proposal would comply with the exception criteria in the SPD, in
accordance with Policy BE23 of the saved UDP and now overcomes reason 3 of the
previous application (64711/APP/2010/683) and the previous Inspector's concerns when it
was suggested that balconies were the preferable means of providing larger two-bedroom
units with amenity space.

Amenities created for future occupiers

The proposed two-bedroom flats, excluding the balcony areas, would have floor areas of
approximately 65m?, the one-bedroom flats 56m? (again excluding the recessed roof
terraces) and the studios would have 35m? of internal floor space. The units would
therefore have adequate floor areas to satisfy the Council's minimum internal floor areas of
63m?, 50m? and 33m? for two, one-bedroom and studio flats respectively. All the flats would
be self-contained and have their main outlook to the front, with all habitable rooms having
an adequate outlook and natural lighting. Furthermore, unlike the previous scheme
(64711/APP/2010/683), no residential accommodation is proposed on the ground floor, so
that reasons 2 and 4 which related to a lack of privacy, being 1m from the adjoining public
footpath and possible restricted daylight to the ground floor residential unit(s) no longer
arises.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



The proposed building would be sited 2.1m from the rear of the existing building. However,
the new rear elevation to the existing building on the first floor would only contain a shower
room window to the right hand side of the building, with two roof dormer windows serving
an office and treatment room. Given the nature and commercial use of the building, it is
considered that there would be no requirement for a sense of outlook from these rooms
and natural lighting to the dormer windows within the roof would be satisfactory.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The application site is within a town centre location with a full range of shops and services
and within 100m of the Ruislip Bus and Underground Station. The proposal is for a car free
development and the adjoining Kings Lodge, with 94 residential flats is also car free.

No objections were previously raised to the principle of a car free development on this site
by the Local Planning Authority or by the Planning Inspectorate. The Planning Inspector for
the appealed application (ref. 64711/APP/2008/2050) considered that the site is located in a
sustainable location from a public transport point of view and there are existing
opportunities for off-street parking, and therefore the development proposed accorded with
Government guidance on sustainable development and that on-site parking was not
essential. The Council's Highway Engineer raises no objections now to this scheme which
proposes fewer residential units.

The Council did raise objection to the location of the refuse/recycle storage on the previous
applications. The current drawings show the refuse/recycle storage being relocated further
west, closer to the road than the first application, but still approximately 20.5m from the
carriageway, in a similar position to the last application (ref. 64711/APP/2010/683). The
Council's standard requirement is for a maximum 10m trundle distance for bins. Although
the trundle distance for the proposed bins would exceed the standard requirements and
refuse collection vehicles would need to stop near a traffic signal controlled junction, given
that the existing arrangements for the storage of refuse is further away from the highway
being sited towards the rear of existing buildings than the one proposed, and the refuse
collection vehicles currently wait near the traffic signal controlled junction, the Highway
Engineer advises that the current proposal is not considered to worsen the existing
situation, and therefore a refusal of permission on this ground would not be merited.

Cycle storage is proposed for a total of 6 no. cycles, which the Council's Highway Engineer
does not considered to be adequate. A condition has been attached seeking revised details
of covered and secured cycle storage for 14 no. cycles (4 no. for A2, 6 no. for C3, and 4
no. for the Heath SPA).

There is no objection to the highways aspect of the proposals subject to cycle parking
being covered through a planning condition. As such, the scheme complies with policies
AM7, AM9 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and is considered to have overcome the previous reasons for refusal
and the Inspector's concerns.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

A condition has been added to ensure that the development satisfies secured by design
standards.
7.12 Disabled access

The comments of the Access Officer are noted. In terms of the requirement for a lift,
London Plan policy 3A.5 only requires 10% of new housing to be fully wheelchair
accessible and this scheme is for 8 units so that the threshold would not be met. Similarly,
there would be no requirement for a disabled person parking space.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



713

714

715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this development.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

A small area of landscaping has been provided between the proposed building and the
adjoining Pembroke House. The size and siting of this space would enable its ease of
maintenance and its provision would enhance the Ruislip Village Conservation Area and
would reflest the traditional front garden areas of the housing further along Pembroke
Road. As such, the scheme complies with policy BE38 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plann Saved Policies (September 2007).

Sustainable waste management

The Council's Waste Services advise that the storage provision made on site is adequate
and capacity would be available to provide recycling facilities. As such, the scheme
complies with Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan (February 2008).

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The Greater London Authority (GLA), through the London Plan (February 2008) clearly
outlines the importance of reducing carbon emissions and the role that planning should
play in helping to achieve that goal. The London Plan contains a suite of policies relating to
climate change at Chapter 4A.

In the supporting text to Policy 4A.1 which outlines the role of developments in contributing
to mitigation of and adaptation to climate change it states Policies 4A.2-4A.16 include
targets that developments should meet in terms of the assessment of and contribution to
tackling climate change. Policy 4A.7 of the London Plan advises that boroughs should
ensure that developments will achieve a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions of 20%
from on site renewable energy generation (which can include sources of decentralised
renewable energy) unless it can be demonstrated that such provision is not feasible.

The Design and Access Statememt does briefly consider renewable energy, stating that
20% renewables will be provided. The Council's Sustainability Officer advises that this
requirement can be conditioned.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy OES8 seeks to ensure that new development incorporates appropriate measures to
mitigate against any potential increase in the risk of flooding. The site is not within a flood
zone. A sustainable urban drainage condition is attached.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

The Council's Environmental Health Officer raises no objections to the scheme, subject to
appropriate conditions to safeguard the residential units against noise. These are attached
Comments on Public Consultations

Points (i) to (iv), (vii) and (ix) to (xi) raised by individual consultees and the comments
made by the Ruislip Chamber of Commerce have been considered in the main report. As
regards point (v), the use of the premises as a pub or bar does not form part of this
proposal. In terms of Point (vi), the petitioner on the original application was not initially
consulted on this application for which the LPA has apologised, but the petitioner has been
consulted on the latest amended plans. As regards point (viii), the scheme considered by
the Inspector was for 13 flats with a much greater intensity of use of the side service road
as compared to this scheme, with the 6 flats not significantly increasing the use associated
with that of the 4 previous flats accommodated on site.

Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan states that: "The Local Planning

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open
space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community,
social and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other
development proposals'.

Given the nature and scale of this proposal, the development only gives rise to the
requirement for a £2,176 is required (Nursery - £0, Primary - £301, Secondary - £1,119 and
Post-16 - £756).
This can be secured by means of a condition to which the applicant has agreed.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

The approval of this application would regularise the existing uses on site. No other
enforcement issues are raised by this application.
7.22 Other Issues

The only other relevant planning consideration raised by this application is the likely impact
of the proposal upon the development potential of the adjoining site(s), Nos. 153 and
155/155b High Street. The proposal building would have a similar siting and height to the
rear wing it would replace, although the building would extend along much of the depth of
the application site. Although the maijority of the habitable room windows of the residential
units face onto Pembroke Road, there are two first floor bedroom windows that face Nos.
153 and 155/155b High Street, separated by the width of the service road. There are no
extant permissions for any comprehensive re-development of this site and unlike the
application site, the area at the rear of the adjoining site has no road frontage, abutting the
rear yard areas/service road/car parking areas of adjoining plots. It therefore has only
limited re-development potential, certainly for in-depth residential use and its
comprehensive re-development for residential use is not something the Council would wish
to encourage. As such, it is considered that the scheme would not be contrary to Policy
BE14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The scheme is considered to be acceptable within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area
and will enhance its character and appearance. No objections were previously raised to the
loss of retail on the ground floor of the existing building, given the nature of the beauty salon
use which comprises a retail element and the scheme would increase the number of flats
previously accommodated on site. Furthermore, the accommodation proposed is
considered to provide suitable residential accommodation. The amenities of surrounding
residential occupiers would not be adversely affected by the proposal. Also, no objections
are raised to a car free development within this town centre location, close to the Ruislip
Underground and Bus Station.

The revised scheme is considered to have overcome the reasons for refusal of the
previous two schemes and the concerns raised by the previous Inspector and is
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Planning Policy Statements and Guidance

London Plan (February 2008)

London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, April 2010
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
HDAS: Residential Layouts & Accessible Hillingdon

Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, July 2008
Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



Notes

Site boundary

s E1 Sub Sta
\

+ 8
Ey -
.-"3--

avod aNa 1saM

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Ruislip

157 - 161 High Street

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Act 1988 (the Act). Planning Application Ref: Scale

Unless the Act provides a relevant 6471 1/APP/201 1/21 4 1 :1 ,250

exception to copyright.
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Plannmg Committee Date
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011 NorthPage 128 May 2011

LONDON




Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 157-161 AND LAND FRONTING HIGH STREET RUISLIP
Development: Part demolition of existing building (Application for Conservation Area
consent).

LBH Ref Nos: 64711/APP/2011/215

Drawing Nos: Location Plan to Scale 1:1250

10/3208/05 Rev. B
10/3208//08

10/3208/13

10/3208/9 Rev. A

10/3208/11 Rev. B
10/3208/12 Rev. A
10/3208/10 Rev. A

Date Plans Received:  31/01/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/01/2011
Date Application Valid: 09/02/2011 03/02/2011
17/03/2011
11/04/2011

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a prominent corner plot located at the southern end of Ruislip High
Street, at its junction with Pembroke Road, West End Road and Kingsend within Ruislip
Town Centre. It forms a 0.04 ha site with frontages of 12.2m and 35.3m onto Ruislip High
Street and Pembroke Road respectively and comprises a detached two storey building
with a rear wing and extensions, incorporating accommodation in its mansard roof, the
whole of which is occupied by a beauty salon, known as The Synergy Spa. There is an
overgrown area at the rear, part of which appears to be used for informal parking,
accessed by a narrow service road between this and the adjoining parade buildings, Nos.
153/155 High Street to the north.

The surrounding area, particularly High Street to the north and west is a traditional mix of
town centre uses, predominantly retail use on the ground floor with residential and office
use above. A 4 storey office block adjoins the site to the east, beyond which the road
becomes more suburban with a mix of residential properties whereas to the south, on the
opposite side of Pembroke Road is the 6 to 8 storey former Times House office building,
now converted to residential flats.

The application site lies within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area on its south eastern

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



edge and also lies within the secondary shopping area of the Ruislip Town Centre as
designated within the Unitary Development Plan, Saved Policies (September 2007). It also
lies some 30m to the south of the Midcroft Area of Special Local Character and 100m to
the north of Ruislip Underground Station.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal seeks Conservation area consent for the demolition of the two storey wing
and garage at the rear of Nos. 157 - 161 High Street, Ruislip.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

Conservation area consent for the demolition of the two storey wing and garage at the rear
of Nos. 157 - 161 High Street, Ruislip (64711/APP/2011/684) was refused on the 24/06/11
for the following reason:

1. Planning application reference 64711/APP/2010/683 to erect a two storey building and
convert the existing building on site, involving its part demolition has been refused. As such,
there are no acceptable and detailed plans for any redevelopment. As such, the Local
Planning Authority does not have full information about what is proposed for the site after
demolition. In the absence of this information the proposed works are considered to be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE4 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan, Saved Policies (September 2007).

2. Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 23rd March 2011

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
3. Comments on Public Consultations
EXTERNAL:

119 surrounding properties have been consulted and press and site notices have been
posted. 3 responses were received objecting to the development of the site and these
objections are set out in detail in the report, also on this agenda (64711/APP/2011/214),
relating to the planning application. However, it should be noted that no objections were
received relating to the demolition of parts of the building.

INTERNAL:

URBAN DESIGN/CONSERVATION OFFICER:

ORIGINAL PLANS:

PROPOSAL: The erection of a two and a half storey building comprising 2 x two bed flats
and 2 x one bed unit and 2 x studio flats plus an extension to the Synergy Spa and ground

floor business unit, involving some demolition.

COMMENTS: The site is located at a prominent junction within the Ruislip Village

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



Conservation Area and the works will require the demolition of the two storey wing and
single storey garage to the rear of the existing building which fronts the High Street. This
building is one of a pair of similar and quite distinctive properties in the 'Queen Anne' style.

CONSIDERATION: There would be no objection in principle to the removal of the rear wing
of the existing property and to the redevelopment of the remainder of the site provided the
proposed scheme were appropriate in design/conservation terms as noted re the previous
application. The design approach is acceptable in principle, but there are a number of
design issues that still need to be addressed:

* The proposed commercial frontage should be finished with a traditional shopfront. Whilst
the side elevation of the existing frontage building includes some areas of undivided plate
glass, these are less than attractive and are not considered suitable for the main elevation
of the new building.

* The design of the street level doors should reflect the style of the building ie be a
traditional panelled door and the glazing details of dormer windows should follow those of
the original frontage building and include subdivision.

* To the rear, the quality of the detailing of the frontage should also follow through to the
back of the building e.g. rubbed/segmental brick arches, rather than the more basic
modern solider course detail. The windows and dormers should also be of the same
pattern/design as the frontage.

* The new building would step forward of Pembroke House on Pembroke Road. The type
and scale of planting in the raised bed to the flank of the building will be important as it will
need to soften the visual impact of the buildings forward position in the street scene. A
more preferable approach would be to step the footprint of the new building towards the
east to link with the building line on Pembroke Road.

* It is noted that amenity space/parking has not been provided as part of this scheme.

* A similar scheme is currently proposed for the adjoining site at nos 153 -155, which may
need to be considered when determining this application.

* Subject to the above and if minded to agree, conditions should be attached to any
approval re samples of all materials to be provided for approval, plus detailed drawings of
architectural features such as the timber dentil cornice, shopfronts, brick arches over the
windows, windows and dormers, the chimney stacks and projecting brickwork corbels, this
level of detail will be important to the success of the scheme. We should also ensure the
rear of the frontage building is fully completed as agreed.

CONCLUSION: Improved, but design revisions required.
AMENDED PLANS:

Scheme is acceptable.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.8 To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which
contribute to their special architectural and visual qualities.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



Part 2 Policies:
BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main issue to be considered in the determination of this application is the acceptability
of demolition of part of the building and its impact upon the character and appearance of
the Ruislip Village Conservation Area.

The attached two storey wing and garage is of no intrinsic architectural or historical merit.
Furthermore, it does not specifically contribute to the character and appearance of the
Ruislip Village Conservation Area. The Council's Conservation Officer raises no objection
to the demolition of this structure. The proposed demolition, in itself, is therefore not
considered to be detrimental to the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area. Furthermore, as the associated planning application
64711/APP/2011/214 also being reported to this committee is considered to be acceptable,
the demolition of part of the building would not leave a partially vacant and unsightly plot.
The application for conservation area consent is therefore recommended for approval.

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 CAC16 Time Limit (3 years) - Conservation Area Consent

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the
date of this consent.

REASON
To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

INFORMATIVES

1 The decision to GRANT conservation area consent has been taken having regard
to all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT conservation area consent has been taken having regard
to the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning
Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including the London Plan
(February 2008) and national guidance.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



Notes

Site boundary

s E1 Sub Sta
\

+ 8
Ey -
.-"3--

avod aNa 1saM

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Ruislip

157 - 161 High Street

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Act 1988 (the Act). Planning Application Ref: Scale

Unless the Act provides a relevant 6471 1/APP/201 1/21 5 1 :1 ,250

exception to copyright.
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Plannmg Committee Date
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011 NorthPage 134 May 2011

LONDON




Agenda Annex

Plans for
North
Planning Committee

19th May 2011

FHILLINGDON

NNNNNN

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address SOUTH RUISLIP LIBRARY, PLOT B VICTORIA ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Erection of a part three and a half, part four storey block and a three storey
block comprising a total of 19 one-bedroom and 12 two-bedroom flats,
together with associated parking and amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 67080/APP/2010/1420

Date Plans Received: 16/06/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 16/06/2010
Date Application Valid: 16/06/2010 04/10/2010
11/10/2010
13/04/2011

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



E| £0/d/v¢yA/600¢

LNOAV1 40014 ANNOYD % 31IS A3SOdONd

NOILdI¥OS3a

AdYHEIT dITSINY HLNOS

103roNd

AR “ON ONIMVHA
04/20/S0 ds €V © 005'L
3iva A8 NMYNA VoS

vZTLLT §6810 X0
11106Z G68L0 ‘|
MNL BEN ‘X4SATACIN 190 ¥EXN ‘=¥INID DINID ‘¢Ci/Ny
S103r0kd NOIIONYISNOD LONYW
NOONOT

NOAODNITTIH

sejou oISy | Ay
sBujjamp Jo xjw uj ebuey?) e|
pejsnipe 2’81 %00]q Jo Juudjoo e
pajesojas sseooe yJed JeD e
pepuswe adeaspue| [ewe)x3 e|
0L/20 | V8 panow souesue sjuspisey o V'
Ppajeoo|al Jajjeys SjoAD e|
Ppepiwo eale Aejd uaplIyD e|
Ppajeso|al 810)s uig |
peppe seoeds Bupyed Jeo ONg e|
pajsnipe-a1
Juud Jooj pasiaal sueld J0o|d |
0L/60 | V& ON 9¢ 0} pajsnipe-a1 Bupped 1ep o] 8
pley Buiked
OJul PapUBJXd SBUEBPUNOY B)S e|
uomysod
oLl [ va “Bxe 0} pejsnipe-aJ seupunoq e)is 9
Lo | Ve pajsnipe sjuiod sseooe yedsey | a
LLED | va pajsnipe juudioo) e yooig | 3
LUY0 | VS peuBisepe | yooig | 4
ourg Spue)s 9joAD ainoeg
ouy (anisnjour) pejgesia
ougg (lenuapisay) seoeds Bupeq
989 lejol
LW6S Q0e113) Jooy
LWLl :sajuoojeg
wsey :Ajuswe paseys
- W06 :suapieb ajeAld
:umopyealg
-UZg9  papiroid soeds ajgeasn [enjoy
ZW089 paJinbal wnwijuiy
:saoeds Ajuswy
ONLE Sield (€101 2 8 | syoolg
ON9L 1oL
ONZ WG, ® (QHM) Siel dy g2
ONZ AU9Q © Siel de 82
ONZ MSD Sy dz g1
200Ig XIN [euapisey
ONSGL lejoL
ONl WG/ ® (QHM) Sies dv 82
ONE UG, D Sieldy 82
ONLL LG D S dz g1

L 00Ig XN [BBUSPISSY

SsleyoNgL  Z>oolg -

SIEYONGL  Loo|g- |enuspisey e

AOSE'Z e BlS *
8 107d

Ajuay g UOIEPOWILIODDY JO BINPAYDS

ONIMV¥A SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON O
pepode oq jsnu

ue Bupiew o Hiom Bur
P o A UL

S3LON

7
7%
i

/ anuan /
/ a|doad BunoA | o

¢ooig

splal4 Buikeld

6l11/0102/ddV/80.9 -:3ONIH343H
ONINNV1d 43ANN d3AOHddY

(VILN3QISTY B STILITIOVS
ONINYYIT LINAVY ‘A¥vadiT 017and) < |_|Ol_ n_
* IN3JINdO13A3A IS daXIN




d ,0d/9d¢vA/600¢

¥OO0T4 ANNOXHD
NVY1d 31IS d3S0d0¥d

NOULdRIOS30

ONISNOH dITSINY HLNO!

“Toaroud

NOdAONITTIH

I8 X 3 NI ‘TL/NY
SL93r0Yd NOLLONALSNOD HOPYN
NOGNO

@eq | sepu oy
owsiz| va v
ous0m0|  va
G3L¥D013 IUOLS NIE 'Z
4300V S30VdS ONDRVA O ONS
01600 VA | GILSNNQV-3 INN 10O GISIAZY SNV1d ¥OOTHE| @

.ozxubnmﬁa.ﬁ(.mxozzﬁuﬁu.u
T3 ONIAVT aust

ONIMVG SIHL NOYS TTVOS LON 00

S3UoN

09€°GE+ 144
alua)

ajdoad BunoA

$S800Y_"
m.:oEmM/ S

spjel4 Buikeld

NOILVOITddV

ONINNV1d 31VdVd3S

Ol 103rdNs LNINdO13A3A
AdVHaAIT d3S0d0dd

panowal
J9A0SSO0I0
Bunsixa

70N
~
y
7
.
,
.
v
P
y
Aingsures
P s
// \\
X
X
A
\\ //
\. /
N I, \\>
NS




Noisiay

0102 AV
aiva

d| 80/d/a9cva/600c

oN NG

ve W@00z:L
V08

A8 02H03HO A3 v

¥YOO04 Lsyld
NVY1d 31IS d3S0d0¥d

NOULdNIOS30

a.107d

31IS ONISNOH dITsSINd HLNOS

“Toaroud

NOd

NOONOY

ONITTIH

senul

oL80/80

va 107290 0L 43334 G3LVO0 T34 SSIO0V Hhivd AVO'

‘semou orspey oy

<

GALSNNY INRd 1004 ONIGTINE'Y
300V SONITIZMA GI18VSIA TIN3 K0LE.
‘SONITIZMG 40 XIN NI JONVHOZ.
3SINTY SNYId ¥OOTS'L

0480780

va | G3LSNNav-3 INNA 1004 G3SIAZYH SNVId HO0T4E | 8

T3 ONIAVT aust

‘ON9E OL G3LSNIAY-3Y ONDRIVA ¥YO'?|

ONIMVG SIHL WOYS TTVOS LON 00

S3UoN

SS800V_ "
m_zo_cmw/, -

09€°GE+ 144
alua)

ajdoad BunoA

panowal
J9A0SSO0I0
Bunsixa

spjel4 Buikeld

NOILVOITddV

ONINNV1d 31VdVd3S

Ol 123rdNs LNINdO13A3A
AdVH4AIT d3S0d0dd

v 101d

Aingsures




g

NoisIzY

60/d/9¢vA/600¢

‘o ONMVID

0L0Z AV
auva

ve L@00z:L
V08

A8 034030 A3 NmvE

¥0O0T4 ANODO3S
NVd 31IS d3S0d0¥d

NOUROS30

a.107d
LIS ONISNOH dINSINY H1NOS

7

30 QNI “TL/NY

ssjou uosney oy

oe0is0|  va

1072v0 01 43434 G3LVOO0T3Y SS300V VA ¥VO'S|
GALSNNAY INRId 1004 SONITTING'Y.

‘FONVIAIOD SONITIZMA GITEYSIA TINd %04 'E
‘SONITIZMG 40 XIN NI JONVHOZ.

O3SIA3H SNYId HOO'E

ovomo| va

ILSNNAV-3Y LN 1004 GISIAZY SNV1d HOOT4E| 8
‘ON9E OL G3LSNIAY-3Y ONDRIVA ¥YO'?|
T3 ONIAVT f

ONIMVYQ SIHL WO¥4 TTV0S LON 0Q

09€°Ge+ 144
anua)

ajdoad BunoA

SS800Y_ "
BINoIYaA S

spjel4 Buikeid

NOILVOITddV

ONINNVd 31VdVd3S

Ol 193rdnNs LIN3INdO13A3d
AdVHaIT d3S0d0dd

panowal
J9A0SSO0I0
Bunsixa

Aingsures




d|( 0l/d/acvra/icooc

Norsinay ononma
0L0Z AV ve LY®@00zZ:1
| xagmoano sa i Tvos

NV1d 4004
NV1d 31IS d3S0d0¥d

NOUIOS30

a.107d
LIS ONISNOH dITSINY H1NOS

ML 88N 'X3STIQ0IN I8 X 3 NI ‘TL/NY
SL93r0Yd NOLLONALSNOD HOPYN
NOONOY

NOAODNITTIHE

3 )
5

@eq | sepu ‘smou vospey oy

Tozvaor VIO T
GELSNNGY INRd 1004 ONIGTING'Z
GISIAT NVd J00¥ L

ouea0|  va

0460580 VA | GILSNNOV-Y LNId LOOS GISIATY SNV1d 400 €| @
“ON9E OL GA1SNFAY-3Y ONDRIV ¥YOZ|
T34 ONIAV T aust

ONIMVG SIHL NOYS TTVOS LON 00

S3UON

09¢°GE+ 144
anua)

ajdoad BunoA

$S800Y
m_zo_cww///

- meN Q)

ooeds Ajuswe

spjel4 Buikeld

NOILVOITddV

ONINNV1d 31VdVd3S

Ol 193rdNs LNINdO13A3A
AdVHAIT d3S0d0dd

panowsal
J9AOSS0I0
Bunsixa

Aingsures




3| 8l/d/acra/e00c

“ON ONIMVHA
0102 834 dS LY © 001}
ava A8 NMVA | eV B 00Z:L_3TVOS

”YOOT4 ANNOHD
SNV1d 30014 A3S0d0¥d :} %0078

NOLLAINOS3a
8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dINsINd HLNOS

103roMd

Y2TLLT GBBIO XD
1110GZ G6810 i8]
MNL BEN X4SATCAIN'I00I¥EXN ‘4YIND D AID *¢CI/N¥
S103r0¥d NOIIONYISNOD ¥OTVA

NOONOT

NOdODNITTIHN:

e ) G300V ¥3LTIHS T10A0 ONKES|
ELSNNQY JONVALNG SINIIS3H §|

‘ON ORIV HON ¥O4 30N LNRId 1004 ONITINE'?|
"SONVITINO SON TI3MA U3 18YSIQ 1N %0ET
‘SONITIZMA 40 XIA NI JONVHOZ|

G3SIATY SNYId HOO4 L

ou6oBo| vB | G3LSNPOV-3 INId 1004 GISIATY SNVId B0t e | 8
‘ON9E OL GILSNNQY-2Y ONDRIVA WO Z|

1314 OVAVIA OLY L
o) NOLLYAZT3 OL GLSNFAY 3SVOuViS |
oy 0300V $3ONFHIITH 1FAHSVAVG | @
oz w 133HS 01030V SNVId OO TV | 3

ONIMV¥A SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON 0a
Dupenoxd axyeqomnspaipy Xemioo) sy o peyodes e s

0 BUROS ©10}0q OIS OUA 16 SUOISUBWIP I AJHOA 181U IOIOBIUOD BYL

S3ION

T

NV1d 4004

NV1d 0014 dNZ ® 1S

woz

Sl

oL S

NV1d 40014 OILLVY

‘yasuepun jo ouj

o

snay

NV1d ¥00T4 ANNOYUD

aag 03k

= 2 o=

=

Page 142




a| 61/d/92va/600¢

A3 “ON ONIMYNA
0L0Z 834 ds IV ® 0011
aiva A8 NMVXa [ eV ® 002:h_3T¥DS
HOO014 1Syl

SNY1d 0014 a3S0d0¥d L ¥00718

NOILLdINOS3a

8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dITsINd HLNOS

103ro¥d

mni gan 40 DIAID ‘¢L/NY
ISNOD ¥OrvH

NOONOT

NOdAODNITTIHN:

04/60/60 v

ONIXVA FHOM HO3 GIANILXE L4OUONIANN'Y
"FONVIIAINOD SONITIZM G318¥SIA 1IN %OLE
SONITIZMA 20 XIN NI JONVHOZ,

G3SIATY SNV1d MO0}

01608z| va | GILSNMOV-3 LN LOOS GISIAY SNVId 00Tt €

ONIMVHQ SIHL WO¥4 3TVOS LON 0d

“BuIpee00.d 610}q JOIRISIUIPY 1IBUOD 4) O} Paoda 6q Jsnu
* 5P Auy ue Bupiews 1o

woz

NV1d 40014 1Sdid

S3LON

Sl

ol

Page 143




g| 0¢/d/acvaseo0e

L] “ON ONIMVNA

0L0Z 834 ds LY @ 00L:1L
aiva A8 NMVXA [ eV ® 002:h_3T¥DS

¥OO0T4 ANOD3S woz
SNY1d 40014 A3S0d0yd L X008

NOILLdINOS3a

8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dITsINd HLNOS

103ro¥d

VZTLLT S6BLO XO4

MNL 88N X454
$103r0¥d NOILONY.

40 DIAID “¢L/NY
00 ¥OrvH

NOONOT

NOdAODNITTIHN:

NV1d 0014 ANOD3S

ovewso| va

ALY INRIA 1004 ONIGTING'Y
‘FONVIINOD SONITIZN G318¥SIA 11N %OLE
‘SONITIZMA 20 XIN NI JONVHO'Z,

G3SIAZY SNV1d HOOTS'E

01608z| va | GILSNMOV-3 LN LOOS QIS SNVId 00Tt €

3 L

RI=10 b _ D,

py v 2 ]
€1 1V e

L

@

(@]

obuno
dorss

ONIMY¥A SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON Od

“Bupeeoaid e10jeq JOJeSIUILIPY 1IEAUCD B 0} peLioda aq Jsnw
x ip Auy Aus Bupteu Jo

S3LON

Page 144




ga| 1¢/d/acvyaseo0e

A3 “ON ONIMYNA
0L0Z 834 ds Sx@oo—;
aiva A8 NMVXa [ eV ® 002:h_3T¥DS
NV1d 4004

SNV1d Y0014 a3S0d0yd :+ ¥0018

NOILLdINOS3a
8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dITsINd HLNOS

:]
103ro¥d

MNL 88N ‘X45470
$103ro¥d N

NOONOT

NOAODNITTIH

oveaso| va

GFUILWY 3dVHS 00NV

‘FONVIIANOD SONITIZM G318YSIA 1IN %OLE
‘SONITIZMA 20 XIN NI JONVHOZ,

G3SIATY SNVId MO0}

01608z| va | GILSNMOV-3 LN LOOS GISAY SNVId 00Tt €

ONIMY¥A SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON Od

“Bupeeoaid e10jeq JOJeSIUILPY 1IEAUCD B} 0} peLiodal aq Jsnw
x ip Auy Aus Bupteu Jo

S3LON

woz

NV1d 4004

Sl

ol

Page 145




DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

Combination of fairface Brickwork and Coloured

PROPOSED EXTERNAL FINISHES
render finish

EXTERNAL WALLS

NOTES

o8 120010

g & Z
> < o ;
A Z3 ¢
: g2 b Yo og
§_ % - 2 le —~ g3
852 858 38 HEL s
) [mm “ ”
i
ETEE
i \ ‘ |
i
R T
00 0 H | B
H H B 5 -
ffffff 2
T
F F FHl & ‘ ‘ i
> __|
< [ C i
[ | @
(] E g
&
[ ]
. —| i —
[ |
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
I I (7))
Z
T 5
HEE | >
o 3
Hi = HH E AT
£ &
o |
= =] = 2 O
-
Page 146 (a8

B

DATE

IFEB 2010

DRAWN BY

lsp

BLOCK 1: PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
2009/D42B/P/22

SOUTH RUISLIP HOUSING SITE

PLOTB
1:100 @ A1

PROJECT
DESCRIPTION
SCALE
DRAWING No.




a

A3y

9¢/d/92vAa/600¢

ovowwVIa

010z 834
Siva

dS £V © 002}
Iwos

A8 02XOHO A8 NaD

SNV1d 400714 d3S0d0¥d 2 %0078

NOLLARIOS30

a.107d
AYVHEIT dITSINY HLNOS

103r0ud

aieq

01/60/60

oMo v uogenele o} paisnipe eseasels | 8
o | va Poppe seauesojel joous &iea | O
vz | wes Poppe suB(d j0oI PUE 'S100} 5,2 B b | @

ONIMVH § HL NOX4 3708 LON 0Q

s

NV1d 4004

NG | 4| HH I L L

NV1d 400714 ANNOHO

Page 147




V| LZ/d/9¢¥a/600C

A3 “ON ONIMYNA
0L0Z 834 ds LY @ 00L:1L
aiva A8 NMVXA [ eV ® 002:h_3T¥DS

™00 Lsyld woz
SNY1d 0014 A3S0d0¥d 2 ¥00718

NOILLdINOS3a

8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dITsINd HLNOS

103ro¥d

40 DIAID “¢L/NY

NOONOT

NOdAODNITTIHN:

NV1d 40014 1Sdld

ot o ot Lol

"FONVIIAINOD SONITIZM G318¥SIA 1N %OLE
‘SONITIZMA 20 XIN NI JONVHOZ,
G3SIATY SNVId HOOTH'}

ONIMY¥A SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON Od

“BuIpee00.d 610}q JOIRISIUIPY 1IBUOD 4) O} Paoda 6q Jsnu
* 5P Auy ue Bupiews 1o

S3LON

Page 148




V| 8¢/d/d¢va/e00e

A3Y N ONIMVHA
010z g34 ds LV © 004:1
3lva A8 NMV¥A | eV @ 0021 _3TVOS

¥00T4 ANOO3S woz
SNV1d ¥0014 03S0d0¥d 2 %0078

NOILdI¥OS3a

8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dI1SINY HLNOS

103rodd

VZTLLT G810 X04

MNL 88N ‘X3S
SL

NOONO1

NOdAODNITIIH

NV1d 0014 ANOD3S

e gy =
P ——

3ONVITdWOD SONITIZMA G318VSIA TIN4 %0L'E

SoumSna o o

s oot

ONIMV¥A SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON Od

e Bupyew Jo “yom Bu
n &

S3LON

Page 149




V| 6¢/d/9¢va/600¢

A3Y N ONIMVHA
010z g34 ds LV © 004:1
31va A8 NMV¥A | eV @ 0021 _3TVOS

NV1d 400y

SNV1d 0014 03S0d0¥d 2 %0078

NOILdI¥OS3d

8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dISINY HLNOS

103r0¥d

NOONODT

NOAODNITTIH

g [sienu] Sai0u UoISAaY | Aodl

ey -
[——

SONVITdNOD SONITIZMA G318SIa TIN3 %OL
‘SONITIZMA 40 XIW NI 39NVHO'
GISIATY SNV1d HOOTd'

ONIMV¥A SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON 04

e Bunye Jo “yom Bu
n &

S3LON

NV1d 4004

Page 150




g 0€/d/a¢va/600¢

A3y ‘0¥ ouMVIa
010z 834 dS £V © 002:1
iva | AsamosHo A8 NaD 3108

SNOILYAZT3 3S0d0O¥d 2 X008

NOLLARIOS30

a.107d
31IS ONISNOH dITSINY HLNOS

NOILVATT3 LSIM

NOILVATT3 HLNOS

S
MmN 88N X %0 DIND ‘ZH/N¥
s orvn
NOONOY
NOAODNITTIH

aieq  [sew| 310U OISIARY ray)
oveorsz | va Q3ANIWY SNolvATTE| v
LLBO/LL | WVS (G3AN3WY TIV130 39014 400d| 8

Buipeysnjieg
[elow (Ddd) pejeod Japmod
S3INODVE

Inojod 819 Ul SMopuIM

wnuiwnyy (Ddd) pPe)eoo Jepmod
SMOANIM ® SH00a

Joou payoyd ‘Bep

G'ZZ UO sjoued Je|og pue saje|s Aain
jooy

ysiuy JopusJi painojod

Ppue y1omyoug 8Jele) JO UOKEUIqUOD
STIVM TYNY3LX3

S3HSINIH TYNY3LX3 d3SOd0oud

ONIMVX § HL NOM4 3708 LON 00

e

By

i

[

i

[ I}

NOILVYATT3 LSY3

NOILVATT3 HLYON

Page 151




d| 11/d/92¥Aa/600C

“ON ONIMVNA

A3
o T el ool D078 AMVHEIT-1SV3
1Sv3 HLNOS % HLNOS | HLNOS NOILVATT3 3LIS a3s0d0Odd
SNOILYATT3 3LIS 3S0d0¥d
NOLLAINOS3a
8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dITsINd HLNOS
103royd / V. 10T
> ﬂ////ﬁﬁ/
9 DIAID TL/NY VT i HINOS
fahel f _m ) _ ) ] - LINVI ¥3ddNS
NOAODNITTIH s | ..

‘SINOAYT NN 1ins OL

e [t | IN3HOS MIN OL GILSNOY SNOUVAZT 5

NOILYOITddV ONINNV1d 3L¥HVd3S OL LO3rans
ANINHOTIAIA AYVHEIT A3SOd0Odd

Page 152

HLNOS SNOILVAZTE 13341S a3s0dOdd

7

Buipesisnjeq ejow pejeod Jepmod
S3INOOTVE

anojoo
£19 uj SMOpuUM WNjujWIN]y P3JE0D J9PMOd
SMOGNIM ® SH00a

1001 payoyd Conn ! TR

“Bap g2z uo sjpued sejos pue sajeis a1
. NOILYOIddY ONINNVd 3LY¥Vd3S OL 103rans

ysiuy Jopuai N3WJOTIAIA AYVHEN 03SOOYd

PaIN0IOD PUE YOG S0BJIE} JO UOREUIGIOD
STIVM TYN¥31X3

SIHSINIA TYNYILX3 3SOdOdd

ONIMVYA SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON 0d

Aue Bupyeuw Jo
%

S3LON




m ¢l/d/devasesooe

“ON ONIMVNA
28 AVN _ WO Sm
31va A8 NMVNA

LS3M HLYON 8 HLYON
SNOILYA313 3LIS 3S0d0dd

Y0079 AdVHEIT-1S3IM
HLHON NOILVYATT3 31IS A3S0d0dd

NOILJI¥OS3a

8.107d
31IS ONISNOH dITsINd HLNOS

103rodd

NOONOT

NOAODNITTIH

e e ¥

s [ | INEHOS MIN OL GILSNOY SNOUVAZT 5

NOILYOITddY ONINNV1d 31LV¥Vd3S OL 103rans
AN3WdOT3AIA AYVHEIT A3SOdO¥d

Page 153

HLYON NOILVAZTI ¥V3y d3S0d0dd

o , . .

Buipesisnjeq |ejow pejeod Jepmod
S3INOOTVE

anojoo
£19 Ul SMOpuUM WnjujWN]y PaJE0D J9PMOd
SMOGNIM ® SH00a

1001 payoyd
“Bap 52z uo sjaued Jejog pue sejels ko1
100y

ysiuy Japuai
PaIN0IOD PUE YOG S0BJIE} JO UOREUIGIOD
STIVM TYN¥3LX3

NOILYOITddV ONINNV1d 3LVHVd3S OL LO3rans
INIWDOTIAIA AUVAEIN AISOdOYd

SIHSINIA TYNYILX3 3SOdO¥d

ONIMVYA SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON 0a

Aue Bupyew Jo
%

S3LON




da| ¢€1/d/9¢va/e600e
‘A3Y “ON ONIMVHA
0L0Z AVIN ve _ A4 @ 002: |
3Lva A8 NMVHA m..(h
OSIN
SNOILVAT13 3LIS A3SOd0odd
ZX0079--1sva
e ZM0079--1SaIM
g101d NOILVAZT3 3LIS d3S0d0Odd
31IS ONISNOH dITSINY HLNOS Zo_._.<>m|_w m._._w meomomn_
103royd
¥TTLLT S6810 X04
LL10GZ S6810 ‘oL
MNL 88N ‘X3ISTTAAIN'IOAINEXN *IYLNID DIAID ‘ZL/N¥

S103r0¥d NOILON¥LSNOD ¥OrYW

. T T T e
T o %?Z/// e // ///
NOAONITIIH 10 _ /%///%%% %%% /% M//y//////%// ///W//M%///
\\\WNW\\\\\\\M " | e . /g W/ . . .
o —
e [t | IWIHOS MN OL GILSNAY SNOUVATT @
4
To]
(0]
(@)
Q)
o
1 ¥0018-1LSaIm 1 ¥0018--1SY3 HLNOS
HLHON NOILVATT3 31IS d3S0d0dd NOILVATT3 31IS A3S0d0¥d

2)

= [ I - =

il

Bujpessnjeg ejaw pajecd Jepmod
S3INOOVE

[

anojoo
£19 uj SMOpUM WNjujWN]y P3JE0D J9PMOd S
SMOGNIM ® SH00a

1001 payoyd
“Bap g2z uo sjpued sejos pue sajeis a1 -
100y

ysiuy Jepuai
PaIN0j0D PUE YIOV{OUE BIELIE} JO UOJEUIGIOD
STIVM TYNY3LX3

S3HSINI4 TYNHILX3 03S0dO¥d
ONIMYA SIHL WOXH 3TVOS LON 0a

ki B
%

S3LON




V| €2/d/9¢¥A/600C

E] ‘ON ONIMVHA
0102 AV ve _ LV © 051
31va A8 NMVA | eV @ 00L:L_J1VOS.

NOLLO3S TVOIdAL 281 %0018

NOLLINOS3a

g107d
31IS ONISNOH dITSINY HLNOS

103r0¥d

NOQONITTIH Z 2 1 Y0019 HONOYWHL
iy NOILD3S TVHINIO 1VIIdAL

@eg_[sieni] Saiou uoisined | Aeu

ooz | va | S 0L GasIAT NOLLO3S | v

) oW
ooy — VN ——
ONAT
L ™ %0000 reem ™ ooueEa
H
H
o ]
noo¥az8 R
00 ™ OO HOOMHLVE TH
ONAT
I9uNG
L
H
omwa
oo ™ oo ooV ™ AoouEa
AT
19NN
H

ONIMVHA SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON 0a

Aue Bupjeus o 5
Kyonysnun

S3LON




¥2/d/a2vAa/600¢

E] ‘ON ONIMVHA
0102 AV ve _ LV © 051
31va A8 NMVA | eV @ 00L:L_T1VOS.

NOLLO3S 340D TVOIdAL 281 %0078

NOLLINOS3a

g107d
31IS ONISNOH dITSINY HLNOS

103r0¥d

N3O OAID “ZL/NY
¥_SNOJ ¥Orvw

NOONO1

NOdODNITTIH

sejouvoisney | Asy

ONIMVHA SIHL WO¥4 3TvOS LON 0a

Aue Bupjeus o 5
Kyonysnun

¢ ? 1 X00719 HONO™YH.L

NOILD3S FAU0D TVIIdAL

[ -wah
roouEa
.H Hoami00 N
an AN
&3
S
oL
o0 w ]
owg
%0000 Hoocza
N
B a
& o
o
3
] —
oo A
owNg
voamoo roouEa
N
N
1]
S
b
2]
o
-
==

S3LON

A\




0| S0/d/de¢¥a/eo0c

a on onmviG
oL 3NN dS 2v @ 008:1
awva| saamomo | sewawo wos

SASITVNY 3OVdS ALINIWY

NOLLARIOSIT

8.107d
AdvHE dINsind HLNOS

103r0ud.

80BLI8} JOOI ‘SBIUODJE] - SEalE Ajusuwy

ez 14z s68
1Ll 08z 568

MNL BEN X3S IBXN ‘IUINID DAID ‘ZH/NY
$.0310¥d NOILONYLSNOD HOPVA

NOONO

NOdONITTIH:

@eq | senul sajou vorsinay oy
012002 dS “pareinojes-as sease eoeds Aowy | v
G3SIATY SIOVAS ALINIWY 30 TINTIHOS
ove0tz| Ve G3SIAZY NV1d ¥004 ONOD3S | 8
GISIATY NV1d ¥OOTd LSl
G3SIAZY NVd ¥OO3 ONNOYS

01/6080( V8 | GILSNFQV-3Y LNRA 1004 OISIATY SNV ¥OOTH'E
‘ONGE OL GALSNFAV-3Y ONDINVA WVO'Z|

°

1313 ONIAYId OLNI GIONILX3 SINVANNOE JLIS'L

ONIMVQ SIHL WOX4 FTVOS 10N 00

0 A ue B 60
A

S3L0N

seaJe pedeospue| Joylo

seoepns peoybuied D
undiooy Buiping _H_

punoib jeussixe - seale Ajuswy I

A

ZWEOL leloL
ZWBEL sejuodjeq
WG9S 9|qesn punoib [euse)xe
yoym Jo

2W9Z8 uoisiroid [ejo]
WE0L soeds Ayuewe sjgeesn
MMQ0. Pbaiuw  seoeds Ayuswy
‘ONLE Spue)S 8joAD aIngeg
ONY ( eAIsnjoul) pejqesiq

ON9E  (lenuspisey) seoeds Bunjed

‘oulg 1eloL
ONV  -WSZ® (QHM) Sl dv '8¢
ONg G, @ Sy dy 82
ONp 99 @ Siey dg 8-
ONS LG @ siely de ‘g-L
XU [eRuepIsey
Siey oN9J Zxo0|g -
Siey NG} 1%00Ig - |epuepisey
OGE'Z ealee)s g 107d

Sealy Ajjuslly g UOJEPOLIWIOD0Y JO 8|NPaydS

005°S€+ 144

g 1071d

spioid Buikeld

[

woy

S€ [ k14 0z Sb oL ) 0 o
1NOAV1 0014 NNO¥O | 1 \

leguapisey / 03V

000'9€+ T34
| dooig

funqsures




¥0/d/a92vAa/600¢

NOISI3Y ON SNIMVaIG

0L0Z AV ve LYD00S: b
a1va Twvs.

A8 02X03HO A8 N0

NV1d NOILITOW3Aa ANV TVAOW3Y 3341

NoU#0s3a

8107d
31IS ONISNOH dITsINY HLNOS

“ToaroNd

V2Z L1z GeBI0 03

ML 88N 'X3ST

=[]

ONIMYG SIHL WOt TTVOS LON 0a

S3U0N

o9e'sE+ 144
aquen
s|doad BunoA

sunog siuus]
000'GE+ 144
20018

NOLLONMLSNOO 3NN %0018

150078 40 NN

wea [/

7
panowe aq o} sea Bupsixg \\

<Pt ke
paulelel aq o} seal) Bugsix3 .

auipno Bunyed Jeo/peos pesodoid

suipno bulping pesodold ——————

Asepunog ey

A

NOLLYOINddY
ONINNV1d 3LVHVd3s

01 123rans LNIWdOT13A3a
a3sn a3xIN a3sododd

spjeld Buikeld




€0/d/9¢¥a/600¢

o onoNmwig
60/60/vZ VS 2v © 008}
aiva Jarwvea aos
A3AMNS TYOIHAVEOO0OL

Nouanosza

ONISNOH ® AYVHEI dITSINY HLNOS

103r0ud

YZTLLT S68I0 X04
1110ST 56810 ‘9L

ML 88N ‘XISTIAAIN ‘3OCRIBXN ‘JUINIO JIAID ‘ZH/NY
103roNd NOLLONYULSNOD ¥OrvM

NOONOT

NOdODNITTIH

eeq | siequl sejou uoisney | Aoy

“ojfjow @z YN Iy ‘UMaN : pesn wnjeq

Jawos peuluEiopun
1oHOS MO0
JoHag PAUIGUID
JaMag JIEM 208pNS
Jomes 04

00 dors e OSM afa Buppoy 34 a0d kyouoer3 43
oL EIEM WM o(ge0 Buispy 9y 20800 pU3 103
nouseM OM. 9818 Buneg Sd PI00al J0 U3 O3
AOLIOM TN Jejeuw Buned Wd X0q uogoun| %9[3 83
odd oA dA X0q150d 8d Qo) doig YO
euBis oyl S IBANO 40 oy abeueiq 0g
o4 odid jo oL 1L PIR0g BN BN 1048, 6udod 1d9
opod udeibofay dL VN DN 2080100 pIN0D INO
By oelL 1L AU H 110U PIN0D D
Buped ojoe . o 150d due] o1 Py 10U PINOD IND
801
‘odd1ueh 108 dAS ¥oq uogounr g 99159400 10
NN dois AS 0r3| L3R | 1 Mep 81GeD 400
eddpueig 1S 4en0o uooadsu O] 18400 \L 81GED ALY
150d UBIS oS oNBASED AD x0q uogoun! 18 €18
jonel duing 15 A9 ©  1A0o wooaeL Ustig 18
%00 daig 0§ Wwesphy 8ild Hy peejog jog
‘odid Jojem uleY dMY Wenys feuld 34 daipyoeg a8
UBIS peoy Sy Poq iawold g4 U0eaq BUSIOIeE 88
Buureiay 1y Po1 e3 ¥3 aneny AY
SNOLLYIATHEEY
UM UBLO MO
B0ue} UPOOM, /M Bujed JnuisaLd D e
U pu 150d A AIUSO VD ueooe g -
IBIPUBISOd Mid  UOA PREBILIO) 1D
wowopd Jd papeoqeso g O3 18v0 AVIHEINO
Bugeivon ¥ awnpeqeg WA
$3dAL 30N34 8.4 ) sedom doas
& sinowoy
- o) -
123
Hepunog peuyepuny 29p+  siens| jods
Sny) umoys sabpay V1va13A31
S UMOUS e, d8 & ssod iepunog
SNy umoys S804 NIS <7 suogers fanng
SNLY3S V.LVQTOHINOD

ONIMV:Q SIHL WO¥4 3TVOS 1ON 00

%

salon

spomen
5D [EUOREN S0 0 0 peles e tou aicaseu &8 DL
SERUIRIO-0) SUeKdShel SUORESS 10U [y “SUORENSA0 S

‘uojeoyRUSp! 881 JO ey ey} | sis|jeloeds Jou eie 4T skeaing
llepuey Jeys pajou eq pjnoys 3| ‘peAojdwe eq JsumnopoGIe
Isierads e o SeolAIsS By} Jey) PuBLILLIOoa) AlBuons

pinom am uBisap 1oafoid sl Ul JuEpodw BWw0oeq Aew Sepads
92y Jo uopeaynuep| pesjuesent aieyp “Alige si0keains ay) Jo
1599 89U} O} PAYAUSP] UBSQ BARY BUIMEIP SIU} UO UMOYS S881L
JuBiay ‘(snipeJ) peaids * (2ouasejWINAID) YUID 2'%'L

S3L

¥IM3S OI18Nd 40 3NI

Y0078 A¥VHEIT M3N 40 3NIMLNO

‘sefuoyIne Aioymeys ey woyj ejqejieAe sBuimelp piooas Aue yum uogounfuco uj peas 8q pinoys Bumesp siyL e
“Bumesp iy} uo pepiaoid siiejop

oy uyuoo 0} aue sejoy ey Jo/pue uBisep o} [EIRYD S| BOIAIBS E JO Lydep JO/pUE LOREDD] 8speid B BIBUM «

*ea|AIes Jey) Jo Lidap 8y} JO %01 O} G -/+ O} 8jeinade s| Buimesp sjy} uo pekespod eapnes Aue o yidep pue uopisod ueid ey
*sBUIMEIp 8O|\IBS WY PeloRNSqe

U8aq 8ARY 1nq 'PasN alaum ‘HdD Aq 10 Alleojuoioala paoen aq 10U PINC YolyM SB0IAIeS a|qissod BUIUIEIOD BalE U Sajouap BUILdIEH o
‘pauluLBjep Ajejeinooe 8q pinod

S} "Saaw U pajonb aue sudep S0IL “BYS BU) UO USYELIAPUN SI UOHEABIXS AUE UBUM USYE} 5 IS 8180 anp ABAINS BU) JO SR SLATY
‘senew

ul pajonb eue syjdep 8.l 'e)is By} UO UBYEHSPUN S| UOREABOX® AUB UBYM U} 8q JSNW 8.ed anp AeAINs 8uy) JO Wi} 8} 18 108LI00 8q 0}

pansijeq si pajuesaid uogeusojul ay) IsIYM ‘uopisod pue soussaid Jiey) Wiyuod o) Jepio uj Bnp useq eaey ssjoy [ew) ou ‘tepes Bupensusd
punciB Jojpue Juswudinbs UOROBIEP 8BNS SjUOIIB|e BUISN Pajeoo] Usaq SABY BUIMEIP SIY} UO UMOUS SaINCl ajqeo pue adid ay) «

sanbai uodn payddns g ueo swes) asay | “A1us s0eds PaULUCO 1o} payiienb Ajjeudoidde ‘wes) Jsieroads & Bujsn usyepapun aq

Jaquieyd ayy ojul Aue jey) puswwooas pinom am ubisap joafaid 8y} 0} [EORLO 8q |jIM S|ieIep Jamas asaid a1eyA) pasjuesenb aq Jouueo
4ONS SE puE B0BLINS BU) WO JUBWISINSESW PUE UOREAISS]O AQ PBUIEIGO UBBq BABY BUIMEIP SIU} UO UMOUS S|IE18P B0YUBW PUE JOMES e

“uBAIB 8q UEO SPICOB) 858 JO AIRINGIE JO BBJUEIEN OU ‘OPEL UBB] BARY [|IM HOYS S|GEUOSES! [le YBnouye ‘pue

3senbai oy0ads U0 PE}INSUCD USAQ SABY AIUO [|IM SPICOS] IGMBS PUE ‘0D SOIAISS ‘SaUIIBPING OSHIN SU Ul Pas!| L) 0} algns
SuoieAIasqo AeAIns piey [euuou Aq paurejqo se aJe ‘0je sejqed ‘sujelp punoiBiepun o} Bunejes UOBIBY UMOYS UOHEULIOJUI PUE S|IEJep 8Y] e
S3LON LNVL¥OdNI

Page 159




.

-5 . s B
. B KeWedon Col
RN . P
. A3 . -,
_____ NS L.
.
S .

Playing Fields

Playing Fields

Tennis Co

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

South Ruislip Library Plot B
Victoria Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Ruislip & Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale 7

67080/APP/2010/1420 1:1,250 6-‘” 3
Planning Committee Date % F‘!t-

NorthPage 160 May 2011 ILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 104 ABBOTSBURY GARDENS EASTCOTE

Development: 1 x one-bedroom, single storey detached dwelling with new crossover to front
and associated parking and amenity space (Outline application with some
matters reserved.) (Resubmission)

LBH Ref Nos: 67398/APP/2011/481

Date Plans Received:  01/03/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 01/03/2011

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 161



v

WWHES X0ZY

. 10/8L8C

Aoy ‘on Bug
- 1410 Gp— 0L L30  5ig
00F "005° I ypue

‘ONIT13Ma
M3N 0350d04d

apiy buimeag

XAaIW
JL021SV3

SNI0YYD AYNgs1odav %0l
:Jo Jead je pueq

LdN0IV SHW oW
006279 S68T0 xed

00879 S68T0 ‘121

HHB vVH
XasalppIN
dijsiny

Aepn Jouewy 87T
g 3ns

S3JIAY3S INIWIOVNYIN
8 N9IS30 ONIaTing
‘0J7%® 31L10d ‘39

NOILYA3T3  3N3IS L3ILS

00Z:L °]e3s

SN304YV9

‘ZIEL ON “LVD 1D3LIHOHY

Adngslogsay

ITNVH ONN 3HL 40 1DONO0Hd ¥

NY1d 3LIS

NOILYJI1ddV DNINNVd

3INITLNO

Tieusaqu) wey -1 v3gy

Nv1d ¥0014 03S0d0¥d
s viea |

——

0L

000L

7 2eds ﬁ:_:aEm Jupzl

1ybuAdos )

SuDISIAGY

_ aleq

Aﬂ,.rd...dau 54.444...7144 ) 95Ty :n.c.ﬂww v

‘Buimelp Sy} woly pajess jou
puE 8115 UO PBYDAYD A ISNLW SUOISUBWIP ||V

13A2] punoJg

ﬁ

000%

-

00%8

uayagy ? |

Buay

.,u S ; .
4
; w ease yom |t

S3LON

jood 4o dof _

| -
TooorT™

00zL

I |
| |

7 |
“ 1

| Butjjamp — |

W Mau pasododg | |
_—
_ =T —  Buiysed
| ume] 42245 J40 ON |

oy pieq
g B S

041S 0} DIURLUD 4B Oh4T |
13421 Q2 e 2piM 0BSY 1
12A055042 juowdned may ‘

:h\\
,

N

Page 162




Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site Address

Land forming part of
104 Abbotsbury Gardens

Eastcote

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
67398/APP/2011/481 1:1,250

Planning Committee Date
North Page 163 May 2011

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND NORTH OF CARLTON PLACE RICKMANSWORTH ROAD
NORTHWOOD
Development: Use of land as dog day care and kennels to include 8 kennels, 4 stables, 1

office block, 1 toilet block and 1 store room.

LBH Ref Nos: 67584/APP/2011/232

Date Plans Received:  01/02/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 02/02/2011
Date Application Valid: 22/02/2011 14/02/2011
24/03/2011
06/04/2011

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 164



b0z hrenae oieq WD 004/ 0024 o

'SUOHEASIT 8|GEIS / [SUUSY [[BISAD

90INS / GHOL "0 PR e
100 SEOINAINPIGDON 1WA Z800 L2520 GO VEISLE (62610) 101 upequiey) SIN
Zvosam  emspopen  Awburisiooay  peoy SI0ady vh. 10}

% NOILVAZTA LSV3 TINN3X 1TVHIA0

378V.LS / 3HO3HO 900 a3S0d0¥d

P S108MyoIY pNAs 0 000 Gas0uoN
“TUH AYYIIMIN

Eun—ﬂgﬁsméggi Juswpuswy aeq Ay

138 LON S SNV SIHL

4 NOILVAZT3 HLNOS TaNN3X TIVY3A0

" NOILVAZTI HLYON T3INNIX 1TVH3IA0

oo E..H]H]H]H]HJ
wg

THE NORTH

©:4 NOILVAZT3 HLNOS NOILYHLSININGY TIVH3A0




'SY3dV SS300V JTOIHIA OL

110z Aienuer  :ele@ eV © 00S-1 :9e0g
sueld 9IS
400IMS / G¥OL **=e
a1 Bumesqg I
in°00'sjpoayyosepnds@oyul ews  Zv80Z9 L2520 ‘GON LELSLZ (€2610) JIPL ulpaqwey) sIN - Pl
Zv0SaM  euuspiojieH  Aelbuensioqqy  peoy sjoday vl 10}

oo 55 10 B s

ALINIOV4 ONINIVHL ©00 d3S0d0dd

P17 Sjo8lyoly pnds HLHOMSNYISON

“TH AYYEIIMIN

QL7 SLO3LIHONY aNdS @ NOISSINY3d ¥OIMd LNOHLIM L¥vd NI juswipuswy ajeg ‘A9
HO ATIOHM G3ONAONTY 38 LON LSNW ONIMYHA SIHL peppe skeq pajqesiq L 102/L0/.2Z v
19pJoq 0} sjuswpuswy L1L0g/L0/LE d
.co_moEEooomucmSo%oumu:mEucoE/\_‘Fom\o\om.n_
¢ .m
n_

'S$8J0e|1e|NdIY3A JO ugneuyuod | 10og/ _o\vo
‘aoueJjua 0} BuiAed 3|qeswusd Jouonewluo) | L0Z/#Q/S0

STANNIN

oo oo

SN

STANNIY

ONINIV¥L 900




110z Atenuer  :ejeq £V 05-L “ejeag

—
14

" Y0019 301440
‘oN Bumesq
SOLYIS / S¥OL
an‘00sjoeyyosepnds@ojul Hiewa  Z¥80Z9 L2520 [AON LELGLZ (€2610) 1oL ulpaqueyd sin
Zvosam  euuyspiopieH  Aejfueisioqqy  Peod sioqqy i 10}
FHVO AVA ANV ONINIVYHL 90d d3sOd0dd
P11 s1oaNyoIyY pNds .
H1IHOMSNVYAMOIY
“TIH AYHIAMIN
QL7 SLO3LIHOYY ANdS@ NOISSIWYId ¥ORd LNOHLIM LiVd NI juswpuswy ale ‘A9Y
4O ATIOHM G30NAOYAIY 38 LON LSNIN ONIMYHA SIHL osh
wg
NOILVAZ3 NOILVATT3
3dIS 301440 400dd TVANVA 3dIS 301440 400dd TVANVA
powuyuca pewsyuco
©q 0Jn0}o ‘800 Jooud ©q01Jn0j00 800 Jo0id
|EPUA BIAIS JBUIEIOD N [EPUEA 1A1S JBUIEI0D N
o o
8 8
Jepnys jooud Jepnys jooud
MOpuIM [epueA pu
o0zve 0zve
NOILVATT3 NOILVATT13
dVv3Y 301440 4008d TVANVA ¥003d 301440 400¥d TVANVA
/ & / —
8sBq 9j8J0U0D 8seq 8)esouo
pouLID pewuyuoo
8q 0} 1n0j00 ‘801Yo Joosd q 0}4n0J00 ‘80 Yo Jooud
[EPUEA 0IAIS JoUIEIUOD N [ePUBA 8IS JoUIEIOD N
o & a
g - =
100p Jo0id [BpUEA
059¢

099¢

| — |

€

4

(424

— —
b 0

NV7d 301440

099¢

Page 167



110z Arenuer - ‘9eQ £VO 05-} eleog

NV1d 3401S

1

" Y0079 3H01S
‘0|
GOLMS / G¥0OL ™=
opiL Bumeig
oospayyoiepndsojul IBWS Zv0Z9 L25L0 ‘GO LEVSLZ (€2640) L uljequieyd siIN
ZV0SaM  euyspiojuel  AejBueisjoqqy  peoy sjoqay vl Joy
Q JHVO AvVA ANV ONINIVHL ©0d d3S0d0dd
P S1O9)IYJIY pNAS :
HLHOMSNVYIMOIY
“TTIH AYHIIMIN
QL7 SLO3LHOHY andS® NOISSINYId HORdd _.:mﬂ.__.\"% men__zé juswpuswy ale ‘A9Y
O ATIOHM G30NA0YdIY 38 LON LSNIN . I
05:4 f | I I I J
wg 14 € c l 0
NOILVATT3 NOILVATT3
HVIY JHOLS 4008d TVANVA 3dIS FHOLS 4008d TVANVA
T; i —
8seq 6j9J0U0D 00
Ppeuyuod peuLyuoo
8q 0} 4n0j0d 8110} Jooud & 8q 03 Jn0J00 ‘80140 Jooid
[EPUBA BIAJS JOU BIUOD ——— N [BPUBA B1AJS JBUIRIUOD. N
o o
8 8
b
3
(474 059¢
NOILLVATT3 NOILVAZT3
3dIS FHO1S 400¥d TVANVA ¥00d FHOLS 400dd TVANVA L
— 7 e
eseq 0jesou0)
A 089¢
Ppauwyu0D pouLyuco
99 0}1n0j0d ‘@210 Jooud 8q 0} Jn0J0 "18}10} J00ud o
[EPUBA BIAJS JBUIBIUOD N |BPUEA BIAIS JBUIBIUO) —— N
o (42
8 = 8
si00p jooud [epue ==
0S9¢

ozve

Page 168



110Z Aenuer  :®jeq VD 05-1 :0le0g
i 37av.1s
VZOIMS / G¥0L ™=
oL Bumelq
An00'sioeyDIEPNASDOJU HIBWS  ZYB0Z9 22520 GO LELSLZ (€2610) 1oL ulpaqueyd sin
Z¥0SaM  eduspiojieH  Aejbuesiodqy  Peoy sjoqay vl 10}
FHVO AVA ANV ONINIVYHL 90d d3sOd0dd
Py s}o8lydly pNds
) "HLIHOMSNYMOIY
“TIH AYHIAMIN
QLT SLOALHOYY aNdS® NOISSINYEd HORId LNOHLIM L¥vd NI juswpuswy aje ‘ASY

™0 ATIOHM @30NA0¥dIY 38 LON LSNIN ONIMYYA SIHL

NOILVATT3
3ais

pappe jybiay aiqels 1102/L0/L2 Y

NOILVATTE

NOILVAZT3
aais

Bupieoq derdus poursrs ———

§29T

Bupreoq derd ys peurmis

<

NOILVAZT3
1NO¥d

Bupueoq de dys poums ——-——

/\\ Buioos j0eus fejou po oid ——

Bupeoq dedus pou s —— 1

—

Page 169

$318V.LS Ol 3SVE ILIHONOD 00¥¥L

$378V.1S OL1 3Sve JLIJONOD 0087

00¥2

NVd
MOOTd 31av.Ls

009¢




110z Atenuer  :ejeq £V 05-L "ejeag

YOIMS / G¥0L =

Y0014 137101

ajuL Bumeiq

3n°00'speyyosepndsDojul :Iew  ZY80Z9 22520 ‘0N LELSLZ (€2610) 1oL
ZY0SOM  euyspioieH  AejBuetsiodqy  peoy sjoday vl

P17 s1o8ydly pnds

udequiey) sIN
10}

3JdVO AVA ANV ONINIVHL 900 d3SOd0dd

NV1d 137101

w
1

'HLHOMSNVIAMOIY
“TIH AYHIAMIN
QL7 S103LIHOYY ANdS@ NOISSINYId ¥ORd LNOHLIM LiVd NI juswpuswy ale ‘A9Y
HO ATIOHM @30ONA0¥JIY 38 LON LSNIN ONIMYYA SIHL 05:1 [ ] l l J
[
wg € 4 I 0
NOILVAZT3 NOILVATT3
¥v3d 137101 400¥d TVANVA 3dIS 137101 400dd TVANVA
/ T / T
os6q ereiou00 ]
PauLyuod pauuyuco
8 011n0j03 ejj0} jooid q 03 J0}09 8010 Jooud
JEPUEA BIAJS JOUIBIUOD ——— N s Jourey N
[ei (i)
5] 8
_ —
400¥ OL ﬁ
LHOIT400N J00¥d
VANVA G31VIONOD
b
3
0zve ooee MH@
NOILVAZT3 NOILVATT3 _
3dIS 137101 4008d TVANVA ¥00ad 137101 400¥d TVANVA L
g — = -
s ooge
PpouLyuo peuuyuod
89 01n0j02 ‘80}yj0 Joosd 89 0}.1n0]00 ‘18110 J00sd
[EPUBA BIAIS JBUIBIUOD N [EPUEA BIA)S JOUIEIUOD . . N
@ o
8 == 8
400 100.d [EPUEA
4004 OL
LHO 1400¥ J00¥d
TIVANVA G3TV3ONOD
0oee (7474

Page 170



110z Atenuer  :ojeq £V 01/0G-1 9[eog

LOIMS / GPOL oo

S30V44NS pue STINSOTONT ‘STANNIM

ajiL Bumeiq
Ano0'sjoeyyosEpNds@ojul Hiews N”momo 12520 90N LELSLZ (€2610) 1oL ulpaqueyd sin
ZV0SaM  euyspiojie elbue sjoqay  Peoy sioqay vl 10 ; — — — — J
FHVO AVA ANV ONINIVHL 90d n_m_wOn_Ow_n_h - E_m 14 € % 3 0
Py s}o8lydly pNds
' "HLIHOMSNYMOIY
“TIH AYEIIMIN
QL7 SLO3LIHONY ANdS® NOISSINYId HORId LNOHLIM Livd NI juswpuswy aje ‘ASY
O ATIOHM G30NAO¥AIY 38 LON LSNIN ONIMVYA SIHL >

FHNSOTONI ONINIVHL 904 / ¥00Aaavd .8, IdAL JON3d //m\

ebeibbe
8SUN0O PELULUEY [[SM LYM PajIYORq
puE eoy pesehne ui 16 Sisod

,
|
> 7
INIVHLS3Y 3903 413S HLIM NIDOOH Q3LOVdWOO / HLYd NVI¥1S3a3d 6 DO .7 o |_., _
,
-
[
,

“Bup asoioq poup eid siey
“SMaLOS AP POSIUBAIES LIBUBI SZ1
XEIP 0} Ui S1eqe) WWIGZ Ut S150d

“ieiep 3Bpa Buluieial yog *5150d J0 @1)ue0 Ul pejuIOl NG Siied . i 04 pexi sijeJ MH Pejeali 05 X 004 —|
ST, S g
- —— AR CR et L | v
R 3 wuigz vy sisod o) pexy sies MH Pelees] 0 X 00k I pu speay poIBuE WM
Pajj0J pue palsjem g Jo 8zis ajoRied wnwixew yim uibboH N N r‘L s1s0d MH Pajeas) Sz1 X 00—
“BA[aM] JO SSBWIY) € 0] pajjos pue paisjem ‘uibBoy suy 12 N
UM papuljq soepns doj pejordwiod Jexuld 80BUIN} UBBID R \\/\\/\\/ 8 8 ﬁ £
|
|
NIOOOH Ad31LOVdNOD / SS3OJV FT1DIHIA E >
UNSOTONS T3NNIM V. 3dAL 30N 6
NN RSN A RN
opesbans R AR LA
° O A A AEESAATAN , , o -,
i aioopie woo
llom 2100pIBH ] | | i A NE T V\///
s s VARV AL VAV M , i s SR
uiBBoy pajeposuo) R e | @ i N 2
G A \NW S enjenioseld yim pejeuBesduly L KK K
“BAJ9M} JO SSOIY] B ©) PajjoJ PUE palajem ‘uibBoy ouly AT EARE 0 TR e o o ‘anssasd jsod 10} MS 00SI X 0DL X 00k — - PRI ipagnsicn oo
UjM papuljq 80epns doj pejoediwon Jeyul soBuIN) UBBD B > SEELA et Ve :'._ 8 x0§ : " .
f 1 b
wodoru usow o R 00808 — 1~
SU0goes eAJEWIEI[E O} PeX) SIBU ) PS UENIED H ] H 8
s s pos e 1o i op s He e
e doi 08 X 08 B ‘epu OO} M 150d 0} palieu 1es doj 08 X 08 L
s
[ [
[ [
I |
NOILVATT3 NOILVAZT3 NOILVATT3 NOILVATT3
Hvay 3ais aais LNO¥4 NYId
25 N B R =
w a IIie] Pes UBAIED a m
upseoq detds poup =] N
Buipieoq deid ys peulels ——— Bupreoq deidius peu eis — Upseoq derdiys peumis
| _ - I | ﬁ
i 1

oove

Page 171



LHOIS 40 INITONIMOHS NOILD3S SSOYD LIX3/3ONVYHLN]

T1/¥0/90

JYVI AVA ANV ONINIVYL 5040 d3SOd0dd HLYOMSNVIAMDIY “TTIH AYY¥IAMIN

Page 172




Batchworth Heath

Prince
of Wales
(PH)

Pressure
Regulating

Birken
Court *

Birken Mews

AVOY¥ HLYOMSNVINMOIY

-
'

'

'

: Greenad
'

)

' '

' )

' '

) '

' '

Carlton Place

%1 El Sub Sta
: : —
Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary Land north of Carlton Place OF HILLINGDON
L : Planning,
For identification purposes only. Rickmansworth Road Environment, Education
This copy has been made by or with Northwood & Commu_nlty SerVICES
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Mlddx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref; Scale
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 67584IAPP1201 1/232 1 :1 ,250
exception to copyright.
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Plannmg Committee Date
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011 North Page 173 May 2011

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 186 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER
Development: Change of use from photographic studio to accountancy office (Use Class
A2)

LBH Ref Nos: 2294/APP/2011/415

Date Plans Received:  23/02/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 01/03/2011

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 174



608 6888 0ZOPL
"0rY IVH ‘Mousy| ‘pechl Jsud ‘0Z)

19031ydiy peJseyieyd

‘Pl ©dN3d03|1Yd1V ud

¥

90°'LL

‘NOLLVATTE GNV SNV'id

00L:1

vio

UINNIJ‘3IL0OL8VE ‘AVON ANT 1314 98}

viaa

‘'ONOMa

103roud

004:1

wg

wi

NOILVA3IT3 LNOYS

]

ayvod NOSIS

N

|

|

|

|

L

w'bs 8Z°SOT :v3¥V TVYNYILNI SSOY¥D TV1OL

wr'bs 0S 69 :e0dy [euIIUT
21.*& Y0074 LS¥Id
|

e 0 =

Na

8

— 1

6I89X0SES
I WOOY

"OIANLS AHdYHDOLOHd

Na

SZoEXOEYY
Z WOOY

H400¥ LV14

[T

Ll

| S

4
4
4
_
4
*
*
;
4
4

4

T
1

gvod @

N3 Ql_m.._..m

ELELS:

wbs g/°'ss :eady jeulayuy
Z_\qm_moo.:_ aNnoyy

%

V81 °ON

A

606ZX00€S
VLI

STLEXOSES
I 301440

[-—-QIANLS AHdVY90.LOHd

5T55X089Z
2301440

% B

A Ny S

/ L I
\ _ 8X{

X084T

LN

)

dn

88T°ON

Page 175




TV OL IV 38N 40 SONVHO G380d0¥d

9508 9088 0Z0WL
Gy IVH ‘MOuSH ‘Pecy] Jeuind ‘021 - l“lla ._..““-_l__!!t SF"F <N°
100314oly peieiieyd 90k Heeme e NOLLVATTE GNV SNVid WANNId‘3LO0D18VE ‘aVON aN3 a13id 98}
-‘U— Oh-GUDH———o.-(mm "ON 103r0id a 9 a v Tvi3a TVO8 ‘ONOMa J103roNd
0041
wg wy
7314
wrbs §Z°SOT :vVIYV TYNYILNI SSOYS TV.IOL hzmzm><m
wrbs 0S°6¥ :eedy [euISluUY wrbs g/°Ss :ealy [euiyur
NOILVA3T3 LNOY¥SA Z(.«l Y0074 LS¥IHd 21.:-100.?& QZ:O&#
M ] = h _m
E H f _
f C0SDV0ES _
oTeRXDSES f ¥ ooy |
L N ] ¥ ooy f _
a¥yvod NOIS — | \ ] f ( s ; L |
f SN _
|| I G = W AONVLNNOOOV | ITQ 0 |
- | VH8T'ON — | ssron
L f ] ZWoou _
_ | [~ 201440 AONVINNODOY | || O
| na | % _ W
_ | AN | o
! L— f 8 vl w
| _ iz s |
| _ T 5| =
| | | =l = %_
_ — _
_ _ — sessY0esT h
| | | - |
_ | _
H00Y LV14 7 _
f |
f _
f _
f _
f _
f _
f |
f |
7 _
f _
f _
7 |
f |
f _
f |




Car Park

\
*ty  Shelter
\

SO\
W\ *

.
N .
Y, .
\
v
A .

- .
- .
he PANIKY

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site Address

186 Field End Road

Eastcote

LONDON BOROUG

OF HILLINGDON
Planning,

Environment, Education

& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
2294/APP/2011/415 1:1,250

Planning Committee Date
North Page 177 May 2011

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 89/91 JOEL STREET NORTHWOOD

Development: Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to part Class A3 (Restaurants and
Cafes), part Class A4 (Drinking Establishments), part Class A5 (Hot Food
Takeaways) and part Class B1 (Office.)

LBH Ref Nos: 45536/APP/2010/2946

Date Plans Received:  22/12/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/12/2010
Date Application Valid: 13/01/2011 13/01/2011
06/04/2011

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 178



V A LO-6ELCLD | seaunybumeia

In°00'sqoIgNOoJuU
°CO'SGOIGNO" MMM

200} 2858 020 ‘d - €001 £8S8 020 °L
AXS LML ‘XeSelppIN
“(UOMOIs] ‘PEOY UOPUO" 66}-161, ‘9SNOH 10050l

paywi] Buikenng bBul

20s ' QLAou| LV ® 0S:)

poxoous|  umeig aeq =3
SLNOAVT HOO0Td

ONILSIX3

F1LIL ONIMVEA

SliIH POOMULION
190115 [90F" |6/68

NOILdRIOS3a sor

uewd s

NVd Y0074 ANNOHO ONILSIX3

N30

‘poppe sse osn | LLL'EL | V.

suoisiney

uojssjuuiad Jnoyym peonposdes
29 jou Aew pue @ JBuAdoo | Buimesp siuL

“SIUBWINOOP JUEADJR [[E UM
uopouNfuoo ui peas aq o} s1 Buimesp siu | “Buipesdoid
210j2q JoASAING BU) 0} PaL0da) 8q JSNW PaIBACDSIP.
sejuedasosip [euojsuawip Auy “Buimelp siu) woy
[POIBIS JOU pUE 3)IS UO Pa)daud aq snw suoisuawip Iy

o0eLI9) [BUISIXT

SejoN

ubs ogel /wbs 9'€zL
SseD 8s LY

0

U0 1501 punoid Jowo]

ybs /) /wbsggL
sseo a8 LY

NV1d ¥007d ANNOYD HIAMOT ONILSIX3

1y bs ggz / wbs £'9z
ebeioig

Page 179




V 20-6€L2LD | seaunntumea

051 3v08
NOILVA3T3 LNO¥4 a3S0d0dd
P o0kt W08
Agiomaie] ‘PEcYl UopUST 6)-| 6} ‘98O 1edeaid SNOILVATTE 3HOLS 3TOADAL
paywr Burkening ng o1qnd ) EEREE) 5 ™ B
Q D D NowvAITS
~ 2601 SoNLNE #EN
008 01rd | |+l ¥dV NMOHS SV E
poeoso| e | amq oms
SLNOAVTHOOTd
ANV NOILVYAIT3 a3S0d0dd
FLIL ONIMVNA {
o014 31v08.
S|IIH POOMULION SNOILVAIT3 340LS NIg
198418 90T L 6/68 i IDWJQ - IE\.E
ronaesaser D I@
uewd] s S | S—
s ® SNIE 3M33HM
e e ovao gl
'SNIS ONIMTOADTY: ONITOAOTY
051 31v08
NV1d 300714 ANNOYO A3SOd0dd
4040 Bujuueyd Joj POppE |1E}OP JoUMN LL'¥0'S0 Y
‘suoisiARy 06°1 3VOS
uolssiuued JnoLm peonpoides NV1d 40074 ANNOYO ¥IMOT 3SOd0odd

2q j0u Aew pue @ JyBLAdoo S| BuMEIp SIUL

“SIUSWINOOP JUBABIR 8 YUM

uojounfuco uy peas eq o} s| Bumesp siy | “Bupesocid
eu0)8q _._wuwn:m oy} 0} E:e%.\ﬂ Ems_é PoIBACOSID 005t IVOS
‘sarouedeosip [euoisUBWIP Auy BuMelp SiU) woy T T e T
PaIE3S 10U PUE SYS UO PEYIBYD S ISNL SUOISUBUIP Iy NV1d %0078 d3S0d0yd

eoBUe) [EWeXT

4 bs g8z / wbs 2'9z
sselo esn g

Y bs 208 / wbs G2
SSEIO 98N S/V/EY

4 bs 829/ wbs g9
SSelQ oS LY

sejoN

Page 180




use

5
T
2
>
>
<

)
)
»
»
v
]
»
)
'
]
’
.~

T,
" -

-

e L

.
D

’

3/
/

’
.

<
>

.
o= mee oo AINIOs3yy

-
LA
’
.
‘
.
.
(]
b ‘. .
. Y
’ /o
’ .
/ .
. /
/ S,
‘. 4
beeanl p
e p
e p

————_t

—
—
RS

Poor's Field
(Allotment Gardens)

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

Site Address

89 - 91Joel Street

Environment, Education
& Community Services

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon

100019283 2011

Northwood
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
45536/APP/2010/2946 1:1,250 ] g
Planning Committee Date ¢ 1 ’!t‘
North Page 181 May 2011 NILLINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 157-161 AND LAND FRONTING HIGH STREET RUISLIP

Development: Two and half storey linked building comprising 2 x two- bedroom flats, 2 x
one-bedroom flats and 2 x studio flats, extension to the beauty saloon and the
formation of a new Class A2 ground floor commercial unit (involving part
demolition of existing building) and the retention of the beauty saloon use of
the existing building, involving the change of use of the ground floor retail unit
(Class A1) and 4 existing flats (Class C3) (Part Retrospective Application).

LBH Ref Nos: 64711/APP/2011/214

Date Plans Received:  31/01/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/01/2011
Date Application Valid: 09/02/2011 03/02/2011
09/02/2011
17/03/2011
07/04/2011
11/04/2011
28/04/2011

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 182



Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 157-161 AND LAND FRONTING HIGH STREET RUISLIP
Development: Part demolition of existing building (Application for Conservation Area
consent).

LBH Ref Nos: 64711/APP/2011/215

Date Plans Received:  31/01/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/01/2011
Date Application Valid: 09/02/2011 03/02/2011
17/03/2011
11/04/2011

North Planning Committee - 19th May 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 183



[

13

Page 184



" Zv@00z:T ) pree
#iko o a1 v g o
| ormer e | " dIISING ‘ Qv0¥ IHOYEWId 440
C T tomhums _‘vg AIFHIS HOIH 191 - ZST 1V ANV
-

ASNOH ANOUEWId

SNVd 31IS d3S0d0dd 8 ONILSIXI

avoy

NOLWLHOEN &

oz 834 £ -

NV1d 31IS d350404d

IAN0H¥EgNWId

6-5

81 oN

457 'ON

A

Apunog oyé

peoy aanses

1
PoumOY 3G 0L Burisixg

_ —

55T 'ON

HOIH

LITHLS

65
JSNOH ANO¥EW3d

avoy

pouen

IHN0Y8WId

NV1d 3LIS DNILSIXT

LS POUSIOUST g,

2§ 01 Buisieg o By

«

Asepunog 2y5

peoy ajAsas

ST 'ON

£51 'ON

A

sabeien

T

poumdy 2g o) Budsixg

SST 'ON

Page 185

OIH

133¥1LS



tvaoor:1 Y oomea 203 moud ey
G e ) dISINY” avoy IXN0HEW3d 440 3SNOH STWIL
= ST poajoew rm 133HIS HOIH I9I - ST 1V ANV

NYId FLIS / ¥00T4d ANNO¥Y9D

anc)
8041 9 Wy

Hoz g3s¢-

avod IAN0dgWId

piing maN urews. 03 buiping bunsixg

I91 'ON 7

P 7

Sy o0pon ¥
Bumiey ySiog Wt

i ,.__ngnw
C ) N
\\,.

N
HOON o
NI

f_ £ST 'ON

A =1

N,

sro0p mawsaT pEOY 32IAI3S

sebeien _ SST ON

6-S
JSNOH IANOYEWId

Hed 182

EST 'ON

avoy an3 Lsam

HOIH

1334815

Page 186



d Zv@ooT:l ) o 7810
I e ey , _dnISINY’ QvO¥ IOYEWId 440
(7| e ) (poaPew rm 133¥LS HOIH T9T - £5T LV aNV17

SN¥1d YOOTd ONILSIXT

LSald

aANNO¥9

WOOHa3g

oM || woouHive

39NNOT
NIHDLIN 3 iz

OIS |\ o
:/ 29MN07

UYL

WOOY
ANIFWLYTHL

TR

ML

f U
w3

am WOOYHIVE

dnoy9
NOUMIENGSNYRE ® ININNY I

WGz 824 €-

WOOY
ANFWIYIYL

WOO¥
ANIWIVIYL

IHOLS

R

Q3N303Y 3 .
NOOSNTIH 40 0608 NOT
aNO23s
I T
| Woo¥O38 [
waymy |
W /abunal
WOONHLVE
=S
¥
_ FELIE| H
WOOUH1YE
==
uBYIUN
/ abunoy
| woowog |
i ‘parsnipe suelg | v
nAAL ‘pasnfpe sueld | g

B gt
aa goss 1 18

Page 187



N e l T ———.
e |poswemem LTS HOIH T9T - £ST 1Y ON¥1

Page 188



( oy ooohcb ) e =R
LIHOYY
| A 5 I —
epe— g wy 9
2 W/ 80ZE / O POSIoBN " M :
] e b} .,
s ™
dINSinY OvoYd MONEWId 330
" 133LS HOIH L9l -LSL LV ANV
W,
SNOILYAITS
peoy peoy pecy peoy
Cemen GEwaste -y 19:-.G1 4583 HeIgwad ERTNCIS sabeleq safieseg ESINETS me“.__mn
L I
e e ——
\ [T o1
..f. % i 7 Gl
| 7
N
L /./ﬂ.“ \\\\
T j— 7 =
isepm
asnoy
32445 ubiy 9L-45L yidoy ayoiquad

-

S

q’z’:z‘y
=

EE _ @ __..@E @. 8
.ﬂ w\ — s e A ;

e omiermny
~Asergm LT usva 9K

T TwEm

TRy DY v ¥

an gy oonr
R




iR SRR SN
T LO3LIHONY
i g s
- e T PO I M
s e s ) J
1 -y
" dINSING ' 0Y0d 3H0¥EIAId 440
‘ 13341S HOMH 9L LS 1V OGNV
rp : [Eoa ==

NV
s (eS| 93aNTyy

wol

peoy ayoigway
Tasnoy aqodquad

.
laalo i

S

pasodoid

190 - (54

132445 UbIY

L —

Page 190




QVOHONBLSBM

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site Address

157 - 161 High Street
Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW

North Page 191 May 2011

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
64711/APP/2011/214 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 192



Agenda Annex

T™HILLINGDON

LONDON

Meeting: | North Planning Committee
Date: Thursday 19" May 2011 Time: | 7.00pm

Place: Committee Room 5, Civic Centre, Uxbridge

ADDENDUM SHEET

Item: 6 Page: 1 Location: South Ruislip Library, Plot B, Victoria Road,
Ruislip

Amendments/Additional Information: | Officer Comments

1. Replace Drw. Nos. 2009/D42B/23 and 2 1. For revision.
(Hard and Soft Landscape Plan) received
16/06/2010, 2009/D42B/P/05 Rev. D, 08
Rev. B, 09 Rev. B, 10 Rev. B, 11 Rev. A, 12
Rev. B, 13 Rev. B, 20 Rev. B, 21 Rev. B, 23
Rev. A, 24, 27 Rev. A, 28 Rev. A and 29A
received 11/10/2010 and 2009/D42B/P/07
Rev. F, 18 Rev. E, 26 Rev. D and 30 Rev. B
received 13/04/2011 with 2009/D42B/P/18
Rev. F, 2009/D42B/P/22 Rev. B,
2009/D42B/P/26 Rev. D and
2009/D42B/P/30 Rev. C received
13/05/2011 and 2009/D42B/P07 Rev. E
and 2 Rev. C received 18/05/2011.

2. Delete Conditions 8 - TL2 Trees to be 2. For correction.
retained and 9 - TL3 Protection of trees
during site clearance and development.

3. Add Condition TL1 - Existing Trees - 3. For revision/correction.
Survey, modified by adding at end of clause
(iv) 'that should not conflict with the tree
planting on the approved landscaping
scheme' and deleting clause (v).

4. In condition 10 TL5 - Landscaping 4. For revision/correction.
Scheme, after 'The scheme shall include'
delete all items and replace with 'details of
hard standing - fencing/railings, benches
and hard-surfacing.'

5. In condition 22, replace '43m' with '70m’. 5. For correction.

6. In condition 23, after 'for their sole use', 6. For greater clarity.
add '4 disabled spaces, leaving 5 visitor

Page 193 1



spaces'.

7. Add Condition SUS8 - Electric Charging
Points

8. In Section 7.11, in first paragraph, delete
second sentence. In third sentence, replace
'building' with 'the 2 blocks'. Delete fourth
and fifth sentences. In second paragraph,
replace 'the site', with 'Plot A". Delete third
paragraph. In fourth paragraph, delete
‘currently under construction'. Replace the
fifth paragraph with 'Following the latest
revised plans, the Council's Urban
Design/Conservation Officer raises no
objections to the scheme. In sixth
paragraph, delete last sentence.

9. Add revised comments of the Highway
Officer:

The proposal site lies on the north-eastern
side of Victoria Road. Victoria Road is a
Classified Road and is designated as a
Local Distributor Road within the Council’s
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) road
hierarchy.

The site is shown to be in an area with a
PTAL accessibility rating of 2, (on a scale of
1-6, where 6 is the most accessible), as
indicated on maps produced by TfL. The
site is therefore shown to have a low level of
accessibility to public transport. However
there are bus and train/underground links in
the surroundings.

It is prohibited to park on Victoria Road by
double yellow lines ‘at any time’ parking
restrictions. Public car park in Long Drive is
nearby and has a total of 58 spaces.

A total of 36 no. car parking spaces are
proposed for the development, including 4
no. disabled bay) for 31 flats. The car
parking provision is considered to be
acceptable. A public car park is also
nearby. The provision of the car parking
should be covered through a suitable
planning condition.

A new vehicular crossover has been
proposed. A new bellmouth give-way
access with tactile paving would instead be
more suitable. The type and details of the
vehicular access including swept paths
should be covered through a suitable
planning condition. There are no gates

7. For revision/correction

8. For correction/revision.

9. For revision.

Page 194




proposed at the vehicular access.

The development is proposed to have
covered cycle storage for 31 no. cycle
stands, which is considered acceptable. The
provision of the cycle parking should be
covered through a suitable planning
condition.

The vehicular access should be provided
with the requisite pedestrian visibility splays
of 2.4m x 2.4m on both sides and vehicular
sightlines of 2.4m x 70m to be covered
through suitable planning conditions.

The refuse storage areas will be provided
with pedestrian paths and access to
facilitate bins’ trundling and are within
acceptable distance from the highway.

Victoria Road is a busy road and right
turning movements into the site have the
potential to have a detrimental effect on the
free flow of traffic. A short right turning lane
is being proposed which would improve the
flow of traffic and help in minimising vehicle
conflicts, but its location shown on the
proposed plans will need to be amended
and agreed with the LPA. All highway works
including right turning lane, reinstatement of
the existing access/crossover and the
proposed access arrangements should be
covered through a s278 agreement.

The transport appraisal submitted with the
application is not up to date and the trip
rates quoted are not fully representative of
the application site. However given the
existing permitted use of the site and the
scale of the proposed development, in terms
of vehicular trip generation/attraction, the
future trips associated with the development
are unlikely to have a significant effect on
the capacity of the highway network.

In light of the above considerations; the
development is unlikely to have a
detrimental highways impact. The scheme is
acceptable subject to the conditions and
informatives recommended in the report,
with the exception of Condition 22, as the
43m visibility distance should be replaced
with 70m.

10. Add revised comments of the
Tree/Landscape Officer on the revised
scheme:

10. For revision.

Page 195




The existing trees do not constrain the
development of the site and the individual
removals will have a low impact. However,
the loss of all of the trees should be
mitigated by tree planting.

The revised layout reserves limited space
for landscaping and tree planting on the
road frontage, and in the amenity space at
the rear of the buildings. The landscaping
scheme (Dwg. No. 2 Rev. C) makes
provision for the planting of a line of 16
narrow-crowned trees on the road

frontage, in front of the buildings and the car
park and 10 Birch trees in the amenity
space behind the buildings, in replacement
of the existing trees. The scheme also
includes a new evergreen hedge behind
1m-high railings adjacent to the pavement,
and an outdoor sitting area at the front of
the site. In that context there is no objection
to the loss of several trees on the site. In
addition, the extensive planting will provide
some screening, and will reduce the visual
impact of the buildings.

A specification of the hard and soft
landscaping, and details of maintenance for
a period of 12 months is included on the
revised 'Hard and Soft Landscape' drawing.
However, whilst the fencing, railings,
benches, hard-surfacing, etc. are described
on the drawing, the hard landscaping is not
detailed, and there is no information about
the maintenance of landscaping after the
first year. In addition, the services must be
designed so that they are consistent with
and take account of the tree planting. These
matters can be addressed by conditions
(see below).

Subject to conditions TL1 (MODIFIED to
require details of services that should not
conflict with the tree planting on the
approved landscaping scheme), TL5
(MODIFIED to require details of hard
landscaping - fencing/railings, benches,
hard-surfacing), TL6, and TL7, the
application is acceptable in terms of Saved
Policy BE38 of the UDP.

Item: 10 Page: 85 Location: 89-91 Joel Street, Northwood

Amendments/Additional Information:

Officer Comments

1. Condition 6 should be amended to read:
The proposed uses hereby approved shall

1. For correction

Page 196




not be commenced until details of all extract
ventilation systems and odour control
equipment including details of any noise
levels, external ducting and measures to
control vibration, have been submitted to
and approved by the local planning authority
and the equipment so approved has been
installed. The approved extract ventilation
system equipment and odour control
equipment shall be operated at all times
when cooking is carried out and maintained
in accordance with the manufacturers
instructions. The external ducting shall be
removed as soon as possible when no
longer required.

2. Conditions 7 should be amended to read
as follows:

No air handling units shall be used on the
premises until a scheme which specifies the
provisions to be made for the control of
noise emanating from the site has been
submitted to, and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. The said scheme shall
include such secure provision as will ensure
that the said scheme and all of it endures for
use and that any and all constituent parts
are repaired and maintained and replaced in
whole or in part so often as occasion may
require.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding
areas in accordance with Policies OE1 and
OES3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

3. With regard to the comments of the
Waste Manager, it should be noted that
sufficient space has been identified to
comply with the Council's requirements for
waste storage and collection and details
have been submitted which comply with
requirements. Their implementation is
controlled by condition.

4. An additional condition No. 14 is
recommended as follows:

Before the development commences,
details of WC facilities to meet the needs of
people with disabilities shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. These approved
facilities shall be provided before the use
commences and shall be permanently
retained thereafter.

2. For correction

3. For clarification

Page 197




REASON

To ensure that the proposal meets the
needs of people with disabilities in
accordance with Policy R16 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
Policies (February 2008) Policies 3A.13,
3A.17 and 4B.5.

Item: 11 Page: 99

Location: 157-161 High Street, Ruislip

Amendments/Additional Information:

Officer Comments

1. In Condition 6 (TL5 - Landscaping
Scheme), delete items 'Implementation
programme' to 'Other vehicle and pedestrian
access and circulation area' and last three
items from 'Minor artefacts and structures
(such as play equipment, furniture, refuse
storage, signs, or lighting),".

2. Delete Condition 10 (HLCS5 - Industrial
and Commercial Development)

3. Add comments of Ruislip Residents'
Association:

We wrote expressing our concerns over a
similar planning application (6 May 2010)
and ultimately refused on 24 June and some
of our principal concerns remain valid with
the current application notably
access/egress to the site and parking
facilities generally.

Vehicular access is via a narrow service
road directly off the high street and it is
difficult to see how visitors/delivery/removal
vehicles will be able to manoeuvre so as to
ensure they can re-enter the High Street in
a facing direction. It should be borne in mind
that the site is right on a major road junction.

Whilst it is thought that there is no great
need for parking provision given nearby car
parks we believe that at least one disabled
bay should be provided for a resident/visitor
and the views of your Disability Access
Officer taken into account.

1.

For simplification.

2. This condition would have controlled the

opening hours of the beauty salon, but given
that this use, although 'sui generis' is akin to
surrounding retail uses whose opening hours
are not controlled, its inclusion is not
considered to be necessary.

As regards delivery and removal vehicles, the
current proposal does not alter the current
situation, with larger service vehicles being
unlikely to enter the site. The Planning
Inspector on the previous appealed application
and the Highway Engineer have not raised an
objection to the scheme on this ground.

As regards disabled parking, only on
residential schemes with 10 or more units
would there be a requirement for at least one
of the units to be fully wheelchair accessible.
This scheme does not meet that threshold and
therefore there is no requirement for a
disabled space or lift access.

Page 198




	Agenda
	6 South Ruislip Library, Plot B, Victoria Road, Ruislip   67080/APP/2010/1420
	7 Land forming part of 104 Abbotsbury Gardens, Eastcote   67398/APP/2011/481
	8 Land forming part of Carlton Place, Rickmansworth Road, Northwood   67584/APP/2011/232
	9 186 Field End Road, Eastcote   2294/APP/2011/415
	10 89-91 Joel Street, Northwood    45536/APP/2010/2946
	11 157 - 161 High Street, Ruislip   64711/APP/2011/214
	12 157 - 161 High Street, Ruislip
	Plans for North Planning Committee
	Addendum

